
1. 
C 

2003 Competitive Local Exchange Carrier (CLEC) Data Request 
(Due by July 31,2003) 

Legal company name: US LEC of Florida Inc. 

D/B/A: Not Applicable 

Stock Symbol (if publicly traded): CLEC 

FPSC company code (e.g., TX000): TX165 

Contact name & title: Greg Lunsford, Regulatory Manager 

Telephone number: 704-3 19-1 946 

E-mail address: glunsford@uslec.com 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5 .  

6. 

7. 

Please complete CLEC Table- 1, “Access Line Data (VGE basis).” 

Please complete CLEC Table-2, “Facilities-Based Access Line Counts (not VGEs).” 

Please complete CLEC Table-3, “Physical/Virtual Collocation Data.” 

Please complete CLEC Table-4, “Switch Data (VGE Basis).” 

Please indicate the total number of lines over which you or an affiliate are providing 
broadband service in Florida, indicating the type of broadband service available. DSL is 
offered in Florida, but US LEC of Florida Inc. has no DSL subscribers. US LEC of 
Florida Inc. provides dedicated Internet access to [Redacted] access lines currently. 

Are you offering or providing Voice over Internet Protocol (VoIP) services in Florida? If 
so, please list the respective exchanges, wire centers and pricels). Is the service local, long 
distance, or both? No. 

Do you actively market your local services to Florida residential custoiners? No. 
(a.) 

(b.) 
(c.) 

If not, please explain why. US LEC of Florida Inc. is not currently offering 
residential local service. 
If so, in what geographic areas ? 
If so, what types of marketing do you use? Please check all that are applicable. 

Newspaper 
Radio 
TV 
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Direct Mail 
Telemarketing 
Email 
Website 

8. 

9. 

10. 

11. 

12. 

Other (please specify) 
(d.) If available, please provide marketing brochures or comparable materials. 

Please describe your long-term ( 5  years) business strategy, including whether you intend to 
change your method of provisioning (e.g., from resale/mixed to all UNEs to facilities-based). 
[Redacted] 

During the last 12 months have you expanded your service offerings in Florida? If so, please 
list the new offerings, if they are residence or business (or both), their prices and the 
exchanges where you have offered the services. Please see the attached Local Service Price 
List. 

Please list your primary line of business (for example, entertainment, cable television, private 
liiieispecial access service, interexchange service, local service, cellular service, paging 
service, electric service, municipality, etc.) Local Service. 

If your company provides pre-paid local telephone service, please indicate whether this is 
the only service you currently provide in Florida. Also, provide an estimate as to the number 
of access lines served which constitute pre-paid local service. US LEC does not offer 
prepaid local telephone service. 

Please provide information on any package plans offered and include: 
Which services are offered (e.g., cable television, local telephone service, long 
distance, broadband service) Please see the product information for 
ADVANTAGE Power T Service in Section 6 of the attached Price List. 

Where such packages are being offered (exchanges or cities) ADVANTAGE Power 
T Service is being offered in every exchange where US LEC offers local service. 

Whether they are provided through your company itself, an affiliate, or a business 
partner ADVANTAGE Power T Service is being offered by US LEC of Florida 
Inc. 

Examples of plan pricing or price ranges Please see the product information for 
ADVANTAGE Power T Service in Section 6 of the attached Price List. 

Terms and conditions (for example, is subscribing to both local telephone and long 
distance a condition of providing service?) Please see the product information for 
ADVANTAGE Power T Service in Section 6 of the attached Price List. 
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13. 

14. 

15. 

16. 

17. 

18. 

19. 

20. 

Have you experienced any significant barriers in entering Florida’s local exchange 
markets? Please list and describe any niaj or obstacles or bamers encountered that you 
believe may be impeding the growth of local competition in the state, along with any 
suggestions as to how to remove such obstacles. [Redacted] 

Have you experienced any difficulties iiivolving any agreements you may have with 
incumbent LECs? If so, please describe any significant problems encountered. 
[Redacted] 

Please provide any additional comments or information you believe will assist staff in 
evaluating and reporting on the development of local exchange competition in Florida. This 
information may include cominents on alternative methods to evaluate the level of 
competition in Florida (e.g., use of the E911 databases, etc.) as well as comments or 
information on intermodal local competition (e.g., wireless, cable telephony). 

For the year ending December 3 1,2002, please identify your total revenue fi-om local service, 
broken out by business and residence. [Redacted] 

As of December 31,2002, how much money (in thousands of dollars) have you invested in 
your network serving Florida customers? [Redacted] 

Has your company filed either Chapter 7 or Chapter 11 bankruptcy in the past? Are you 
currently operating under Chapter 7 or Chapter 11 protection? If so, please provide relevant 
dates and details about the filing, including which chapter. No. 

If your company filed a Form 477 with the Federal Communications Commission in March 
2003, please enclose a copy of the completed form with your response to this data request. 
(NOTE: This form only applies to CLECs with a minimum of 10,000 access lines.) Please 

see the attached Form 477. 

If your company is publicly traded, please provide a copy of your (or your parent company’s) 
most recent annual report to stockholders, and Form 10-K. Please see the attached Form 
1 O-K. 
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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 
Washington, D.C. 20549 

F O M  10-K 
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) 

OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2002 

Commission File Number: 0-24061 

US LEC COW. 
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter) 

DELAWARE 56-206553 5 
(State or other jurisdiction of (I .R. S . Employer 

incorporation or organization) Identification No.) 

Morrocroft 111,4801 Morrison Boulevard 
CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA 2821 1 

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code) 

Registrant's telephone number, including area code: (704) 3 19-1 000 

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12@) of Act: None. 

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(9  of Act: Class A Common Stock, par value $.01 per 
share. 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ( I )  has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 
15(d) of the Secunties Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter penod that the 
registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 
days. [XIYes [ ]No  

Indicate by check mark if discIosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not 
contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of the registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or 
information statements incorporated by reference in Part I11 of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 
10-K. [XI 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer as defined in Exchange Rule 12b-2. 
[ ]Yes [XINO 

The aggregate market value of voting stock of the registrant held by non-affiliates of the registrant was 
$28,985,427 as of June 30, 2002 based on the closing sales pnce on The Nasdaq SmallCap Market as of that 
date. For purposes of this calculation only, affiliates are deemed to be directors and executive officers of the 
registrant. 

As of March 24,2003 there were 26,894,839 shares of Class A common stock outstanding. 

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE 
Portions of the registrant's Proxy Statement for its Annual Meeting of StockhoIders to be held on May 22, 

2003 are incorporated by reference into Part I11 of this report. 



US LEC COW. 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
2002 ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K 

Page 

PART I 

Item 1: Business 

Item 2: Properties 

Item 3 : Legal Proceedings 

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 

PART I1 

Item 5: 

Item 6: Selected Financial Data 

Item 7: 

Market for the Registrant's Common Stock and Related Stockholder Matters 

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results 

of Operations 

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Rzsk 

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data 

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial 
Disclosure 

Item 7A: 

Item 8: 

Item 9. 

PART I11 

Item 10: 

Item 11 : Executive Compensation 

Item 12: Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related 

Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant 

S t o ckhoIder Matters 

Item 13: Certain Relationships and Related Transactions 

Item 14: Controls and Procedures 

PART IV 

Item 15: 

SIGNATURES 

Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K 

3 

20 

20 

20 

21 

22 

23 

35 

36 

59 

60 

60 

60 

60 

60 

61 

64 

65 CERTIFICATIONS 

2 



PART I 

ITEM 1. BUSINESS 

THE COMPANY 

US LEC Corp. (“US LEC” or the “Company) is a Charlotte, NC-based telecommunications carrier 
providing voice, data and Internet services to over 10,000 mid-to-large-sized business customers 
throughout the southeastern and mid-Atlantic United States. As of December 31, 2002, the US LEC 
network consisted of 26 Lucent 5ESSB AnyMediaTM digital switches, 26 Lucent CBXSOO Asynchronous 
Transfer Mode (“ATM”) data switches, five Juniper Networks@ M20TM Internet Gateway routers and an 
Alcatel MegaHubB 6OOES tandem switch. The US LEC local sei-vice area includes Alabama, Florida, 
Georgia, Kentucky, Louisiana, Maryland, Mississippi, New Jersey, North Carolina, Pennsylvania, South 
Carolina, Tennessee, Virginia and the District of Columbia. US LEC also offers selected voice services in 
Arkansas, California, Connecticut, Indiana, Massachusetts, Montana, Nevada, New York, Ohio, Texas and 
Wisconsin, in addition to providing data services in these and other states. The Company primarily serves 
telecommunications-intensive business customers including the automotive, construction, education, 
financial, government, healthcare, hospitality, Internet service providers, other telecommunication carriers, 
yrofessional/legal, real estate, retail and transportation sectors. 

US LEC was founded in 1996 and first initiated service in North Carolina in March 1997, becoming 
one of the first competitive local exchange carriers (“CLEC”) in North Carolina to provide switched local 
exchange services. 

BUSINESS STRATEGY 

US LEC’s objective is to be the premier communications partner for businesses by delivering quality 
voice and data services and exceeding expectations for customer care. 

The principal elements of US LEC‘s business strategy include: 

Offer a Broad Range of Prodiicts and Services. US LEC offers customers a broad range of 
telecomuiiication services which can be bundled on a single customer network connection. Management 
believes a broad product range, competitive pricing and an opportunity to bundle services gives US LEC 
customers an exceptional value. US LEC offers its customers local access, calling card, audio conferencing, 
digital private line, frame relay, ATM, dedicated high-speed Intemet access, Web hosting, email, dial-up 
Internet access, managed firewall and Internet Protocol-Virtual Private Network (“IP-VPN”), as well as 
long distance services that include intrastate, interstate, international and toll-free calling. To hrther the 
Company’s product strategy, US LEC has deployed its IP, ATM and Advanced Intelligent Network 
(“AI”’) platforms. These systems provide the Company the ability to provide advanced voice and data 
communications products and semi ces . 

Target Telecommunications-Interzsive Customers. The Conipany focuses its sales efforts on 
telecomniunications-intensive business customers that include the automotive, construction, education, 
financial, government, healthcare, hospitality, Internet service providers, professional/legal, real estate, 
retail, transportation sectors and telecommunication providers. By focusing on such customers, the 
Conipany is able to more efficiently concentrate their telecomniunications traffic. In addition, the Company 
frequently is able to bundle its local, long distance, data and Internet services. This further enhances 
network utilization and thereby improves margins, as fixed network costs are spread over a larger base of 
services. Unlike some other CLECs, the Company does not resell incunibent local exchange carrier 
(“ILEC”) dial tone services. 

Provide Outstanding Custonzer Service. Management believes that a key element of the success of 
a CLEC is the ability to satisfy the service needs of its Customers. The Company must be able to resolve 
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customer issues, promptly implement change requests, resolve billing issues and promptly add additional 
service and capacity. Management believes that providing customers with outstanding customer care 
enhances the ability of the Company to retain its customers, as well as attract new customers. Customer 
care is provided locally by the market-based sales, sales support and operations team and centrally by US 
LEC’s Network Operations Center (“NOC”) and customer service center. 

Deploy a Capital-Efficient Network. US LEC utilizes a “smart-build” strategy of owning and 
deploying switching and routing equipment and leasing the required fiber optic transmission capacity from 
competitive access providers (“CAPS”), CLECs, interexchange carriers (“IXCs”) or ILECs. Management 
believes the Company’s switch-based, leased-transport strategy enables it to enter and penetrate markets, 
and generate revenue and positive cash flow more rapidly than if the Company first constructed its own 
transmission facilities. By leasing fiber transport, this Smart-Build strategy also reduces the up-front capital 
expenditures required to build a network and enter new markets and avoids the risk of “strandedt’ 
investment in under-utilized fiber networks. 

Irzstall a Robust Technology Platform. The Company has chosen the 5ESS@Any MediaTMdigital 
switch and the CBXSOO ATM data switches, both of which are manufactured by Lucent Technologies, Inc. 
(“Lucent” 

) to provide a consistent technology platform throughout its network. As of December 3 1, 2002, US 
LEC had 26 Lucent voice switches and 26 Lucent ATM data switches active throughout its network. To 
enhance its service offerings, the Company deployed an Alcatel MegaHub 600ES (”Alcatel”) tandem 
switch in Charlotte, NC. In addition, the Company has also deployed five Juniper Networks@ M 2 0 T M  
Internet Gateway routers to provide reliable, scalable, and high-speed network elements to significantly 
enhance the performance of US LEC’s Internet access service. 

Fucus of Operations. The Company focuses its network and marketing presence in target markets 
composed of Tier I cities (major metropolitan areas such as Atlanta, Miami, Philadelphia and Washington 
D.C.) and Tier I1 cities (mid-size metropolitan areas such as Greensboro, Nashville and Tampa). The 
Conipany has selected target markets based on a number of considerations, including the number of 
potential customers and competitors in such markets and the presence of multiple transmission facility 
suppliers. The Company currently focuses on markets in the southeast and mid-Atlantic United States. 
Management believes that the Company’s strategically designed network will enable it to take advantage of 
customer relationships, calling patterns and capture an increasing portion of customer traffic on its network. 

Employ arz Experienced Sales Force. Management believes that employing a direct sales force 
with extensive local market and telecomniunications sales experience enhances the Company’s success in a 
particular market. T h e  Company employs this strategy in building its sales force. Salespeople with 
experience in a particular market provide the Company with extensive knowledge of the Company’s target 
customer base and in many cases have existing relationships with target customers. 

Irnplem ant EfJicierz t Provisiori irtg Processes with State-o f-th e-A rt Buck Office Support. 
Management believes that a critical aspect of the success of a CLEC is timely and effective provisioning 
systems, which includes the process of transitioning new ILEC, ZXC or other CLEC customers to the 
Company’s network. The Company focuses on implementing effective and timely provisioning practices to 
efficiently transition customers from the ILEC, IXC or other CLECs to the Company with minimal 
disruption of the customer‘s operations. US LEC is approved by NeuStar, Inc. as a provider of Local 
Number Portability (“LNP”) for its customers. In addition, the US LEC NOC houses the tools to monitor 
its network. The NOC provides network surveillance, real-time alarm notification, dispatch services, and 
availability and notification 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. 

US LEC‘S NETWORK 

The US LEC network consists of 26 Lucent .5ESS@ AnyMediaTM digital switches, 26 Lucent 
CBXSOO ATM data switches, five Juniper Networks@ M20TM Internet Gateway routers and an Alcatel 
MegaHubB 600ES tandem switch. 
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Data transmissions from a US LEC customer are transported over leased lines to the US LEC switch 
and can then be transmitted directly on the Company’s network or transmitted to another carrier for 
termination. Data transmissions to a US LEC customer work in reverse. Internet access for US LEC 
customers is provided by transport over leased lines to the US LEC switch, transmitted over leased lines to 
one of US LEC’s Internet Gateways if necessary, and then to the Internet via Internet transit leased from 
other carriers. 

Voice calls originating with a US LEC customer are transported over leased lines to the US LEC 
switch and can either be terminated directly on the Company‘s network or routed to a long distance carrier, 
an ILEC or another CLEC, depending on the location of the call recipient. Similarly, voice calls originating 
from the public switched telephone network and destined for a US LEC customer are routed through the 
US LEC switch and delivered to call recipients via leased transmission facilities. 

In order to interconnect its switches to the network of the local incumbent phone company and to 
exchange traffic with it, the Company maintains interconnection agreements with the incumbent carriers. 
The Telecommunications Act of 1996 (the “Telecom Act”), decisions of state and federal regulatory bodies 
and negotiation affect the terms and conditions of the interconnection agreements with the carriers 
involved. The Company may voluntarily enter into such an agreement, petition a state regulatory 
commission to arbitrate issues that cannot be resolved by negotiation or opt into agreements executed by 
the incumbent and other competitive carriers. The Company has signed or opted into interconnection 
agreements with all of the incumbent local carriers where it offers services requiring such agreements, 
including BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. (“BellSouth”), Verizon Communications Inc. (“Verizon”) 
and Sprint Communications Company L.P. (“Sprint”). (See “Business - Forward Looking Statements and 
Risk Factors - Interconnection Agreements”) 

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 

The Company provides local dial-tone services to customers. Local access is available in many 
different forms including Primary Rate Interface (“PRI”), T-1 and channels. The Company’s network is 
designed to allow a customer to easily increase or decrease capacity and utilize enhanced services as the 
telecommunications requirements of the customer change. The Company also offers directory assistance 
and operator services. 

US LEC provides long distance services for completing intrastate, interstate and intemational calls. 
The Company also provides toll-free services, calling cards, audio conferencing and certain enhanced 
services such as voice mail. 

The Company also provides data products including frame relay, ATM service, digital private line 
and other services. 

In addition, US LEC provides Internet products including US LECnet (a direct, dedicated, high- 
speed connection to the Inteinet), Web hosting, dial-up access to the Internet, email, managed fuewalls and 
IP-VPN, news feeds and other services. 

The Company’s ability to bundle local, long distance, data and Intemet services on the same 
transport facility allows it to offer customers more efficient use of such facilities, and allows it to aggregate 
customers’ monthly recurring and usage charges on a single consolidated invoice. 

The Company offers the ADVANTAGE T, a single-rate, bundled product offering which allows 
customers to put local, long distance, dedicated high-speed Internet access, frame relay, ATM, digital 
private line and toll-free services all on a single T-1. Not only can customers choose between multiple 
products to be carried, but they can also allocate bandwidth dedicated to each product on the T-1. 
Management believes that this product allows US LEC to address a broader market. 
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During 2002, the Company continued to expand its voice, data and Internet product offerings, while 
minimizing the capital requirements associated with product expansions. The goal of these product 
expansions was to complete an already strong product set in order to complete customer communications 
solutions and add incremental revenue opportunities. As an exampIe, US LEC added “reservation-less” 
Audio Conferencing and various toll free features to its voice product set and Integrated Access Devices, as 
well as SLA Reporting and Managed Routers and Managed Firewall and IP-VPN to its data and Internet 
product sets. 

SALES AND MARKETING 

Sales. US LEC employs a well-trained and experienced direct sales force. The Company recruits 
salespeople with strong sales backgrounds in its markets, including salespeople from other 
telecommunications carriers, including long distance companies, CLECs and ILECs, Internet Service 
Providers, telecommunications equipment manufacturers, and network systems integrators. The Company 
plans to continue to attract and retain highly qualified salespeople by offering them an opportunity to work 
with an experienced management team in an entrepreneurial environment and to participate in the potential 
economic rewards made available though a results-oriented compensation program. In 2000, US LEC 
impIemented the Customer Account Manager (“CAM”) program in an effort to gain additional sales from 
current customers and to enhance the Conipany’s relationships with its customer base. The Company also 
utilizes independent sales agents to identify and maintain customers. During 2002, the Company continued 
to enhance its sales force by hiring additional quota-bearing and sales support staff, continuing education 
regarding the Company’s voice, data and Internet products and forming an overlay group to focus on large 
target customers and data sales. 

Mnrketiizg. In its existing markets, US LEC seeks to be the premier communications partner for 
businesses by delivering quality voice and data services and exceeding expectations for customer care. The 
Company builds its reputation and brand identity by working closely with its customers to develop services 
customized to their particular needs and by implementing targeted product offerings and promotional 
efforts. 

The Company primarily uses two trademarks and service marks: US LEC, and a logo that includes 
US LEC. These marks have been registered either on the Principal or the Supplemental Register of the 
United States Patent and Trademark Office for uses related to telecommunications products and services. 

Billing. The Company operates its billing function in-house, allowing the Company to realize cost 
savings and provide additional services to customers. Customer bills are available in a variety of forniats to 
meet a customer’s specific needs. US LEC offers customers simplicity and convenience by sending one bill 
for all services. The Company believes this is an important aspect of customer acquisition and retention. 

EMPLOYEES 

As of December 31, 2002, the Company employed 911 people. The Company does not expect 
significant changes in its staffing level in 2003. The Company considers its employee relations to be veTy 
good. 

REGULATION 

The following summary of regulatoiy developments and legislation does not purport to describe all 
present and proposed federal, state and local regulations and legislation affecting the telecommunications 
industry. Other existing federal and state legislation and regulations are currently the subject of judicia1 
proceedings and legislation, legislative hearings and administrative proposals which could change, in 
varying degrees, the manner in which this industry operates. Neither the outcome of these proceedings and 
legislation, nor their impact upon the telecommunications industry or the Company, can be predicted at this 
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time. This section also includes a brief description of regulatory and tariff issues pertaining to the operation 
of the Company. 

Overview. The Company's services are subject to varying degrees of federal, state and local 
regulation. The Federal Communications Commission (the "FCC") generally exercises jurisdiction over the 
facilities of, and services offered by, telecommunications common carriers that provide interstate or 
international communications. The state regulatory commissions ("PUCs") retain jurisdiction over the same 
facilities and services to the extent they are used to provide intrastate communications. 

Federal Legislation. The Company must comply with the requirements of common carriage under 
the Coinmunications Act of 1934, as amended (the Tommunications Act"). The Telecom Act, enacted on 
February 8, 1996, substantially revised the Communications Act. The Telecom Act establishes a regulatory 
framework for the introduction of local competition throughout the United States and was intended to 
reduce unnecessary regulation to the greatest extent possible. Among other things, the Telecom Act 
preempts, after notice and an opportunity for comment, any state or local govemment from prohibiting any 
entity from providing telecommunications service. 

The Telecom Act also establishes a dual federal-state regulatory scheme for eliminating other 
barriers to competition faced by competitors to the incumbent local exchange carriers and other new 
entrants into the local telephone market. Specifically, the Telecom Act imposes on ILECs certain 
iiiterconnection obligations, some of which are implemented by FCC regulations. The Telecom Act 
contemplates that state PUCs will apply the federal regulations and oversee the implementation of all 
aspects of interconnection not subject to FCC jurisdiction as they oversee interconnection negotiations 
between ILECs and their new competitors. 

The FCC has significant responsibility in the manner in which the Telecom Act will be implemented 
especially in the areas of pricing, universal service, access charges and price caps. The details of the rules 
adopted by the FCC will have a significant effect in determining the extent to which barriers to competition 
in local services are removed, as well as the time frame within which such barriers are eliminated. 

The PUCs also have significant responsibility for implementing the Telecom Act. Specifically, the 
states have authority to establish interconnection pricing, including unbundled loop charges, reciprocal 
compensation and wholesale pricing consistent with FCC regulations. The PUCs are also charged under the 
Telecom Act with overseeing the arbitration process for resolving interconnection negotiation disputes 
between CLECs and the ILECs, must approve negotiated or arbitrated interconnection agreements, and 
resolve contract compliance disputes arising from interconnection agreements. The U.S. Supreme Court 
appears to have assumed, without actually deciding that the PUCs have the ability to enforce 
interconnection agreements. 

The Company has historically eamed a significant portion of its revenue from the ILEC in the form 
of reciprocal compensation payments due to the Company. Several ILECs in the Company's territory 
(principally BellSouth and Verizon) have challenged the applicability of reciprocal compensation related to 
enhanced service providers and internet service provider ("ISP") customers who receive more calls than 
they make. With increasing frequency the ILECs with whom US LEC interconnects (principally BellSouth 
and Verizon) have been raising additional objections to their obligations to pay reciprocal compensation, 
including challenges to the rates at which such payments are calculated and the types of traffic to with the 
obligations apply (See "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations -- Disputed Revenues"). 

The obligations imposed on ILECs by the Telecom Act to promote competition, such as local 
number portability, dialing parity, reciprocal compensation arrangements and non-discriminatory access to 
telephone poles, ducts, conduits and rights-of-way also apply to CLECs, including the Company. As a 
result of the Telecom Act's applicability to other telecommunications carriers, it may provide the Company 
with the ability to reduce its own interconnection costs by interconnecting directly with non-ILECs, but 
may also cause the Company to incur additional administrative and regulatory expenses in responding to 
interconnection requests. At the same time, the Telecom Act aIso makes competitive entry into other 
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service or geographic markets more attractive to Regional Bell Operating Companies (“RBOCs”), other 
ILECs, long distance carriers and other companies and has increased and llkely will continue to increase 
the level of competition the Company faces. (See “Business -- Competition”). 

In addition, the Telecom Act provided that ILECs that are subsidiaries of RBOCs could not offer in- 
region, long distance services across local access transport areas (“LATAs”) until they had demonstrated 
that (i) they have entered into an approved interconnection agreement with a facilities-based CLEC or that 
no such CLEC has requested interconnection as of a statutorily determined deadline, (ii) they have satisfied 
a 14-element checklist designed to ensure that the ILEC is offering access and interconnection to all local 
exchange carriers on competitive terms and (iii) the FCC has determined that in-region, inter-LATA 
approval is consistent with the public interest, convenience and necessity. The FCC has approved Verizon’s 
right to provide interLATA service in Connecticut, Delaware, District of Columbia, Maryland, Maine, 
Massachusetts, New Hampshire, New Jersey, New York, Pennsylvania, %ode Island, Vermont, Virginia 
and West Virginia; BellSouth’s right to provide interLATA service in Alabama, Florida, Georgia, 
Kentucky, Louisiana, Mississippi, North Carolina, South Carolina and Tennessee; and SBC 
Communications, Inc. (“SBCs”) in Arkansas, California, Kansas, Missouri, Oklahoma and Texas. (See 
“Business - Forward Looking Statements and Risk Factors - Regulation” and “Business - Forward Looking 
Statements and Risk Factors--Competition”). 

Federal Regulation and Related Proceedings. The Telecom Act and the FCC’s efforts to initiate 
reform have resulted in numerous legal challenges. As a result, the regulatory framework in which the 
Company operates is subject to a great deal of uncertainty. Any changes that result from this uncertainty 
could have a material adverse effect on the Company. The FCC has adopted orders prohibiting the use of 
tariffs for non-dominant carriers providing international and domestic interstate long distance services. 
Accordingly, non-dominant interstate services providers and international service providers will no longer 
be able to rely on the filing of end user tariffs with the FCC as a means of providing notice to customers of 
prices, terms, and conditions under which they offer their international and domestic interstate inter- 
exchange services. The order does not apply to the switched and special access services of the RBOCs and 
other locaI exchange service providers. The FCC allows permissive detariffng of these services. 

The FCC also has proposed reducing the level of regulation that applies to the ILECs, and 
increasing their ability to respond quickly to competition from the Company and others. For example, in 
accordance with the Telecom Act, the FCC has applied %reamlined’l tariff regulation to the ILECs, which 
greatly accelerates the time prior to which changes to tariffed service rates may take effect, and has 
eliminated the requirement that ILECs obtain FCC authorization before constructing new domestic 
facilities. These actions will allow ILECs to change service rates more quickly in response to competition. 
Similarly, the FCC has afforded significant new pricing flexibility to ILECs subject to price cap regulation. 
On August 5, 1999, the FCC adopted an order granting price cap ILECs additional pricing flexibility. The 
order provides certain immediate regulatory relief regarding price cap ILECs and sets forth a framework of 
”triggers” to provide those conipanies with greater flexibility to set rates for interstate access services. On 
February 2, 2001, the D.C. Circuit upheld the FCC rules regarding pricing flexibility. To the extent such 
increased pricing flexibility is utilized for ILECs or such additional regulation is implemented, the 
Company’s ability to compete with ILECs for certain service could be adversely affected. The FCC has 
granted pricing flexibility applications for various interstate access services provided by RBOCs in a 
number of cities, including cities in BellSouth’s service territoiy, including in several of the Company’s 
markets. 

On August 8, 1996, the FCC issued an order containing rules providing guidance to the ILECs, 
CLECs, long distance companies and PUCs regarding several provisions of the Telecom Act. The rules 
include, among other things, FCC guidance on: (i) discounts for end-to-end resale of ILEC retail local 
exchange services (which the FCC suggested should be in the range of 17%-25%); (ii) availability of 
unbundled local loops and other unbundled ILEC network elements; (iii) the use of Total Element Long 
Run Incremental Costs in the pricing of these unbundled network elements; (iv) average default proxy 
prices for unbundled local loops in each state; (v) mutual compensation proxy rates for termination of 
ILEC/CLEC local calls; and (vi) the ability of CLECs and other service providers to opt into portions of 
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previously-approved interconnection agreements negotiated by the ILECs with other parties on a most 
favored nation (or a "pick and choose") basis. 

Various parties, including ILECs and state PUCs, requested that the FCC reconsider its own rules 
and/or filed appeals of the FCC's August 8, 1996 order. The U.S. Court of Appeals for the Eighth Circuit 
("8th Circuit") vacated certain portions of the decision. On January 25, 1999, US. Supreme Court reversed 
the 8th Circuit and upheld the FCC's authority to issue regulations governing pricing of unbundled network 
elements ("UNEs") provided by the ILECs in interconnection agreements (including regulations governing 
reciprocal compensation). In addition, the U.S. Supreme Court affmed the "pick and choose'' rules which 
allows carriers to choose individual portions of existing interconnection agreements with other carriers and 
to adopt only those portions of the interconnection agreement that they find most attractive. The U S .  
Supreme Court disagreed with the standard applied by the FCC for determining whether an ILEC should be 
required to provide a competitor with particular unbundled network elements. On remand, the FCC largely 
retained its list of unbundled elements, but eliminated the requirement that ILECs provide unbundled 
access to local switching for customers with four or more lines in the top 50 Metropolitan StatisticaI Areas, 
and the requirement to provide unbundled operator service and directory assistance. 

Additionally, on remand from the Supreme Court, the 8th Circuit rejected the FCC's forward- 
looking pricing methodology for use in establishing pricing for UNEs. On May 13, 2002, the U. s. 
Supreme Court issued an opinion reversing the 8* Circuit and upholding the FCC's forward looking pricing 
methodology for use in establishing pricing for unbundled network elements. The Supreme Court also 
upheld the FCC's authority to require ILECs who lease elements of their networks to bundle services for 
CLECs that are unable to bundle the services themselves. 

In December 2001, the FCC initiated a comprehensive evaluation of its rules governing the 
unbundling of network elements. On May 24, 2002, the United States Court of Appeals for the D.C. 
Circuit overturned two decisions of the FCC. First the court remanded to the FCC for further consideration 
its decision on UNEs, which required ILECs to lease numerous UNEs to CLECs. Second, the court 
vacated and remanded the FCC decision requiring ILECs to unbundle a portion of the spectrum of local 
copper loops so that data local exchange carriers can offer competitive advanced services such as DSL. 

The FCC consolidated the issues on UNEs remanded by the D.C. Circuit and its UNE review 
proceeding. On February 20, 2003, the FCC addressed the remand on UNEs and its comprehensive 
evaluation of UNEs. Since the FCC has yet to release its formal order on the issue or its underlying rules, 
the Company cannot assess what impact, if any, they will have on the Company's operations. 

On May 8, 1997, the FCC released an order establishing a significantly expanded federal universal 
service program which subsidized certain eligible services. For example, the FCC established new 
subsidies for services provided to qualifying schools and libraries with an annual cap of $2.25 billion and 
for services provided to rural health care providers with an annual cap of $400 million. The FCC also 
expanded the federa1 subsidies to low-income consumers and consumers in high-cost areas. Providers of 
interstate telecommunications service, such as the Company, as well as certain other entities, must pay for 
these programs. The Company's share of the schools, libraries and rural health care funds is based on its 
share of the total industry telecommunications service and certain defmed telecommunications end user 
revenues. The Company's share of all other federal subsidy funds is based on its share of the total interstate 
telecommunications service and certain defined telecommunications end user revenues. Although the 
Company has made its required contributions to the fund, the amount of the Company's contribution 
changes each quarter. As a result, the Conipany cannot predict the effect these regulations will have on the 
Company in the future. On December 13,2002, the FCC adopted a Report and Order modifying the current 
method of carrier contributions to the universal service fund. The revised revenue-based methodology will 
impose universal service contribution on the basis of projected, collected end user interstate revenues in 
lieu of historical revenues. This revised methodology is an interim one pending further rulemaking. The 
interim changes will not have a material effect on the Company. 

The FCC has made and is continuing to consider various reforms to the existing rate structure for 
charges assessed on long distance carriers for allowing them to connect to local networks. These reforms 
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are designed to move these “access charges,” over time, to lower, cost-based rate levels and structures. 
These changes will reduce access charges and will shift charges, which had historically been based on 
minutes-of-use, to flat-rate, monthly per line charges on end-user customers rather than long distance 
carriers. On May 3 1, 2000 the FCC adopted the proposal of the Coalition for Affordable Long Distance 
Service (“CALLS Order”) that significantly restructures and, reduces in some respects, the interstate access 
charges of the RBOCs, Verizon, AT&T, and Sprint. Among the more significant regulatory changes 
established by the CALLS Order, the RBOCs and Verizon are required to reduce switched access charges 
to an average of $0.0055/minute. Price cap ILECs are additionally required to eliminate the pre-subscribed 
inter-exchange carrier charge (“PICC”) as a separate charge and fold it into an increased subscriber line 
charge (“SLC”). AT&T and Sprint have committed in this proceeding to pass on access charge reductions 
to consumers, and to eliminate minimum monthly usage charges. Although the CALLS Order will not 
apply directly to CLECs, ILEC reductions in switched access charges will llkely place downward pressure 
on CLECs, including the Company, to reduce their own switched access charges either in the form of 
regulatory pressure or commercia1 pressure from the IXCs. A Petition for Reconsideration of the CALLS 
Order is currently before the FCC. The CALLS Order was appealed to the U S .  Court of Appeals for the 
District of Columbia. The CouI-t remanded the case to the FCC. 

On May 21, 2001, the FCC’s new rules governing CLEC interstate access charges became effective. 
The rules established an initial maximum rate of 2.5 cents per minute for interstate access charges for the 
first year. In the second year, the rate was reduced to 1.8 cents per minute. In the third year, the rate is 
further reduced to 1.2 cents per minute. At the end of the third year, the benchmark rate is reduced to the 
level of the ILEC. A CLEC may not file tariffs for above benchmark rates unless the ILEC in whose 
territory it operates charges a higher rate, in which case the CLEC may charge the higher ILEC rate or the 
rate it had tariffed in the previous six months, if lower than the ILEC’s rate. A CLEC may charge a rate 
higher than the benchmark if the IXC, through negotiations, agrees to such higher rate. 

In addition, the FCC only allowed a CLEC to charge the benchmark rates in those areas in which the 
CLEC was actually serving customers on May 2 1 , 2001, In new service areas, the CLEC may only tariff 
rates as high its the ILEC. Several petitions for reconsideration of the FCC’s order were filed with the 
FCC, as we11 as appeals to the U.S. Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit. The Court 
granted the FCC’s request to hold the appeals in abeyance until the FCC decides the motions for 
reconsideration. In addition, CLEC access charges are among the intercarrier Compensation issues 
addressed iii the FCC’s Notice of Proposed Rulemalung regarding a unified intercarrier compensation 
regime. 

In the same order, the FCC determined that an IXC’s refusal to serve customers of a CLEC that 
tariffs the FCC’s benchmark rates would generally violate the IXC’s duty as a common carrier to provide 
service. 

On February 26, 1999, the FCC issued a declaratory ruling and notice of proposed rulemaking 
concerning ISP traffic. The FCC concluded in its ruling that ISP traffic is jurisdictionally mixed, but largely 
interstate in nature. The FCC also determined that no federal rule existed that governed reciprocal 
compensation for ISP traffic at the time existing interconnection agreements were negotiated and concluded 
that it should permit PUCs to determine whether reciprocal compensation should be paid for calls to ISPs 
under existing interconnection agreements. Several parties appealed the FCC order. On March 24, 2000, 
the United States Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit vacated the FCC‘s February 26, 1999 declaratory 
ruling and remanded it to the FCC. The D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals found that the FCC failed to clearly 
explain and support why ISP traffic should be regulated as long distance traffic rather than as local traffic. 

On April 27, 2001, the FCC released its Order on Remand regarding intercarrier compensation for 
ISP-bound traffic. The FCC asserted exclusive jurisdiction over ISP-bound traffic and established a new 
interim intercarrier compensation regime for ISP-bound traffic with capped rates above a fixed traffic 
exchange ratio. Traffic in excess of a ratio of 3: I (terminating minutes to originating minutes) is presumed 
to be ISP-bound traffic, and is to be compensated at rates that decrease from $.0015 to $.0007 per minute, 
or the applicable state-approved rate if lower, over three years. Traffic below the 3:l threshold is to be 
compensated at the negotiated or PUC-approved rates in existing and future interconnection agreements. 
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Traffic above the 3:l ratio is also subject to a growth ceiling using first quarter 2001 traffic data as the 
baseline. Traffic in excess of the growth ceiling is subject to “bill and keep,” an arrangement in which the 
originating carrier pays no compensation to the terminating carrier to complete calls. In addition, when a 
competitive carrier begins to provide service in a state it has not previously served, all traffic in excess of 
the 3:l ratio is subject to bill-and-keep arrangements. In exchange for this reduction in reciprocal 
compensation obligations to CLECs, the ILECs must offer to exchange all traffic subject to Section 251 (b) 
( 5 )  of the TeIecommunications Act of 1996, as well as ISP-bound traffic, at the federal capped rates. It is 
not possible to estimate tlie full impact of the FCC Order at this time because tlie federal regime does not 
alter existing conkacts except to the extent that they incorporate changes of federal law, and because 
adoption of the federal regime is within the discretion of the ILEC exchanging traffic with CLECs on a 
state-by-state basis. In addition, the rules are the subject of petitions for reconsideration before the FCC. 
On May 3, 2002, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit found that the FCC had again failed to 
justify its stance on Section 2521(g) of the Telecom Act in adopting its new intercarrier compensation 
regime. The court remanded the case to the FCC for further explanation of its legal theory. In the interim, 
the court allowed the FCC’s compensation rules to stand. A petition for certiorari has been filed with the 
U.S. Supreme Court challenging the Court of Appeals’ failure to vacate the interim rules as part of the 
remand to the FCC. In the event an ILEC determines not to adopt the federal regime, the ILEC must pay 
the same rate for ISP bound traffic as for calls subject to reciprocal compensation. We cannot predict the 
impact of the FCC’s and the Court’s ruling on existing state decisions the outcome of pending appeals or 
future litigation on this issue. 

The FCC also requires carriers to file periodic reports concerning carrier’s interstate circuits and 
deployment of network facilities. The FCC generally does not exercise direct oversight over cost 
justification and the level of charges for services of non-dominant carriers, although it has the power to do 
so. The FCC also imposes prior approval requirements on transfers of control and assignments of operating 
authorizations. The FCC has the authority to generally condition, modify, cancel, terminate, or revoke 
operating authority for failure to comply with federal laws or rules, regulations and policies of the FCC. 
Fines or other penalties also may be imposed for such violations. Although the Company believes it is in 
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations, there can be no assurance that the FCC or third parties 
will not raise issues with regard to the Company’s compliance with such laws and regulations, 

The FCC has initiated rulemaking proceedings to consider whether advanced services offered by 
ILECs should be regulated as services offered by a dominant or nondominant carrier. If the service 
offerings are deemed nondominant, the ILEC will be subject to lessened regulation. In a related 
proceeding, the FCC is seeking to determine whether advanced services are information services and what 
regulations should apply, if that is the case. A finding that advanced services are information services, and 
not telephone services, could result in significantly lower levels of regulation. The Company cannot 
predict the outcome of these proceedings. 

In December 1996, the FCC initiated a Notice of Inqulry regarding whether to impose regulations or 
surcharges upon providers of Intemet access and information services (the “Internet NOI”). The Internet 
NO1 sought public comment upon whether to impose or continue to forebear from regulation of Internet 
and other packet-switched network service providers. The Internet NO1 specifically identifies Internet 
telephony as a subject for FCC consideration. On April 10, 1998, the FCC issued a Report to Congress on 
its implementation of the universal service provisions of the Telecom Act. In the Report, the FCC indicated 
that it would examine the question of whether certain forms of “phone-to-phone Internet Protocol 
telephony” are information services or telecommunications services. It noted that the FCC did not have an 
adequate record on which to make any definitive pronouncements on that issue at this time, but that the 
record the FCC had reviewed suggests that certain forms of phone-to-phone Internet Protocol telephony 
appear to have similar functionality to non-Intermet Protocol telecommunications services and lack the 
characteristics that would render them information services. If the FCC were to determine that certain 
Inteinet Protocol telephony services are subject to FCC regulations as telecommunications services, the 
FCC noted it may find it reasonable that the ISPs that provide those services pay access charges and make 
universal service contributions similar to non-Internet Protocol based teleconmunications service 
providers. The FCC also noted that other forms of Internet Protocol telephony appear to be infomation 
services. 

11 



On October 18, 2002, AT&T Coiporation (“AT&T”) filed a petition for declaratory ruling with the 
FCC with respect to phone-to-phone Internet Protocol telephony. The petition requested that the FCC 
affirm that such services are exempt from the access charges applicable to circuit switched inter-exchange 
calls and that it is lawful to provide such service through local end user services. Comments were filed 
with the FCC in response to the AT&T petition, and it is unclear when the FCC might rule on the question 
presented. The Company cannot predict the outcome of these proceedings or other FCC or state 
proceedings that may affect the Company’s operations or impose additional requirements, regulations or 
charges upon the Company’s provision of Internet access and related Internet Protocol-based telephony 
services. 

Slarnmirzg. The FCC and many state PUCs have implemented rules to prevent unauthorized 
changes in a customer’s pre-subscribed local and long distance carrier (a practice commonly known as 
“slamming.”) Pursuant to the FCC’s slamming rules, a carrier found to have slammed a customer is subject 
to substantial fines. In addition, the FCC’s slamming rules were revised effective November 2000 to 
include new provisions governing liability for slamming, and provisions allowing state PUCs to elect to 
administer and enforce the FCC’s slamming rules. These slamming liability rules substantially increase a 
carrier’s possible liability for unauthorized carrier changes, and may substantially increase a carrier’s 
administrative costs in connection with alleged unauthorized carrier changes (even if the carrier can 
provide valid proof that such changes were authorized). Although the Company cannot predict the effect 
that these new liability rules will have on its business, because virtually all of the Company’s customers are 
connected on a dedicated basis to US LEC’s network, it is unlikely that the Company will incur any 
significant liability under these new rules. 

The Communications Assistance for Law Enforcement Act (“CALEA”) provides rules to ensure that 
law enforcement agencies would be able to conduct properly authorized electronic surveillance of digital 
and wireless telecommunication services. CALEA requires telecommunications carriers to modify their 
equipment, facilities, and services used to provide telecommunications services to ensure that they are able 
to comply with authorized electronic surveillance requirements. For circuit-switched facilities, carriers 
were required to compIete these modifications by June 30, 2001. Carriers providing packet-switched 
services were required to comply by November 19, 2001. The deadline for carrier compliance with certain 
additional requirements has been extended by the FCC until June 30, 2002. US LEC’s network is CALEA 
compliant. 

StUte Regulation. The Company has all of the state certifications necessary to offer its current services 

To the extent that an area within a state in which the Company operates is served by a small (in h e  
counts) or rural ILEC not currently subject to competition, the Company generally does not have authority 
to service those areas at this time. Most states regulate entry into Iocal exchange and other intrastate 
service markets, and states’ regulation of CLECs vary in their regulatory intensity. The majority of states 
mandate that companies seeking to provide local exchange and other intrastate services apply for and 
obtain the requisite authorization from the PUC. This authorization process generally requires the carrier to 
demonstrate that it has sufficient financial, technical, and managerial capabilities and that granting the 
authorization will serve the public interest. 

As a CLEC, the Company is subject to the regulatory directives of each state in which the Company 
is certified. In addition to tariff filing requirements, most states require that CLECs charge just and 
reasonable rates and not discriminate among similarly situated customers. Some states also require the 
filing of periodic reports, the payment of various regulatory fees and surcharges, and compliance with 
service standards and consumer protection rules. States also often require prior approvals or notifications 
for certain transfers of assets, customers or ownership of a CLEC. States generally retain the right to 
sanction a carrier or to revoke certifications if a carrier violates reIevant laws and/or regulations. 

In all of the states where US LEC is certified, the Company is required to file tariffs or price lists 
setting forth the teims, conditions and/or prices for services which are classified as intrastate. In some 
states, the Company’s tariff may list a range of prices or a ceiling price for particular services, and in others, 
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such prices can be set on an individual customer basis, although the Company may be required to file tariff 
addenda of the contract terms. The Company is not subject to price cap or to rate of return regulation in any 
state in which it currently provides services. Some states where the Company operates have adopted 
detariffing rules. 

As noted above, the states have the primary regulatory role over intrastate services under the 
Telecom Act. The Telecom Act allows state regulatory authorities to continue to inipose competitively 
neutral and nondiscriminatory requirements designed to promote universal service, protect the public safety 
and welfare, maintain the quality of service and safeguard the rights of consumers. PUCs will implement 
and enforce most of the Telecom Act's local competition provisions, including those goveming the specific 
charges for local network interconnection. In some states, those charges are being determined by generic 
cost proceedings and in other states they are being established through arbitration proceedings. Depending 
on how such charges are ultimately determined, such charges could become a material expense to the 
Company. 

COMPETITION 

ILECs. In each market served by its networks, the Company faces, and expects to continue facing, 
significant competition from the ILECs, which currently dominate their local teleconmiunications markets 
as a result of their historic monopoly position. The ILECs have also recently entered the long distance 
markets in parts of their service areas. They also offer data and Internet services. 

The Company conipetes with the TLECs in its markets for local exchange services on the basis of 
product offerings, bundling, reliability, state-of-the-art technology, price, network design, ease of ordering 
and customer service. However, the ILECs have long-standing relationships with their customers and 
provide those customers with various transmission and switching services, a number of which the Company 
does not currently offer. In addition, ILECs enjoy a competitive advantage due to their vast financial 
resources. The Company has sought, and will continue to seek, to achieve parity with the ILECs in order to 
become able to provide a fuIl range of local telecommunications services. (See "Business -- Regulation" for 
additional information concerning the regulatory environment in which the Company operates.) Because 
US LEC leases fiber optic transmission capacity to link its customers with its networks and uses state-of- 
the-art technology in its switching platforms, the Company has demonstrated bundling, cost and service 
quality advantages over some ILEC networks currently available. 

IXCs. Interexchange carriers that provide Iong distance services and other telecommunications 
services offer or have the capability to offer switched local, long distance, data and Internet services. Some 
of these carriers have a much larger service footprint than the Company, 

Other CLECs. In every market where US LEC has a switching center, one or more other CLECs 
are also operating. In some cases, the Company competes head-to-head with other CLECs and in some 
cases the other CLECs seek to serve a different customer base. The Company competes with other CLECs 
in its markets on the basis of product offerings, bundling, reliability, state-of-the-art technology, price, 
network design, ease of ordering and customer service. Some of these carriers have entered bankruptcy 
and some of these are expected to exit bankruptcy in 2003. 

Internet Service Providers (ISPs). Throughout the Company's service area, various Internet 
service providers also operate. In some cases, the Company competes head-to-head with other ISPs and in 
some cases, the other ISPs seek to serve a different customer base. The Company competes with other 
ISPs in its markets on the basis of product offerings, bundling, reliability, state-of-the-art technology, price, 
network design, ease of ordering and customer service. Some of these carriers have entered bankruptcy and 
some of these are expected to exit bankruptcy in 2003. 

Other Competitors. The Company also faces, and expects to continue facing, competition from 
other potential conipetitors in certain markets in which the Company offers services. In addition to the 
ILECs, IXCs and other CLECs, potential competitors capable of offering switched local and long distance 
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services include long distance carriers, cable television conipanies, electric utilities, microwave carriers, 
wireless telephone system operators and private networks built by large end-users. Many of these potential 
competitors enjoy competitive advantages based upon existing relationships with subscribers, brand name 
recognition and vast financial resources. A continuing trend toward business combinations and alliances in 
the telecommunications industry may create significant new competitors to the Company. 

The Company believes that the Telecom Act, as well as a recent series of completed and proposed 
transactions between ILECs and long distance companies and cable companies, increase the likelihood that 
barriers to local exchange competition will be removed. The Telecom Act, as passed, conditioned the 
provision of in-region interLATA services by RBOCs upon a demonstration that the market in which an 
RBOC seeks to provide such services has been opened to competition. As ILECs that are RBOC 
subsidiaries are permitted to provide such services more widefy, they will be in a position to offer single- 
source service, representing a significant competitive challenge for the Company. ILECs that are not 
RBOC subsidiaries may offer single-source service presently. The Telecom Act's limitations on the 
provisioning of in-region interLATA services have been challenged by the RBOCs. The FCC has 
approved Verizon's and BellSouth's right to provide interLATA service in the state in which the Company 
operates (see "Business - Regulation"). 

The Company also competes with long distance carriers in the provisioning of long distance 
services. Although a few major competitors dominate the long distance and data market , hundreds of other 
companies also compete in the Tong distance and data marketplace. 

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS AND RISK FACTORS 

Except for historical statements and discussions, statements contained in this report constitute 
"forward looking statements'' within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as 
amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. In addition, the Company's 
Annual Report to Stockholders for the year ended December 31, 2002, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, 
Current Reports on Form 8-K and subsequently fiIed Annual Reports on Form IO-K, may include forward 
looking statements. Other written or oral statements which constitute forward looking statements have been 
made and may in the future be made by or on behalf of US LEC. These statements are identified by the use 
of forward-looking terminology such as "believes," "may," "will," "should," "estimates" or 
"anticipates" or the negative thereof or other variations thereon or comparable terminology, or by 
discussions of strategy that involve risks and uncertainties. These forward looking statements are based on 
a number of assumptions concerning future events, including the outcome of judicial and regulatory 
proceedings, the adoption of balanced and effective i d e s  and regulations by the FCC and PUCs, and US 
LEC's ability to successfully execute its strategy. These forward looking statements are also subject to a 
number of uncertainties and risks, many of which are outside of US LEC's control, that could cause actual 
results to differ materially from such Statements. These risks include, but are not limited to, the following: 

Dispiited Revenues. The deregulation of the telecommunications industry, the implementation of 
the Telecom Act, and the fmancial distress of many carriers in the wake of the downturn in the 
telecomnunications industry have embroiled numerous industry participants, including the Company, in 
lawsuits, proceedings and arbitrations before state regulatory commissions, private arbitration organizations 
such as the American Arbitration Association, and courts over many issues important to the financial and 
operational success of the Company. These issues include the interpretation and enforcement of 
interconnection agreements, the terms of interconnection agreements the Company may adopt, operating 
performance obligations, reciprocal compensation, access rates, the applicability of access rates to wireIess 
traffic, rates applicable to different categories of traffic, and the characterization of traffic for compensation 
purposes. The Company anticipates that it will continue to be involved in various lawsuits, arbitrations, 
and proceedings over these and other material issues (see "Management's Discussion and Analysis of 
Financial Condition and Results of Operation - Disputed Revenues"). The Company anticipates also that 
further legislative and regulatory rulemaking will occur-on the federal and state level-as the industry 
deregulates and as the Conipany enters new markets or offers new products. Rulings adverse to the 
Company, adverse legislation, or changes in govemmental policy on issues material to the Company could 
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have a inaterial adverse effect on the Company's financial condition or results of operations. 

Risks Associated with Strategy. The operation, construction, expansion and development of US 
LEC's operations depend on, among other things, the Company's ability to continue to (i) accurately assess 
potential new markets and products, (ii) identify, hire and retain qualified personnel, (iii) lease access to 
suitable fiber optic transmission facilities, (iv) install and operate switches and related equipment and (v) 
obtain any required government authorizations, all in a timely manner, at reasonable costs and on 
satisfactory terms and conditions. In addition, US LEC has experienced rapid growth since its inception, 
and management believes that sustained growth will place a strain on operational, human and financial 
resources. The Company's ability to manage its operations and expansion effectively depends on the 
continued development of plans, systems and controls for its operational, financial and management needs. 
There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to satisfy these requirements or otherwise manage 
its operations and growth effectively. The failure of US LEC to satisfy these requirements could have a 
material adverse effect on the Company's financial condition and its ability to fully implement its operating 
plans. 

The Company's growth strategy also involves the following risks: 

Qzialijied Personnel. A critical component for US LEC's success is hiring and retaining additional 
qualified managerial, sales and technical personnel. Since its inception, the Company has experienced 
significant competition in hiring and retaining personnel possessing necessary skills and 
telecommunications experience. Although management believes the Company has been successful in hiring 
and retaining qualified personnel, there can be no assurance that US LEC will be abIe to do so in the future. 

Switches and Related Equipment. An essential element of the Company's current strategy is the 
provision of switched voice and data services. There can be no assurance that the switches and associated 
equipment necessary to operate the Company's network will not experience technological or operational 
problems that cannot be resolved in a satisfactory or timely matter. The failure of the Company to operate 
successfully switches and other network equipment could have a material adverse effect on the Company's 
financial condition and its abiIity to attract and retain customers or to enter additional markets. 

Intercoiznectiun Agreements. The Company has agreements for the interconnection of its networks 
with the networks of the ILECs covering each market in which US LEC has a switching platform. US LEC 
may be required to negotiate new interconnection agreements as it enters new markets in the future. In 
addition, as its existing interconnection agreements expire, the Company will be required to negotiate 
extension or replacement agreements. There can be no assurance that the Company will successfully 
negotiate such additional agreements for interconnection with the ILECs or renewals of existing 
interconnection agreements on terms and conditions acceptable to the Company. The Company has signed 
interconnection agreements with various ILECs, including BellSouth, Sprint, Venzon and other carriers. These 
agreements provide the framework for the Company to serve its customers when other local carriers are 
involved.. 

Ordering, Provisioning and Billing. The Company has developed processes and procedures and is 
working with external vendors, including the ILECs, in the implementation of customer orders for services, 
the provisioning, installation and delivery of such services and monthly billing for those services. The 
failure to effectively manage processes and systems for these service elements or the failure of the 
Company's current vendors or the ILECs to deliver ordering, provisioning and billing services on a timely 
and accurate basis could have a material adverse effect upon the Company's ability to fully execute its 
strategy. 

Products mid Services. The Conipany currently offers local, long distance, data, Internet and other 
telecommunications services. In order to address the needs of its target customers, the Company will be 
required to emphasize and develop additional products and services. No assurance can be given that the 
Company will be able to continue to provide the range of teleconmunication services that its target 
customers need or desire. 
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Acquisitions. US LEC may acquire other businesses as a means of growing its customer base, 
expanding into new markets or developing new services. The Company is unable to predict whether or 
when any prospective acquisitions will occur or the likelihood of a material transaction being completed on 
favorable terms and conditions. Such transactions would involve certain risks including, but not limited to, 
(i) difficulties assimilating acquired operations and personnel; (ii) potential disruptions of the Company's 
ongoing business; (iii) the diversion of resources and management time; (iv) the possibility that uniform 
standards, controls, procedures and policies may not be maintained; (v) risks associated with entering new 
markets in which the Company has little or no experience; and (vi) the potential impairment of 
relationships with employees or customers as a result of changes in management. If an acquisition were to 
be made, there can be no assurance that the Company would be able to obtain the fmancing to consummate 
any such acquisition on terms satisfactory to it or that the acquired business would perform as expected. 

Dependence on Key Persunnef. The Company's business is managed by a small nuniber of 
executive officers, most notably, Aaron D. Cowell, Jr., Chief Executive Officer and President, and Michael 
K. Robinson, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. The loss of the services of one or more 
of these key people could materially and adversely affect US LEC's business and its prospects. The 
Company does not maintain key man life insurance on any of its officers. The competition for qualified 
managers in the telecommunications industry is intense. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that US 
LEC will be able to hire and retain necessary personnel in the future to replace any of its key executive 
officers, if any of them were to leave US LEC or be otherwise unable to provide services to US LEC. 

Reliance on Leased Capacity. A key element of US LEC's business and growth strategy is leasing 
fiber optic transmission capacity instead of constructing its own transport facilities. In implementing this 
strategy, the Company relies upon its ability to lease capacity from CAPs, other CLECs and ILECs 
operating in its markets. In order for this strategy to be successful, the Company must be able to negotiate 
and renew satisfactory agreements with its fiber optic network providers, and the providers must process 
provisioning requests on a timely basis, maintain their networks in good working order and provide 
adequate capacity at competitive prices. Although US LEC enters into agreements with its network 
providers that are intended to ensure access to adequate capacity and timely processing of provisioning 
requests and although US LEC's interconnection agreements with ILECs generally provide that the 
Company's connection and maintenance orders will receive attention at parity with the ILECs and other 
CLECs and that adequate capacity will be provided, there can be no assurance that the ILECs and other 
network providers will comply with their contractual (and, in the case of the ILECs, legally required) 
network provisioning obligations, OT that the provisioning process will be completed for the Company's 
customers on a timely and otherwise satisfactory basis. Furthermore, there can be no assurance that the 
rates to be charged to US LEC under future interconnection agreements or lease agreements with other 
providers will allow the Company to offer usage rates low enough to attract a sufficient number of 
customers and operate its networks at satisfactory margins. 

Competition. The telecommunications industry is highly competitive. In each of the Company's 
existing and target markets, the Company competes and will continue to compete principally with the 
ILECs serving that area. ILECs are established providers of local telephone and exchange access services 
to all or virtually all telephone subscribers within their respective service areas. ILECs also have greater 
financial and personnel resources, brand name recoglition and long-standing relationships with customers 
and with regulatory authorities at the federal and state levels and with most long distance carriers. Now that 
the RBOC subsidiaries in most states in which the Company operates are authorized to provide in-region 
long distance services, there can be no assurance that there will not be increased competition from those 
ILECs. 

The Company also faces, and expects to continue to face, competition from other current and 
potential market entrants, including long distance carriers seeking to enter, reenter or expand entry into the 
Iocal exchange marketplace, and from other CLECs, CAPs, cable television companies, electric utilities, 
microwave carriers, wireless telephone system operators and private networks built by large end-users. In 
addition, the possibility of combinations and strategic alliances in the teTeconmunications industry could 
give rise to significant new competitors. Many of these current and potential competitors have financial, 
personnel and other resources, including brand name recognition, substantially greater than those of the 
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Company, as well as other competitive advantages over the Company. In addition, some competitors are 
now emerging from the protection of Chapter 11 with dramatically altered financial structures that could 
give those entities the ability to offer more competitive rates than the Company. 

The Company also competes with long distance carriers in the provisioning of long distance 
services. Although a few major competitors dominate the long distance and data market, hundreds of other 
companies also compete in the long distance and data marketplace. 

In addition, the regulatory environment in which the Company operates is undergoing significant 
change. As this regulatory environment evolves, changes may occw which could create greater or unique 
competitive advantages for all or some of the Company's current or potential competitors, or could make it 
easier for additional parties to provide services. (See "Business -- Competition"). 

At December 31, 2002, the Company was providing services to over 10,000 customers. A key 
element of the Company's future success will depend on its ability to retain these customers and minimize 
loss of revenue associated with customer or product chum. While the Company has historically achieved 
significant success in retaining customers, competition in the Company's marketplace is intense and the 
Company anticipates that other carriers will seek to persuade the Company's customers to switch service 
provided for some or all of their products. 

Regulation. Although passage of the Telecom Act has resulted in increased opportunities for 
companies that are competing with the ILECs, no assurance can be given that changes in current or future 
regulations adopted by the FCC or state regulators or other legislative or judicial initiatives relating to the 
telecommunications industry would not have a material adverse effect on the Company. In addition, 
although the Telecom Act, as passed, conditioned RBOCs' provisioning of in-region long distance service 
on a showing that the local market has been opened to competition, in the event a IiBOC has satisfied these 
conditions, it could (i) remove the incentive RBOCs presently have to cooperate with companies like US 
LEC to foster competition within their service areas so that they can qualify to offer in-region long distance 
by allowing RBOCs to offer such services immediately and (ii) give the RBOCs the ability to offer "one- 
stop shopping" for both long distance and local service. Since the RBOC subsidiary in almost every state in 
which the Company operates has been authorized to provide in-region long distance services, there can be 
no assurances that those RBOC subsidiaries will continue to cooperate willingly with the Company in the 
provision of services. 

In addition to the specific conceiiis regarding the RBOCs ability to provide in-region long distance, 
the regulatory environment facing the Company is subject to numerous uncertainties. The FCC and PUC 
orders that were designed to implement the Telecom Act have been challenged in numerous proceedings. 
As a result, the Company must attempt to execute its business strategy without knowing the rules that will 
govern its operations and its dealings with other telecommunications companies, including the rates and 
terms under which it may charge other carriers for reciprocal compensation and other access charges. Even 
though a number of the past regulatory efforts by the FCC and PUCs are or have been challenged, the 
Company expects hrther rule making from the FCC and PUCs. The outcome of these challenges and the 
nature and scope of future rule making are unknown. In particular, the Company anticipates further efforts 
by other carriers, primarily ILECs and IXCs, at the FCC, PUCs and in legislative initiatives to seek to cap, 
reduce and/or eliminate reciprocal compensation and to cap or significantly reduce other access charges. 
Tlie Company cannot predict the degree to which the ILECs and IXCs will be successful in such efforts, or, 
if they are, when such additional changes will take effect. If such changes result in a significant decrease in 
the rates which the Company may charge other carriers for reciprocal compensation and access or if such 
changes are retroactive, such changes could have a material adverse effect on the Company. 

As the regulatory environment changes, it is possible that the Company's strategy and its execution 
of the strategy may not be the optimal choice. Any such changes could also result in additional, 
unanticipated expenses. There can be no assurances that regulatory change will not have a material and 
adverse effect on the Company. (See "Business -- Regulation") 
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Legal Proceedings. The Company is currently involved in arbitral, administrative and judicial 
proceedings and appeals thereof to collect amounts owed to the Company by other carriers. US LEC filed a 
Petition for Declaratory Ruling with the FCC requesting that the FCC reaffirm its prior positions that 
access charges can be collected by local exchange carriers in connection with calls originating or 
terminating on the networks of wireless carriers. A nuniber of different carriers have filed comments in 
support of, and in opposition to, US LEC's petition. In addition ITC*DeltaCom Conmiunications, Inc. 
(''ITC") has filed a lawsuit against the Company alleging that in an effort to collect access charges from 
ITC for originating wireless traffic destined for ITCs toll-free customer, US LEC blocked certain signaling 
data for calls originated on the networks of US LEC's wireless carrier customers that would allow the call 
to be identified as a wireless call. ITC's lawsuit alleges claims based on a number of different legal 
theories. US LEC, through counsel, has investigated ITC's allegations, and has discovered no evidence to 
support ITC's claims. US LEC has denied ITC's allegation and asserted a counterclaim against ITC to 
recover outstanding access charges owed by ITC. The Company anticipates dispositive motions will be 
filed shortly as the Company seeks early resolution of the case. In addition to the lawsuit filed in federal 
court, ITC also filed an Informal Complaint at the FCC challenging US LEC's right to recover access 
charges on calls originating from wireless carriers, The informal complaint was closed without the FCC 
taking any action. The Company also received a separate request for information from the Enforcement 
Bureau of the FCC concerning the Company's billing for wireless traffic and its methods of billing. The 
Company intends to respond to the FCC's requests. Further, the Company will discuss with the FCC its 
belief that no additional proceedings are warranted by the agency beyond those already pending on the 
issue of terminating calls originating on the networks of wireless carriers, including the proceeding 
commenced by US LEC requesting guidance to the industry on the issue. If the FCC does not reaffirm its 
prior guidance, the inability of US LEC to recover access charges from IXCs for traffic originating on tlie 
networks of wireless carrier customers could have a material negative impact on US LEC's results of 
operations. 

The Company cannot predict when these matters will be formally resolved and, although 
Management anticipates that these pending actions and appeals will be resolved favorably, no assurance 
can be given that the Company will be ultimately successful in these actions or the appeals thereof or that 
the Company will collect all amounts that it believes to be due it from these other carriers, or that if it does 
collect some or all of the award due to it, when payment of the awards will be received or whether the FCC 
will reaffirm its prior guidance on the applicability of access charges to wireless traffic (see 
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations -- Disputed 
Revenues"). 

Fufure Capital and Operating Requirements. Implementation of the Company's business strategy 
will require significant capital and operating expenditures during 2003 and h tu re  years. The Company's 
principal capital expenditures relate to the expansion of its switching platform, related infrastructure and 
facilities. Management expects to satisfy its capital and operating requirements primarily with current cash 
balances and cash flow from operations, although there can be no assurance that the actual expenditures 
required to implement the Company's business strategy will not exceed amounts available from these 
sources. In addition, the actual amount and timing of the Company's future expenditures may differ 
materially from the Company's estimates as a result of, among other things, the number of its customers 
and the services for which they subscribe and regulatory, technological and competitive developments in 
the Company's industry. Due to the uncertainty of these factors, actual revenues and costs may vary from 
expected amounts, possibly to a material degree, and such variations are likely to affect the implementation 
of the Conipany's business strategy. 

The Company also will continue to evaluate revenue opportumties in existing and other markets as 
well as potential acquisitions. The Company expects to obtain the capital required to pursue expansion and 
acquisition opportunities from current cash balances, the sale of additional equity or debt securities or cash 
generated from operations. In light of the risk factors discussed herein, there can be no assurance, however, 
that the Company will be successful in raising sufficient additional capita1 on acceptable terms or that the 
Company's operations will produce sufficient positive cash flow to pursue such opportunities should they 
arise. Failure to raise and generate sufficient funds, or unanticipated increases in capital requirements may 
require tlie Company to delay or curtail its expansion plans, which could have a material adverse effect on 



the Company’s growth and its ability to compete in the telecommunications services industry. (See 
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Liquidity and 
Capital Resources”.) 

Executive Officers of the Registrant 

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the executive officers of US LEC COT: 

Name Aee Position 

Richard T. Aab 54 Chairman of the Board and Director 

Aaron D. Cowell, Jr. 40 President, Chief Executive Officer and Director 

Michael K. Robinson 46 Chief Financial Officer and Executive Vice President 

Richard T. Aab co-founded US LEC in June 1996 and has served as chairman of the board of 
directors since that time. He also served as chief executive officer from June 1996 until July 1999. 
Between 1982 and 1997, Mr. Aab co-founded ACC Corp., an international telecommunications company in 
Rochester, NY, and held various positions including chairman and chief executive officer, and served as a 
director. 

Aaron D. Cowell, Jr. joined US LEC in June 1998 as executive vice president and general 
counsel. Later that year, he assumed responsibility for US LEC‘s sales and field sales support functions. In 
1999, his executive management duties were expanded to include US LEC’s engineering, operations, 
regulatoiy, customer care services and marketing departments. He was appointed as president and chief 
operating officer of US LEC in 2000. In October 2002, Mr. Cowell was also named chief executive officer 
and was elected to the board of directors. He also holds a position on the Executive Committee for ALTS 
(The Association for Local Telecommunications Services), through which he helps promote regulations 
and decisions that will facilitate fair competition in the telecommunications industry. Before joining US 
LEC in 1998, Mr. Cowell spent 11 years with Moore & Van Allen PLLC, a large Southeastern law firm, 
where he represented, among others, US LEC and Akatel, primarily in corporate finance and merger and 
acquisition matters. Mr. Cowell is a graduate of Harvard Law School and Duke University. 

Michael K. Robinson has been US LEC’s executive vice president of finance and chief financial 
officer since July 1998. His responsibilities include financial controls, treasury, taxation, human resources, 
information systems, billing, facilities management and investor relations. Prior to joining US LEC, Mr. 
Robinson spent 10 years in various management positions with the telecommunications division of Alcatel. 
From 1996 to July 1998, Mr. Robinson was executive vice president and chief financial officer of Alcatel 
Data Networks, a developer and manufacturer of wide area network data switching equipment for carrier 
and enterprise solutions. Mr. Robinson was also responsible for the worldwide financial operations of the 
enterprise and data networking division of Alcatel. From 1989 to 1995, Mr. Robinson was vice president 
and chief financial officer of Alcatel Network Systems. Prior to joining Alcatel, Mr. Robinson held various 
management positions with Windward International and Siecor Corp. Mr. Robinson holds a masters 
degree in business administration from Wake Forest University. 
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES 

The Company's corporate headquarters are located at its principal office at Morrocroft 111, 6801 
Morrison Blvd., Charlotte, NC 282 11. Tlie Company leases all of its administrative and saIes offices and 
its switch sites. The various leases expire during years through 2016. Most of these leases have renewal 
options. Additional office space and switch sites will be leased or otherwise acquired as the Company's 
operations and networks are expanded and as new networks are constructed. 

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

US LEC is not currently a party to any material legal proceedings, other than proceedings, 
arbitrations, and any appeals thereof, related to reciprocal compensation, intercarrier access, wireless traffic 
and other amounts due from other carriers. For a description of these proceedings and developments that 
have occurred during the year ended December 31, 2002, see Note 6 to the consolidated financial 
statements appearing elsewhere in this report. 

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITIES HOLDER MATTERS 

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the quarter ended December 3 1,2002. 
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PART I1 

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT’S COMMON STOCK AND RELATED 
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS 

The Company’s Class A common stock trades on The Nasdaq SmallCap Market under the symbol CLEC. As 
of March 2 1, 2003, US LEC Corp. had approximately 4,668 beneficial holders of its Class A common stock,. of 
that total, 155 were stockholders of record. To date, the Company has not paid cash dividends on its common 
stock. The Company currently intends to retain earnings to support operations and finance expansion and 
therefore does not anticipate paying cash dividends in the foreseeable future. In addition, the Company’s senior 
credit facility, subordinated notes and the preferred stock agreements contain certain limitations on the payment 
of dividends. 

The following table sets forth the high and low closing pnce information as reported by Nasdaq during the 
periods indicated since the Company’s Class A Common Stock began trading publicly on April 24, 1998. 

Stock Price 

200 1 
FI rs t Quarter 
Second Quarter 
Third Quarter 
Fourth Quarter 

2002 
First Quarter 
Second Quarter 
Third Quarter 
Fourth Quarter 

Hi gh 
$9.06 
$6.50 
$4.01 
$6.75 

High 
$5.90 
$3.50 
$3.75 
$2.69 

Low 
$4.69 
$2.28 
$2.32 
$2.73 

Low 
$3.10 
$2.12 
$1.56 
$1.60 

On December 31, 2002, the Company issued $5 million of subordinated notes and warrants to purchase 
shares of the Company’s Class A common stock to a group of accredited investors that included the 
Company’s founders, Richard T. Aab and Tansukh V. Ganatra. Mr. Aab currently serves as chairman of 
the Company and Mr. Ganatra is a director. Neither the notes, the warrants nor the shares of Class A 
common stock underlying the warrants were registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the 
“Securities Act”). These securities were offered and sold in reIiance upon the exemption from registration 
provided by Section 4(2) of the Securities Act for transactions not involving any public offering. The 
Company’s reliance upon this exemption was based upon the accredited status of the investors and the lack 
of any general solicitation in the offering. 
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ITEM 6 .  SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 
For the years ended December 3 1 ,  1998, 1999, 2000, 2001, and 2002 

(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data and Operating Data, as noted below) 

Statement of Oper at 1 ons: 
Revenue, Net 
Network Expenses 
Selling, General and Administrative 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Provision for Doubtful Accounts related to WorldConP 
Loss on Resolution of Disputed Revenue* 
Provision (Recovery) for Disputed Receivables* 
Earnings (Loss) from Operations 
Interest In come (Expense), Net 
Earnings (Loss) before Income Taxes 
Income Taxes Provision (Benefit) 
Net Earnings (Loss) 
Less: Dividends on Preferred Stock 
Less: Accretion of Preferred Stock Issuance Cost 
Net Earnings (Loss) Attributable to Conunon Stockholders 

Net Earnings (Loss) Per Share-Basic 
Net Earnings (Loss) Per Share-Diluted 
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding-Basic 
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding-Diluted 

Other Financial Data: 
Capital Expenditures 
Net Cash Flow Used in Operating Activities 
Net Cash Flow Used in Investing Activities 
Net Cash Flow Provided (Used) in Financing Activities 

Operating Data: 
Number of States Served (including Washington, DC) 
Number of Locai Switches 
Number of Customers 
Number of Einployees 
Number of Sales and Sales Support Eniployees 

Balance Sheet Data: 
Working Capital 
Accounts Receivable, Net 
Current Assets 
Property and Equipment, Net 
Total Assets 
Long-Term Debt (including current portion) 
Series A Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock 
Total Stockholders' Equity (Deficiency) 

1998 

84,716 $ 
33,646 
25,020 

4,94 1 

- 

21,109 
1,623 

22,732 
9,305 

13,427 

13,427 $ 

0.53 $ 
0 5 2  $ 

25,295 
25,804 

47,292 $ 
(1  9,143) 
(4 8,5 3 8) 
106,457 

4 
11  

558 
253 

98 

76,215 $ 
66,214 

112,184 
56,219 

170,203 
20,000 

1 12,975 

1999 

175,180 $ 

- 

73,613 
48,375 
11,720 

4 1,472 

3 9,426 
15,617 
23,809 

(2,046) 

23,809 $ 

0.87 $ 
0.84 $ 

27,43 1 
28,411 

57,396 $ 
(2 5,93 5) 
(49,69 6) 
48,840 

7 
16 

1,946 
460 
180 

113,109 $ 
193,943 
2 13,269 
102,002 
320,100 

72,000 

138,870 

2000 200 1 

114,964 $ 
52,684 
80,684 
24,365 

55,345 
40,000 

(138,I 14) 

(141,119) 
(23,727) 

( 1  17,392) 
8,758 

336 
(126,486) $ 

(4.58) $ 
(4.58) $ 

(3,005) 

27,618 
27,618 

109,740 $ 
(49,3 19) 

(1 1 1,743) 
25 1,709 

12 
23 

3,929 
8 I6 
330 

112,402 $ 
61,165 

160,782 
188,052 
373,159 
130,000 
202,854 
(22,250) 

178,602 $ 
90,298 

114,898 
35,103 

(7,042) 

(8,499) 
(54,655) 

(63,3 54) 

(63,3 54) 
12,810 

49 1 
(76,655) $ 

(2.83) $ 
(2.83) $ 

27,108 
27,108 

40,425 $ 

(5997 1)  
(40,425) 
2 1,077 

13 
26 

6,823 
8 92 
3 65 

59,972 $ 
42,972 

135,644 
188,436 
333,3 13 
150,000 
2 16,155 
(97,3 25) 

2002 - 

250,363 
121,127 
1 12,878 
45,062 

9,500 

(3 8,204) 
(7,688) 
(45,89 2) 

(4 5,892) 
13,596 

52 1 
(60,009) 

(2.26) 
(2.26) 

26,546 
26,546 

32,029 
(5,645) 

(3 1,809) 
(17,333) 

14 
26 

10,290 
91 I 
3 67 

26,620 
57,989 
96,030 

178,s 10 
285,3 I4 
130,617 
230,272 

(153,991) 

*See Note 6 of the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended December 3 1,  2002. Normal and recurring 
provisions for doubtful accounts are included in Selling, General and Administrative Expenses for all periods presented. 



ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION 
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS. 

Except for the historical information contained herein, this report contains forward-looking 
statenzen is, subject to uncertainties and risks, iiicluding the demand for US LEC‘s services, the ability of the 
Company to introduce additional products, the ability of the Company to successfully attract and retain 
p el-som el, competition in existing and p o ten tial ndditiona I markets, uncertain ties regarding its dealings 
with IL E Cs and of her te leco i n  mun ica t io izs carriers and f a  c 11 it ies providers, r egii la tovy uncertain ties, f he 
possibility of adverse decisions related to reciprocal cornperisation and access charges owing to the 
Company, as well as the Company‘s ability to begin operations in additional markets. These and other 
applicable risks are summarized in the “Forwar.d-Looking Statements and Risk Factors” section a id  
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form / O X ,  and in other reports, wlzicli are on file with the Securities 
and Exchange Coinnz ission. 

The following discussion arid analysis should be rend in conjunction with the “Selected 
Consolidated Financial Data ’ I  on page 22 of this report and the Company’s consolidated finaizcial 
statements and related notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this report. 

Company Overview 

US LEC Corp. (“US LEC” or the “Company) is a Charlotte, NC-based telecommunications carrier 
providing voice, data and Intemet services to over 10,000 mid-to-large-sized business customers 
throughout the southeastern and mid-Atlantic United States. As of December 31, 2002, the US LEC 
network consisted of 26 Lucent 5ESS8 AnyMediaTM digital switches, 26 Lucent CBXSOO Asynchronous 
Transfer Mode ATM data switches, five Juniper Networks@ M20TM Internet Gateway routers and an 
Alcatel MegaHubB 600ES tandem switch. The US LEC local service area includes Alabama, Florida, 
Georgia, Kentucky, Louisiana, Maryland, Mississippi, New Jersey, North Carolina, Pennsylvania, South 
Carolina, Tennessee, Virginia and the District of Columbia. US LEC also offers selected voice services in 
Arkansas, California, Connecticut, Indiana, Massachusetts, Montana, Nevada, New York, Ohio, Texas and 
Wisconsin, in addition to providing data services in these and other states. The Company primarily serves 
telecommunications-intensive business customers including the automotive, construction, education, 
financial, government, healthcare, hospitality, Intemet service providers, other telecommunication carriers, 
professional/legal, real estate, retail and transportation sectors. 

US LEC’s revenue is comprised of two primary components: (1) fees paid by end customers for 
local, long distance, data and Internet services, and (2) carrier charges primarily including access and 
reciprocal compensation. End customer revenue includes local, long distance, data and Intemet services 
and is comprised of monthly recurring charges, usage charges, and initial non-recurring charges. Monthly 
recurring charges include the fees paid by customers for facilities in service and additional features on 
those facilities. Usage charges consist of usage-sensitive fees paid for calls made. Initial non-recurring 
charges consist primarily of installation charges. Access charges are comprised of charges paid primarily 
by inter-exchange carriers (“IXCs”) for the origination and termination of inter-exchange toll and toll-free 
calls and reciprocal compensation. The Company does not resell any incumbent local exchange carrier 
(“ILEC”) dial tone services. Reciprocal compensation arises when a local exchange carrier completes a 
call that originated on another locaI exchange carrier’s network. Reciprocal compensation rates are fixed by 
an interconnection agreement executed between those carriers or mandated by the FCC. The following 
table provides a breakdown of the two primary components of net revenue: 

2002 2001 2000 

End Customer Revenue 59% 53% 47% 
Carrier Charges Including Access and Reciprocal Compensation 41% 47% 53% 

US LEC was founded to establish a company that would provide a wide array of 
telecommunications services to its customers. US LEC has deployed a significant regional network, and as 
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of December 2002 has active switches in 26 sites, serving over 10,000 medium to large size business 
customers. Management believes this customer base, achieved in less than six years, is indicative of the 
market’s acceptance of US LEC’s strategy and service offerings. Management expects the Company’s end 
customer revenue to continue to increase and carrier access revenue to continue to decrease as percentages 
of total revenue in future periods. This results from US LEC continuing to expand its customer base, and 
as carrier access rates decline due primariIy from rate reductions in new agreements entered into by the 
Company with ILECs and IXCs and to regulatory and legislative actions. 

In order to interconnect its switches to the network of the local incumbent phone company and to 
exchange traffic with it, the Company executes interconnection agreements with the incumbent carriers. 
The terms and conditions of the interconnection agreements are effected by the Telecom Act, decisions of 
state and federal regulatory bodies and negotiations with the carriers involved. The Company may 
voluntarily enter into such an agreement, petition a state regulatory commission to arbitrate issues that can 
not be resolved by negotiation or opt into agreements executed by the incumbent and other competitive 
carriers. The Company has signed or opted into interconnection agreements with all of the incumbent local 
carriers where it offers services requiring such agreements (See “Business -- Forward Looking Statements 
and Risk Factors - Interconnection Agreements, and -Disputed Revenues”). 

Results of Operations 

Comparison of Year EndedDecernber 31, 2002 to Year Ended December 31, 2001 

Net revenue increased to $250.4 million for the year elided December 31, 2002, from $178.6 
million in 2001. The significant increase in revenue resulted from an increase in the total number of 
customers in existing markets and an increase in telecommunications traffic on the Company’s network. In 
2002, the Company’s end customer revenue increased to $148.9 million, or 59% of total revenue from 
$93.8 milhon, or 53% of total revenue in 2001. End customer revenue is generated from local, long 
distance and data services. 

The Company recorded a significant charge relating to disputed receivables in the fourth quarter of 2000. 
The $52.0 million provision is netted on the Company’s consolidated statement of operations against a 
$12.0 million reduction in commissions payable on those receivables, resulting in the $40.0 million 
provision on the Company’s consolidated statement of operations. Management believed that this charge 
was necessary due to the uncertainty related to current regulatory proceedings related to reciprocal 
compensation and other access charges and the continued refusal by ILECs, principally BellSouth, to pay 
amounts believed by the Company to be owed to it under applicable interconnection agreements and due to 
Sprint’s failure to pay US LEC’s access charges. The Company resolved its disputes with both BellSouth 
and Sprint during 2001. Included in the 2001 consolidated statements of operations is an amount 
approximating $7.0 million, representing a net recovery of amounts previously recorded as reserves for 
disputed receivables and certain other related accruals (see Disputed Revenue below). 

Network expenses are comprised primarily of leased transport, facility installation, and usage 
charges. Network expenses increased to $121.1 million, or 48% of net revenue for 2002 from $90.3 
million, or 50% of net revenue, for 2001. This increase in network expenses was primarily a result of the 
increase in the size of US LEC’s network, an increase in customers and usage by its customers, as well as a 
shift to higher network expense for end customer revenue, 

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 3 1, 2002 decreased to 
$1 12.9 million, or 45% of revenue, compared to $114.9 million, or 64% of revenue, for the year ended 
December 3 1, 2001, exclusive of the $9.5 million provision for doubtful accounts related to WorldCom and 
the $7.0 million recovery for disputed receivables in 2002 and 2001, respectively. These expenses are 
primarily comprised of costs associated with developing and expanding the infrastructure of the Company 
as it expands into new markets and adds new products. Such expenses are associated with personnel, sales 
and marketing, occupancy, bad debt, administration and billing, as well as legal fees associated with 
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litigation. The decrease in selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenue in 2002 
was primarily due to expense control, an improvement in back office efficiencies and growth in revenue. 

Depreciation and aniortization for 2002 increased to $45.1 million from $35.1 million in 2001 
primarily due to the increase in depreciable assets in service related to US LEC‘s network expansion. 

Interest income for 2002 decreased to $0.9 million from $3.2 million in 2001. The decrease in 
interest income in 2002 was primarily due to a decline in cash available for investing and declining rates of 
return on invested funds. 

Interest expense for 2002 decreased to $8.6 million from $1 1.9 million in 2001. This decrease in 
interest expense was primarily due to a decrease in the amounts borrowed resulting from over $22.0 million 
in principal payments made under the Company’s senior credit facility in addition to declining interest 
rates. 

For the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 the Company did not record an income tax 
benefit. The Company has provided a full valuation allowance against deferred assets resulting from net 
operating losses, as management cannot predict, based on the weight of available evidence, that it is more 
likely than not that such assets will be ultimatdy realized. 

Net loss for 2002 amounted to $45.9 nlillion, compared to a net loss of $63.4 million for 2001. 
Dividends paid in kind and accrued 011 preferred stock for the year ended December 3 1, 2002 and 2001 
amounted to $13.6 million and $12.8 million, respectively (See Note 5 of the Company’s consolidated 
financial statements). The accretion of preferred stock issuance cost was $0.5 million for each of the years 
ended December 3 1,2002 and 200 1. 

As a result of the foregoing, net loss attributable to common stockholders for the year ended 
December 3 1, 2002 amounted to $60.0 million or $2.26 per diluted share as compared to $76.7 million, or 
$2.83 per diluted share for 2001. The decrease in net loss and net loss per share is attributed to the factors 
discussed above. 

Comparison of Year Ended December 31, 2001 lo Year Elided December 31, 2000 

Net revenue increased to $178.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2001, from $115.0 
million in 2000. The significant increase in revenue resulted from an increase in the total number of 
customers in existing markets and an increase in teleconmunications traffic on its network. In 2001, the 
Company’s end customer revenue increased to $93.8 million or 53% of total revenue from $54.2 million or 
47% of total revenue in 2000. 

The loss on the resolution of disputed revenue in 2000 was a result of an order issued by the North 
Carolina utilities commission on March 3 1, 2000 (the “March 3 1 NCUC Order”) that relieved BellSouth 
from paying reciprocal compensation to US LEC for any minutes of use attributable to the network 
operated by Metacomm, a customer of BellSouth and US LEC, or any similar network. As a result of this 
order, the Company recorded a pre-tax non-recurring non-cash charge of $55.3 million in the first quarter 
of 2000. This charge was composed of the write-off of approximately $153 .O million in receivables related 
to reciprocal compensation revenue offset by a previously established allowance of $39.0 rmllion, and a 
reduction of approximately $59 .O million in reciprocal conipensation commissions payable to Metacoiim. 

The Company recorded a significant charge relating to disputed receivables in the fourth quarter of 
2000. The $52.0 million provision is netted on the Company’s consolidated statement of operations against 
a $12.0 million reduction in commissions payable on those receivables, resulting in the $40.0 million 
provision on the Company’s consolidated statement of operations. Management believed that this charge 
was necessary due to the uncertainty related to current regulatory proceedings related to reciprocal 
compensation and other access charges and the continued refusal by ILECs, principally BellSouth, to pay 
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amounts believed by the Company to be owed to it under applicable interconnection agreements and due to 
Sprint’s failure to pay US LEC’s access charges. The Company resolved its disputes with both BellSouth 
and Sprint during 200 I .  Included in the consolidated statements of operations is an amount approximating 
$7.0 million, representing a net recovery of amounts previously recorded as reserves for disputed 
receivables and certain other related accruals (see Disputed Revenue below). 

Network expenses are comprised primarily of leased transport, facility installation, and usage 
charges. Network expenses increased to $90.3 million, or 50% of revenue for 2001 from $52.7 million, or 
45% of revenue, for 2000. This increase in network expenses was primarily a result of the increase in the 
size of US LEC’s network, an increase in customers and usage by its customers, as well as a shift to lower 
margin end customer revenue. 

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 3 1, 2001 increased to 
$114.9 million, or 64% of revenue, compared to $80.7 million, or 70% of revenue, for the year ended 
December 31, 2000. This increase was primarily a result of costs associated with developing and 
expandmg the infrastructure of the Company as it expands into new markets and adds products, such as 
expenses associated with personnel, sales and marketing, occupancy, administration and billing, as well as 
legal expenses associated with litigation. The decrease in selling, general and administrative expenses as a 
percentage of revenue in 2001 was primarily due to expense control, an improvement in back office 
efficiencies and growth in end customer revenue. 

Depreciation and amortization for 2001 increased to $35.1 million from $24.4 million in 2000 
primarily due to the increase in depreciable assets in service related to US LEC‘s network expansion. 

Interest income for 2001 decreased to $3.2 million from $4.8 million in 2000. The decrease in 
interest income in 2001 was primarily due to a decline in cash available for investing and declining rates of 
return on invested funds. 

Interest expense for 2001 increased to $1 1.9 million from $7.8 million in 2000. This increase in 
interest expense was primarily due to increased borrowings under the Company’s senior secured credit 
faciIity partially offset by declining interest rates. 

For the year ended December 31, 2001, the Company did not record an income tax expense or 
benefit, compared to a $23.7 million income tax benefit in 2000. In 2001, the income tax benefit, primarily 
created from operating losses, was offset by increases in the tax valuation allowance. The $23.7 million 
benefit for the year ended December 31, 2000 is net of an increase of $35.7 million in the valuation 
allowance against deferred tax assets relating to the anticipated use of federal and state net operating losses. 

Net loss for 2001 amounted to $63.4 million, compared to a net loss of $117.4 million for 2000. 
Dividends paid in kind and accrued on preferred stock for the year ended December 3 1, 2001 and 2000 
amounted to $12.8 million and $8.8 million, respectively (See Note 5 of the Company’s consolidated 
financial statements). The accretion of preferred stock issuance cost was $0.5 million and $0.3 million for 
the years ended December 3 1, 200 1 and 2000, respectively. 

As a result of the foregoing, net loss attributable to common stockholders for the year ended 
December 31, 2001 amounted to $76.7 million or ($2.83) per diluted share as compared to $126.5 million, 
or ($4.58) per diluted share for 2000. The decrease in net loss and net loss per share is attributed to the 
factors discussed above. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

The Company completed the build-out of its announced network and switch locations during the 
year ended December 31, 2001. Fiscal 2002 was the first year that all 26 switching centers were 
operational for the entire year. The Company has experienced net losses for the past three fiscal years, 
although these losses have decreased annually, and has a total stockholders’ deficiency of $154.0 million at 
December 31, 2002. Primary fbnding for the completion of the build-out and for supporting company 
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operations during these recent years came from borrowings under the Company’s senior secured credit 
facility and from the proceeds received from the issuance of Series A Mandatorily Redeemable Preferred 
Stock. The Company began the required principal payments on the senior secured credit facility during 
2002, and is fully borrowed against this facility. The amount outstanding under the senior secured credit 
facility at December 31, 2002 was $127.9 million. Also during this period, the Company has focused its 
operating strategy on growing end customer revenue, customer retention, improving the efficiency of its 
network operations and in controlling selling and administrative costs and capital expenditures. Recent 
quarterly results have shown increases in total revenue, end customer revenue, the number of customers 
and other operating nietrics. Although the magnitude of capital expenditures required has declined since 
the network build-out was completed, there will still be substantial investment required as new customers 
are added to the Conipany’s network. In connection with its quarterly filing for the period ended 
September 30, 2002, Company management disclosed that it believed that cash on hand would be sufficient 
to fund operating, investing and financing activities into the third quarter of 2003. It also disclosed that is 
was aggressively pursuing other options to obtain additional financing, and improve liquidity to fund 
operations beyond September 30, 2003. During the quarter ended December 31, 2002, the Company 
completed an amendment of its senior credit facility and, as a condition to complete this amendment, issued 
subordinated notes with warrants in the amount of $5.0 million. The credit facility amendment, hrther 
described below, provided for the deferral of previously required principal payments to later years, and 
revised the Company’s covenant requirements based on a business plan supplied to its senior lenders. 
Company management believes its operating results wiIl be sufficient, in conjunction with the deferral of 
principal payments resulting from the amended facility, and in consideration of the cash on hand at 
December 3 1, 2002 of $25.7 million, to meet its operating, investing and fmancing obligations for a period 
at least through December 31, 2003 as they come due. Also in the opinion of management, the Company 
will be in compliance with its covenant requirements. 

On December 31, 2002, the Company amended its senior secured credit facility. As a condition to 
amending the senior secured credit facility, the Company’s senior lenders required an investment of $5.0 
million in the Company. Therefore, concurrent with amending the senior secured credit facility, the 
Company received gross proceeds of $5.0 million through the issuance of 11% subordinated notes with a 
face amount of $5 .O million (the “Subordinated Notes”) and warrants to purchase shares of the Conipany’s 
common stock (the “2002 Warrants”). The $5.0 million was invested by a group of private investors that 
included the Company’s founders, Richard T. Aab and Tansukh V. Ganatra. Mr. Aab currently serves as 
Chairman of the Company and Mr. Ganatr-a serves as a director. 

As amended, the senior secured credit facility is coniprised of a $102.9 million term loan and a 
$25.0 million revolving credit facility. The Company made an $8.0 million principal payment on the term 
loan in connection with the amendment, reducing the outstanding balance from $1 10.9 million to $102.9 
million. The interest rate for the facility is a floating rate based, at the Company’s option, on a base rate (as 
defined in the loan agreement) or the London Interbank Offered Rate, plus a specified margin. Advances 
under the credit agreement as of December 31, 2002 bear interest at an average annual rate of 
approximately 5.75%. The facility is secured by a security interest in substantially all of the Company’s 
assets. 

In amending the senior secured credit facility, the Company deferred $30.0 million of term loan 
principal payments from 2003 and 2004 to 2005 and 2006; deferred repayment of the $25.0 million 
outstanding under the revolving facility from 2005 to 2006; agreed to pay additional interest on the 
deferred portion of the term loan amounts at an annual rate of lo%, payable upon the maturity of the loan 
in December 2006, and agreed to revised financial covenants. 

As amended, in addition to regular scheduled quarterly principal payments, the Company is 
required to make certain mandatory prepayments of principal equal to a portion of the interest paid to the 
Subordinated Note holders. These mandatory prepayments are scheduled to be $0.3 million in 2003, 2004, 
2005 and 2006. There are no other regular scheduled principal payments due during 2003, $0.5 million in 
principal payments are due in March and June 2004, $3.2 million is due in September 2004, $6.2 million is 
due in December 2004, $1 1.4 million is payable in each quarter of 2005 and the first thee  quarters of 2006, 
and a final principal payment of $1 1.1 million is due when the temi loan matures in December 2006. 
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The revised fmancial covenants were designed to conform to the business plan provided by the 
Company to its senior lenders in connection with the amendment. The covenants include: achievement of 
minimum levels of earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization and credit restructuring costs; 
maintenance of a minimum specified gross margin percentage (as defined), limits on the amount of capital 
expenditures; maintenance of minimum levels of unrestricted cash; and beginning in March 2005, 
maintenance of specified total leverage, cash interest coverage and minimum fixed charge coverage ratios. 
Measurements of the revised covenants will commence in 2003. Management believes that the Company 
will be in compliance with all fmancial covenants for a period at least through December 2003. The 
operating results reflected in the business plan are dependent on the Company meeting targets for new 
customers, customer retention, customer usage, billing rates, gross margins and selling, general, and 
administrative costs and as a result involve some degree of uncertainty. Should any of these assumptions 
not be achieved for a particular period, it is possible that a fmancial covenant will not be met for the period 
through December 2003. If a waiver or amendment of the financial covenant cannot not be obtained, the 
lenders would have the right under the credit agreement to certain remedies including acceleration of debt 
repayment. 

The $5.0 million in gross proceeds received on December 31, 2002 was allocated, based on the 
approximate reIative fair values, $2.7 miIlion to the Subordinated Notes and $2.3 nlillion to the 2002 
Warrants. The Subordinated Notes are included in long-term debt and the 2002 Warrants are included in 
additional paid-in-capital in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 3 1, 2002. The 
subordinated Notes bear interest at an annual rate of 11% payable monthly, have a five-year term and are 
subordinated to the senior credit facility. The discount on the Subordinated Notes will be amortized over 
the term of the notes. The Subordinated Note holders received warrants to purchase 1,737 and 895 shares 
of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $1.90 and $2.06 per share, respectively. The 2002 
Warrants are exercisable immediately and expire upon the earlier of 10 years or five years from the 
repayment in full of the Subordinated Notes. The Company granted the 2002 Warrant holders demand and 
piggyback registration rights with respect to the common stock underlying the 2002 Wai-rants. 

Cash used in operating activities was approximately $5.6 million in 2002 compared to $6.0 
million in 200 1. The decrease in cash used in operating activities was primarily due to a reduction of cash 
used from operating activities prior to changes in working capital of $41.7 million, offset by an increase in 
cash used of $41.3 million for working capital purposes, primarily resulting from an increase in accounts 
receivable of $15 .O million from the prior year. The Company received payment of approximately $50.0 
million from BellSouth and Sprint during 2001 as a result of its settlements with both companies over 
disputed revenues (see Disputed Revenue below). 

Cash used in investing activities decreased to $3 1.8 million in 2002 from $40.4 million in 2001. 
The investing activities are related to purchases of switching and related telecommunications equipment, 
office equipment and leasehold improvements. Future annual capital expenditures are expected to be 
consistent with those in 2002. 

Cash used by financing activities was $17.3 million in 2002 compared to $21.1 million cash 
provided for 2001 due to the increase in repayments, net of borrowings, under the Company’s amended 
senior secured credit facility in 2002. 

The restricted cash balance of $1.1 million and $1.3 million as of December 3 1, 2002 and 2001, 
respectively, serves as collateral for letters of credit related to certain office leases. Restricted cash is 
utilized to secure the Company’s performance of obligations such as letters of credit to support leases or 
deposits in restricted use accounts. 
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The following table provides a summary of the Company’s contractual obligations and 
commercial commitments. Additional detail about these items is included in the notes to the consolidated 
financial statements. 

Dollars in mons 

Less than 1-3 4-5 Mer 5 
Chtractual obligations Total I F  ms F=s m s  

hg-term &bt (1) $ 127.9 $ 0.3 $ 127.6 $ - $ -  
SubOrdulatedNotes (2) 5.0 5.0 
operating leases 49.9 7.4 7.2 6.5 28.8 

Total Contractuacashobobligati~ $ 182.8 $ 7.7 $ 134.8 $ 11.5 $ 28.8 

(1) Interest on long-term bank debt is charged using a floating rate based, at the Company’s option, on a 
base rate (as defined in the loan agreement) or the London Interbank Offered Rate, plus a specified margin. 
The Company will also accrue additional interest on the deferred portion of the term loan amounts at an 
annual rate of lo%, payable upon the maturity of the loan in December 2006. 

(2) Interest is payable monthly on the $5.0 million face value of the Subordinated Notes at an annual rate of 
11%. In addition, the discount on the Subordinated Notes, determined based upon the relative fair values 
of the notes and related warrants, totaled $2.3 rmllion. This amount will be amortized to the statement of 
operations until the maturity date of the Subordinated Notes. 

Disputed Revenues 

The deregulation of the teIecommunications industry, the implementation of the Telecom Act 
enacted on February 8, 1996 and the distress of many carriers in the wake of the downturn in the 
telecommunications industry have involved numerous industry participants, including the Company, in 
lawsuits, proceedings and arbitrations before state and federal regulatory commissions, private arbitration 
organizations such as the American Arbitration Association, and courts over many issues important to the 
financial and operational success of the Company. These issues include the interpretation and enforcement 
of interconnection agreements, the terms of interconnection agreements the Company may adopt, operating 
performance obligations, reciprocal compensation, access rates, access rates applicable to different 
categories of traffic such as traffic originating from or terminating to cellular or wireless users and the 
jurisdiction of traffic for compensation purposes. The Company anticipates that it will continue to be 
involved in various lawsuits, arbitrations and proceedings over these and other material issues. The 
Company anticipates also that further legislative and regulatory rulemaking will occw-on the federal and 
state level-as the industry deregulates and as the Company enters new markets or offers new products. 
Rulings adverse to the Company, adverse legislation, or changes in governmental policy on issues material 
to the Company could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition or results of its 
operations. Revenue recognized and amounts recorded as allowances for doubtful accounts in the 
accompanying financial statements have been determined considering the impact, if any, of the items 
described below. 

Reciprocal Compensation - On April 27, 2001, the FCC released an Order on Remand and Report 
and Order (the “Remand Order”) addressing inter-carrier compensation for traffic terminated to ISPs. The 
interpretation and enforcement of the Remand Order will likely be the most important factor in the 
Company’s efforts to collect reciprocal compensation for ISP-bound traffic in the future. In the Remand 
Order, the FCC addressed a number of important issues, including the rules under which carriers are to 
compensate each other for traffic terminated to ISPs and the rates applicable for ISP-bound traffic as well 
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as traffic bound to other customers. 

While the Remand Order provides greater certainty about the Company’s right to bill for traffic 
terminated to ISPs, the effect of the Remand Order on the Company will depend on how it is interpreted 
and enforced. In particular, there are uncertainties as to whether the Remand Order has any effect on the 
Conipany ’s pending arbitral, state regulatory commission and judicial proceedings seeking to collect 
compensation for traffic previously terminated to ISPs; whether certain provisions of the Remand Order 
will be applied state-by-state, market-by-market andor carrier-by-carrier; whether the limitations on 
growth of ISP traffic in the Remand Order will survive legal challenge; and whether the incumbent carrier 
will efficiently trigger the rate reductions and other limitations set forth in the Remand Order, 

On May 3,2002, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia (the “D.C. Circuit”) rejected 
the FCC’s legal analysis in the Remand Order and again remanded the order to the FCC for further review 
(the “Second Remand”), but the D.C. Circuit did not vacate the Remand Order. As such, the ISP 
compensation structure established by the FCC in the Remand Order remains in effect. It is unclear at this 
time whether, how or when the FCC will respond to the Second Remand, how the Second Remand affects 
pending disputes over reciprocal compensation for ISP traffic, how the Remand Order will be interpreted or 
whether affected parties will undertake new challenges to the ISP compensation structure established by the 
Remand Order. 

If the Remand Order or the Second Remand were to be interpreted in a manner adverse to the 
Company on all or any of the issues, or if the Remand Order is modified as a result of the Second Remand 
or other pending or new legal challenges, it could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s future 
operations. For further discussion of the Remand Order, see “Business-Regulation”. 

On October 3, 2001 the Company and BellSouth entered into a settlement agreement (the 
“Settlement Agreement”) by which the Company and BellSouth resolved outstanding reciprocal 
compensation receivables in the various states in which both of us operate and other past payments. 
BellSouth agreed to pay US LEC approximately $3 1 .O million, in addition to approximately $10.0 million 
it paid in August 2001, to resolve those issues for periods prior to the effective date of the Remand Order. 
The Settlement Agreement imposed on the parties certain obligations regarding the payment of reciprocal 
compensation in the future. The Settlement Agreement also provides that the payments made for periods 
prior to the effective date of the Remand Order are not subject to adjustment as a result of subsequent 
changes in the Remand Order. 

In September 2001, the Company filed a proceeding with the Virginia State Corporation 
Commission (“VSCC7’) and the FCC seeking to collect reciprocal compensation from Verizon payable for 
traffic bound for ISPs as well as other customers. The VSCC declined jurisdiction over the dispute. In 
Jaiiuaiy 2002, the FCC accepted jurisdiction over the dispute. Prior to the Company’s filing a complaint 
against Verizon at the FCC, and in a separate, but related, case, the FCC held that the contract with Verizon 
(that the Company had adopted) did not obligate the parties to pay reciprocal Compensation for traffic 
bound for ISPs. That decision is on appeal. In June 2002, Verizon filed a complaint against the Company in 
the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia seeking a declaratory ruling that 
Verizon is not obligated to pay the Company reciprocal compensation for traffic bound for ISPs under the 
agreement adopted by the Company. The Company moved to dismiss Verizon’s complaint based on a 
number of factors; the Court took the Company’s motion under advisement and directed the Company to 
initiate a proceeding against Verizon at the FCC. On September 5, 2002, the Company filed a Formal 
Complaint with the FCC’s Enforcement Bureau seeking to coIlect reciprocal compensation from Verizon 
for traffic bound for ISPs. Verizon answered, denying liability. Pending the outcome of the appeal in the 
related case, the FCC converted the Company’s case against Verizon into an informal complaint and has 
piaced it on an administrative hold. In light of these developments, as well as the Second Remand, the 
Company cannot predict when this dispute will be resolved or whether the Company will ultimately be 
successful. 

Disputed Access Rewnuex - A number of IXCs have refised to pay access charges to CLECs, 
including the Company, alleging that the access charges exceed the rates charged by the ILECs, as well as 
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disputing the rates applicable to different categories of traffic and the jurisdiction of traffic for 
compensation purposes. Currently there are a number of court cases, regulatory proceedings at the FCC 
and legislative efforts involving such challenges. The Company cannot predict the outcome of these cases, 
regulatory proceedings and legislative efforts or their impact on access rates. 

On April 27,2001, the FCC released its Seventh Report and Order and Further Notice of Proposed 
Rulemaking (the “Access Order”) in which it established a benchmark rate at which a CLECs interstate 
access charges wilI be presumed to be reasonable and which CLECs may impose on IXCs by tariff. The 
Access Order addresses a number of issues important to how CLECs charge IXCs for originating and 
terminating interstate to11 and toll free traffic. 

The Access Order should provide certainty as to the Company’s right to bill IXCs for interstate 
access at rates at or below the FCC benchmark even though above those tariffed by the ILECs. 
Notwithstanding the apparent certainty created by the Access Order, its effect on the Company will depend 
on how the Access Order is interpreted and enforced and the outcome of appeals currently pending. If the 
Access Order is interpreted or enforced in a manner adverse to the Company as it relates to periods prior to 
the effective date, such result could have a material adverse effect on the Company. For a more complete 
description of the Access Order, please see “Business - Regulation”, 

On May 30, 2001, the FCC issued a decision in AT&T C o p  v. Business Telecom Inc. (the “BTI 
Decision”), in which the FCC determined that the interstate access rates charged by Business Telecom, Inc. 
(“BTI”) were not just and reasonable. The FCC determined that just and reasonable rates for BTI were 
properly based upon the lowest band of rates charged by the National Exchange Carriers Association 
(“NECA”). The FCC based this holding on the limited evidence before it, tending to show that BTIs 
operations were similar to those of small, urban ILECs, many of whom charge the lowest band NECA 
rates. Appeals of the BTI Decision were subsequently withdrawn. As with the Access Order described 
above, the BTI Decision’s effect on the Company will depend on how the order is interpreted. If the BTI 
Decision is interpreted in a manner adverse to the Company, such result could have a material adverse 
effect on the Company. 

By settlement dated October 5 ,  2001, Sprint and the Company resolved their litigated dispute over 
access charges. Sprint paid the Company approximately $8.0 million, in addition to approximately $1.5 
million it paid in the four months preceding the settlement, in payment of past due invoices for periods 
through July 200 1. 

Due to the federal bankruptcy filing by WorldCom, during the quarter ended June 30, 2002, the 
Company established an additional provision of $9.5 million for doubtful accounts for the remaining 
outstanding receivables owed to the Company by WorldCom. The Company is pursuing its claim for the 
payment of all outstanding charges in the WorldCom bankruptcy proceeding, but is fully reserved for the 
amount due from WorldCom for all pre-petition amounts. 

On September 18, 2002, US LEC filed a Petition for Declaratory Ruling with the FCC requesting 
that the FCC reaffirm its prior positions that access charges can be collected by local exchange carriers in 
connection with calls originating or terminating on the networks of wireless carriers. A number of different 
carriers have filed comients in support of, and in opposition to, US LEC’s petition. In addition 
1TC”DeltaCom Communications, Inc. (“ITC“) has filed a lawsuit against the Company alleging that in an 
effort to collect access charges from ITC for originating wireless traffic destined for ITCs toll-free 
customer, US LEC blocked certain signaling data for calls originated on the networks of US LEC’s wireless 
carrier customers that would allow the call to be identified as a wireless call. ITC‘s lawsuit alleges claims 
based on a nuniber of different legal theories. US LEC, through counsel, has investigated ITC’s allegations, 
and has discovered no evidence to support ITC’s claims. US LEC has denied ITC’s allegation and asserted a 
counterclaim against ITC to recover outstanding access charges owed by ITC. The Company anticipates 
dispositive motions will be filed shortly as the Company seeks early resolution of the case. In addition to 
the lawsuit filed in federal court, ITC also filed an Informal CompIaint at the FCC challenging US LEC’s 
right to recover access charges on calls originating from wireless carriers. The informal complaint was 
closed without the FCC taking any action. The Company also received a separate request for information 
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from the Enforcement Bureau of the FCC conceming the Company’s billing for wireless traffic and its 
methods of billing. The Company intends to respond to the FCC‘s requests. Further, the Company wiIl 
discuss with the FCC its belief that no additional proceedings are warranted by the agency beyond those 
already pending on the issue of terminating calls originating on the networks of wireless carriers, including 
the proceeding commenced by US LEC requesting guidance to the industry on the issue. If the FCC does 
not r e a f f m  its prior guidance, the inability of US LEC to recover access charges from IXCs for traffic 
originating on the networks of wireless carrier customers could have a material negative impact on US 
LEC’s results of operations. 

In light of the general conditions prevailing in the telecommunications industry, there is a risk of 
further delinquencies, nonpayment or bankruptcies by other telecommunications carriers that owe 
outstanding amounts derived from access and facility revenues billed by the Company. Such events, in the 
aggregate, could have an adverse effect on the Company’s performance in future periods. The Company is 
unable to predict such events at this time. 

Legislation - Periodically, legislation has been introduced in the W.S. House of Representatives or 
the U.S. Senate to alter or amend the Telecom Act. It is the Telecom Act which opened the local telephone 
markets for competition and outlines many of the ground rules pursuant to which the ILECs and the CLECs 
operate with respect to each other. The Company anticipates that additional efforts will be made to alter or 
amend the Telecom Act. The Company cannot predict whether any particular piece of legislation will 
become law and how the Telecom Act might be modified. The passage of legislation amending the 
Telecom Act could have a material adverse effect on the Company and its future financial results. 

Interconnection Agreements with ILECs - The Company has agreements for the interconnection of 
its networks with the networks of the ILECs covering each market in which US LEC has installed a 
switching platform. US LEC may be required to negotiate new interconnection agreements as it enters new 
markets m the future. In addition, as its existing interconnection agreements expire, it will be required to 
negotiate extension or replacement agreements. The Company recently concluded interconnection 
arbitrations with Verizon in order to obtain new interconnection agreements on terms acceptable to the 
Company and is awaiting results from those arbitrations from several PUCs. There can be no assurance 
that the Company will successfully negotiate, successfully arbitrate or otherwise obtain such additional 
agreements for interconnection with the ILECs or renewals of existing interconnection agreements on terms 
and conditions acceptable to the Company. 

htercomectiorz with Other Carriers - The Company anticipates that as its interconnections with 
various carriers increase, the issue of seeking compensation for the termination or origination of traffic 
whether by reciprocal arrangements, access charges or other charges will become increasingly complex. 
The Company does not anticipate that it will be cost effective to negotiate agreements with every carrier 
with which the Company exchanges originating and/or terminating traffic. The Company will make a case- 
by-case analysis of the cost effectiveness of committing resources to these interconnection agreements or 
otherwise billing and paying such carriers. 

Critical Accounting PoIicies and Estimates 

Reveizue Recognition - The Company recognizes revenue on telecommunications and enhanced 
conmuiiications services in the period that the service is provided. Revenue is recognized when eamed 
based upon the following specific criteria: ( I )  persuasive evidence of arrangement exists (2) services have 
been rendered (3) seller’s price to the buyer is fixed or determinable and (4) collectibility is reasonably 
assured. 

US LEC’s revenue is comprised of two primary components: (1) fees paid by end customers for 
local, long distance, data and Intemet services, and (2) carrier charges including access and reciprocal 
compensation. End customer revenue includes local, long distance, data and Internet services and is 
comprised of monthly recurring charges, usage charges, and initial non-recurring charges. Monthly 
recurring charges include the fees paid by customers for facilities in service and additional features on 
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those facilities. Usage charges consist of usage-sensitive fees paid for calls made. Initial non-recurring 
charges consist primarily of installation charges. Access charges are comprised of charges paid primarily 
by IXCs for the origination and termination of inter-exchange toll and toll-free calk and reciprocal 
compensation. The Company does not resell any ILEC dial tone services. Reciprocal compensation arises 
when a local exchange carrier completes a call that originated on another local exchange carrier’s network. 
Reciprocal compensation that is earned as revenue from other local exchange carriers represents 
compensation for local telecommunications traffic terminated on our network that originates on another 
carrier’s network. 

If a significant disputed revenue situation exists, revenue is recorded at amounts at which 
management believes collectibility is reasonably assured. 

The Company defers installation revenue from contracts with end customers and other carriers net 
of certain incentives. This deferred revenue is being amortized over the period of expected benefit of these 
costs, which is the average initial term of the related contract. 

Carrier revenues are recorded net of amounts due to extemal parties under each respective 
telecommunications service contract. Early termination fees are recognized when paid and revenue related 
to billings in advance of providing service is deferred and recognized when earned. 

Network Expenses - Network expenses are comprised primarily of two types of charges: leased 
transport charges which comprise approximately 80% of the Company’s network expenses and usage 
sensitive charges which comprise approximately 20% of the Company’s network expenses. The 
Company’s leased transport charges are the lease payments incurred by US LEC for the transmission 
facilities used to connect the Company’s customers to the Company owned switch that services that 
customer and to connect to the ILEC and other carrier networks. US LEC, as part of its “smart-build” 
strategy, does not currently own any fiber or copper transport facilities. These faciIities are leased from 
various providers including, in many cases, the ILEC. Network expenses include management’s estimate of 
charges for direct access lines, facility charges, outgoing and incoming minutes, reciprocal compensation 
and other costs of revenue for a given period for which bills have not yet been received by the Company. 
Management’s estimate is developed from the number of lines and facilities in service, minutes of use and 
contractuaf rates charged by each respective service provider. Subsequent adjustments to this estimate may 
result when actual costs are billed by the service provider to the Company. However, management does not 
believe such adjustments will be material to the Company’s financial statements. The Company has to date 
been successful in negotiating lease agreements which generally match in the aggregate the duration of its 
customer contracts, thereby allowing the Company to mitigate the risk of incurring charges associated with 
transmission facilities that are not being utilized by customers. Usage sensitive charges are primarily 
comprised of usage charges associated with the Company’s off-net toll, toll-free services, access charges 
and reciprocal compensation owed to other carriers. Also included in network expense are the amortization 
of deferred customer and network installation costs, which are discussed in more detail below. 

Provisions for Doubtful Accounts - The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts for 
estimated losses resulting from customers’ or carriers’ failure to make payments on amounts due to the 
Company. These estimates are based on a number of factors including 1) historical experience, 2) aging of 
trade accounts receivable, and 3) specific information obtained by the Company on the fmancial condition 
and current credit worthiness of customers or carriers. 

Deferred Customer and Network Irzstaallation Costs - The Company incurs and capitalizes certain 
costs in connection with the required expansion of its telecommunications network infrastructure to provide 
service to new customers. These costs are comprised of payments for equipment and services provided by 
extei-naI parties in connecting the telecommunication systems of new customers to the Company’s 
telecommunication platform as well as expenditures for expanding the network when customer growth 
requires capacity enhancements. These two types of costs are referred to as customer installation costs and 
network installation costs. Customer installation costs represent incremental direct costs to enhance the 
Company’s telecommunications network to allow the Company to provide services to new customers under 
contract. These costs result directly from entering into a new customer contract and would not have been 
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incurred by the Company had a new contract not been entered into. These costs are amortized over the 
average initial term of open contracts, which is currently 30 months. 

Network installation costs are paid to local exchange carriers and IXCs for mstalling circuits and 
t r u n k s  to iiisure adequate capacity on the Company’s network to serve existing and new customers. These 
costs are paid to external parties for the installation of circuits and trunks required in order to provide and 
market services to new customers. Network installation costs are amortized over 60 months, the expected 
useful life of the circuits and trunks that are installed. 

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets - The Company reviews the carrying value of its long-lived assets 
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of these assets 
may not be recoverable. Measurement of any impairment would include a comparison of estimated 
undiscounted future operating cash flows anticipated to be generated during the remaining life of the assets 
with their net carrying value. An impairment loss would be recognized as the amount by which the carrying 
value of the assets exceeds their fair value. 

Effect of Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements 

Effective January 1 , 200 1 , the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
(“SFAS”) No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”, as amended by SFAS 
No. 138, “Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” SFAS No. 133 
establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments and hedging activities by 
requiring that entities recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities at fair market value on the 
balance sheet. The adoption of SFAS No. 133 did not have a material effect on its results of operations as it 
does not currently hold any derivative instruments or engage in hedging activities. 

SFAS No, 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”, which 
supersedes SFAS 12 1, “Accounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived 
Assets to be Disposed Of’, but retains many of its fundamental provisions. SFAS 144 also supercedes the 
accounting and reporting provisions of APE Opinion 30, “Reporting the Results of Operations - Reporting 
the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring 
Events and Transactions.” This statement retains the requirement to report discontinued operations 
separately from continuing operations and expands the scope of transactions that qualify as discontinued 
operations. SFAS No. 144 was effective for the Company for financia1 statements issued for the fiscal 
year beginning January 1, 2002. The adoption of SFAS No. 144 did not have a material effect on the 
Company’s results of operations. 

In April 2002, SFAS No. 145 “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment of 
FASB No. 13, and Technical Corrections” was issued. SFAS No. 145, among other things, eliminates 
FASB Statement No. 4 “Reporting Gains and Losses from Extinguishment of Debt” which required gains 
and losses from debt extinguishments to be aggregated and, if material, classified as an extraordinary item 
net of associated income tax effects, and also eliminates the exception to applying Accounting Principles 
Board (APB) Opinion No. 30. As such, gains and losses from debt extinguishments should be classified as 
extraordmary items only if they meet certain criteria in APB Opinion No. 30. Such criteria distinguishes 
transactions that are part of an entity’s recurring operations from those that are unusual or infrequent or that 
meet the criteria of APB Opinion No. 30 for classification as an extraordinary item. The provisions of 
SFAS No. 145 related to the rescission of SFAS No. 4 shall be applied in fiscal years beginning after May 
15, 2002. The application of such provsions of SFAS No. 145 is not expected to have a material effect on 
the Company’s results of operations. 

In June 2002, SFAS No. 146 “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities” 
was issued and is effective for such activities initiated after December 31, 2002. SFAS No. 146 specifies, 
among other things, the financial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal 
activities and nullifies Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 94-3 “Liability Recognition for 
Certain Employee Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity, including Certain Costs Incurred in a 
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Restructuring.” Tlie adoption of SFAS No. 146 is not expected to significantly impact the Company’s 
financial statements or future results of operations. 

In November 2002, FASB Interpretation No. 45 (“FIN 45”) ‘‘ Guarantor’s Accounting and 
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others” was 
issued which, among other things, expands guarantor fmancial statement disclosures about its obligations 
under certain guarantees and requires the guarantor to recognize a liability for the fair value of an 
obligation assumed under a guarantee. FIN 45 clarifies the requirements of SFAS No. 5 “Accounting for 
Contingencies” reIating to guarantees and its initial recognition and measurement provisions are applied on 
a prospective basis to guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. FIN 45 does not 
significantly impact the Company’s fmancial statements or disclosures, nor is it expected to significantly 
impact future results of operations or financial position. 

In December 2002, SFAS No. 148 “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-Transition and 
Disclosure-an amendment of FASB No. 123” was issued to provide altemative methods of transition for a 
voIuntary change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. In 
addition, SFAS No. 148 amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123 to require prominent 
disclosures in both annual and interim financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-based 
employee compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results. The transition guidance and 
annual disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 148 are effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 
2002. The interim disclosure provisions are effective for fmancial reports containing financial statements 
for interim periods beginning after December 15, 2002. The Company has applied the disclosure 
provisions of SFAS No. 148 in these consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. 

In January 2003, FASB Interpretation No. 46 (“FIN 46”), Consolidation of Variable Interest 
Entities” was issued which, among other things, provides guidance on identifying variable interest entities 
(“VIE”) and determining when assets, liabilities, non-controlling interests, and operating results of a VIE 
should be included in a company’s consolidated financial statements, and aIso requires additional 
disclosures by primary beneficiaries and other significant variable interest holders. Certain disclosure 
requirements of FlN 46, if applicable, are required for fmancial statements initially issued after January 3 1, 
2003. Companies with variable interest in variable interest entities created after January 3 1, 2003 shall 
appIy the provisions of FIN 46 immediately. Public entities with a variable interest in a variable interest 
entity shall apply the provisions of FIN 46 no later than the first interim or annual reporting period 
beginning after June 15, 2003. FIN 46 is not expected to significantly impact the Company’s fmancial 
statements or future results of operations. 

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET FUSK 

US LEC is exposed to various types of market risk in the normal course of business, including the 
impact of interest rate changes on its investments and debt. As of December 31, 2002, investments 
consisted primarily of institutional money market funds. A majority of the Company’s long-term debt 
consists of variabIe rate instruments with interest rates that are based on a floatmg rate which, at the 
Company’s option, is determined by either a base rate or the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR’), 
plus, in each case, a specified margin. Although it is difficult to predict the impact of interest rate changes 
on the Company’s financial statements, the Company has total variable rate bank debt of $127.9 million as 
of December 3 1, 2002. Currently, quarterly interest expense, net of mterest income, is approximately $2.0 
million. At this level, each one percent increase or decrease in interest rates will have approximately a $1.3 
million annual impact on the financial statements of the Company, depending somewhat on timing of the 
borrowing, its maturity and other factors. 

Although US LEC does not cuwently utilize any interest rate management tools, it continues to 
evaluate the use of derivatives such as, but not limited to, interest rate swap agreements to manage its 
interest rate risk. As the Company’s investments are all short-term in nature and a majority of its long-term 
debt is at variable short-term rates, management believes the canying values of the Company’s financia1 
instruments approximate fair values. 
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

Board of Directors and Stockholders of 
US LEC Corp. 
Charlotte, North Carolina 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of US LEC Corp. and subsidiaries 
(the “Company”) as of December 3 1, 2002 and 2001, and the related consolidated statements of operations, 
stockholders’ equity (deficiency) and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 
3 1, 2002. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15. These 
fmancial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedule 
based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An 
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall fmancial statement presentation. We believe that our audits 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of US LEC Corp. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the results of 
their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2002, in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our 
opinion, such fmancial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated fmancial 
statements taken as a whole, presents fairly 111 all material respects the information set forth therein. 

i s /  Deloitte & Touche LLP 
Charlotte, North Carolina 
February 24,2003 
(March 20, 2003 as to second paragraph in Note 13) 
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US LEC Corp. and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Balance Sheets 

(In Thousands) 

December 3 1, December 31, 
2002 2001 

Assets 

Current Assets 
Cash aiid cash equivalents 
Restricted cash 
Accounts receivable (net o f  allowance of $23,180 and $12,263 

Deferred income taxes 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 

at December 3 1,2002 and 2001, respectively) 

Total current assets 

Property and Equipment, Net 
Other Assets 

Total Assets 

Liabiiities and Stockholders'Deficiency 

Current Liabil~ties 
Accounts payable 
Accrued network costs 
Commissions payable 
Accrued expenses - other 
Deferred revenue 
Long-tenii debt - current portion 

Total curreiit liabilities 

Long-Term Debt 
Deferred Income Taxes 
Other Liabilities 

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 6) 

Series A Mandatorily Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock 
(1  0,000 authorized shares, 235 and 222 shares issued and accrued with 
redemption values of $235 and $222 at December 3 I ,  2002 and 2001, 
respectively) (Note 5 )  

Stockholders' Deficiency 
Common stock-Class A, $ 0 1 par value (1 22,925 authorized shares, 

26,895 and 26,388 shares outstanding at December 3 1, 2002 and 2001, respectively) 

Additional pard-in capital (Note 10) 
Retained deficit 
Unearned compensation - stock options 

Total stockholders' deficiency 

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Deficieiicy 

$ 25,715 $ 80,502 
1,080 1,300 

57,989 42,972 
2,805 1,840 
8,44 1 9,030 

96,030 135,644 

178,8 10 188,436 
10,474 9,233 

!.$ 285,314 $ 333,313 

$ 10,203 
26,952 
7,886 

16,015 
8,048 

3 06 

$ 10,747 
17,877 
6,679 

14,928 
6,69 1 

18,750 

69,410 

130,3 11 
2,805 
6,507 

75,672 

13 1,250 
1 ,%40 
5,721 

230,272 216,155 

269 264 

78,526 76,42 1 
(23 2,786) (1 72,777) 

(1,233) 

(1 53,991) (9 7,3 2 5 )  

$ 285,314 $ 333,3 13 

See iiotes IO consolidatedj firtafirzcial sfatemenls 
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US LEC Corp. and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statements of Operations 

For the Years Ended December 31,2002,2001, and 2000 
(Jn Thousands, Except Per Share Data) 

2002 2001 2000 

Revenue, Net 
Network Expenses 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Selling, General and Adrmnistrative Expenses 
Provision for Doubtful Accounts related to WorIdCom (Note 6) 
Loss on Resolution of Disputed Revenue (Note 8) 
Provision (Recovery) for Disputed Receivables, Net (Note G) 

$ 250,363 $ 178,602 $ 114,964 
121,127 90,298 52,684 
45,062 35,103 24,3 65 

112,878 1 14,898 80,684 
9,500 

55,345 
40,000 (7,042) 

Loss from Operations 

Other (Income) Expense 
Interest Income 
Lnterest Expense (Note 4) 

Loss Before Incoine Taxes 

Income Tax Benefit (Note 7) 

Net Loss 

Less: Preferred Stock Dividends 
Less: Accretion of Preferred Stock Issuance Cost 

Net Loss Attributable to Common Stockholders 

Net Loss Attributable to Common Stockholders Per Conmon Share 
(Note 1 1 ) :  

Basic and Diluted 

Weighted Average Number of Shares Outstanding (Note 11): 
Basic and Diluted 

~ 

(38,204) (54,655) (138,114) 

(865)  (3,171 (4,834) 
8,553 11,870 7,839 

(45,89 2) (63,3 54) (141,119) 

(23,727) 

(45,892) (63,3 5 4) ( 1 17,3 92) 
~ 

13,596 12,810 8,758 
521 49 1 33G 

$ (60,009) $ (76,655) $ (126,486) 

$ (2.26) $ (2.S3) $ (4.5 8)  

26,546 27,108 27,G 18 

See notes to consolidated financial statements 
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US LEC Corp. and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow~s 

(In Thousands) 

Operating Activities 
Net loss 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating actiwties: 

Depreciation and amortization 
Loss on resolution of disputed revenue 
Deferred compensation 
Deferred income taxes 
Provision (recovery) for significant receivables, net 

Changes in assets and liabilities which promded (used) cash: 
Accounts receivable 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 
Other assets 
Accounts payable 
Deferred revenue 
Accrued network costs 
Customer commissions payable 
Other liabilities - noncurrent 
Accrued expenses - other 

Total adjustments 
Net cash used in operating activlties 

Investing Activities 
Purchase of property and equipment 
Redemption of certificates of deposit and restricted cash 

Net cash used in investing activlties 

Financing Activities 
Net proceeds froin issuance of Series A Preferred Stock 
Proceeds from exercise of stock options, warrants, and ESPP 
Proceeds from issuance of subordinated notes and warrants 
Proceeds from long-term debt 
Payments on long-term debt 
Payment for deferred loan fees 

Net cash prowded (used) by financing activlties 

2002 2001 2000 

$ (45,892) $ (63,354) !i (117,392) 

45,062 35,103 24,365 
55,345 

21 446 I50 
1,840 (23,727) 

9,500 (7,042) 40,000 

(24,517) 
82 1 

(992) 
(841) 

1,356 
9,075 
1,207 

788 

40,24 I 
(1,233) 

(5,645) 

25,234 
(6,068) 
(2,294) 
2,308 
3,341 
8,575 

(10,193) 
1,406 
4,727 

5'1,383 

(5,911) 

(3 3,5 34) 
(1,414) 
(2,827) 
1,131 
1,648 

(4,460) 
5, I69 
4,041 
2,186 

68,0'/3 

(4993 19) 

(32,029) 
220 

( 3 1 3 W  

(40,425) 

(40,423) 

1,003 
4,650 

(22,062) 
(924) 

(1 1,3331 

1,425 

20,000 

(348) 
21 ,u  1.1 

193,760 
1,105 

155,000 
(97,000) 

(1,156) 
25 1 ,"Y 

Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Period 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Period 

Supplemental Cash Flow Disclosures 
Cash Paid for Interest 
Cash Paid for Taxes 

(5 4,7 8 7) (25,3 19) 90,647 

80,502 105,821 15,174 

$ 25,715 $ 80,502 $ 105,821 

$ 8,957 $ 10,568 $ 7,377 
3 8 z 

Supplemental Noncash Investing and Financing Activities: 
At December 3 1, 2002, 2001, and 2000, $5,749, $5,452, and $10,696 respectively, of property and equipment additions 

At December 3 1, 2002, $350 was a receivable from certain investors relating to the $5,000 subordinated notes wlth warrants. 
are included in outstanding accouiits payable. 
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US LEC Corp and Subsidiaries 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUI'IY (DEFICIENCY) 

For the years ended December 3 1,2002,2001 and 2000 
(In Thousands) 

Unearned 
Common Stock Common Stock Additional Retained Compensation 

Class A Class B Paid-ln Earnings Stock 
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital (Deficit) Options Total 

Balance, December 3 I ,  1999 
Exercise of stock options 
Exercise of warrants 
Tax effects related to stock options and warrants 
Issuance of Shares 
Uneamed compensation - stock options 
Accretion of preferred stock issuance cost 
Conversion of Class B Common Share 

Deemed distribution to related party 
Preferred Stock Dividends 
Net loss 

to Class A Common Shares 

10,426 104 17,076 171 108,665 30.365 
28 286 

131 1 3 72 
228 

108 1 442 
(65) 

(336) 

24 1 3 (241) 13 ) 
(36,115) 

(8,758) 
(1  17,392) 

(435) 138,870 
286 
373 
228 
443 

216 151 
(334) 

(36,115) 
(8,758) 

(1 17,392) 

Balance December 3 I ,  2000 
Exercise of stock options 
Issuance of Shares 
Uneamed compensation - stock options 
Accretion of preferred stock issuance cost 
Conversion of Class B Conunon Shares to CIass A 

Common Shares and effects of recapitalization 
Preferred stock dividends 
Costs Associated with Recapitalization 
Net loss 

Balance, December 3 I ,  200 1 
Exercise of stock options and warrants 
Issuance of ESPP Stock 
Unearned Compensation - Stock Options (Note 10) 
Preferred Stock Dividends 
Accretion of Preferred Stock Issuance Fees 
Issuance of Warrants (Note 4) 
Net Loss 

~~ ~~~ 

10,934 109 16.835 168 73,813 (96,12 1) (219) (22,250) 
7 

1,419 
1,460 (1201 4) 446 

(49 1) (49 1) 

2 1 7 (1) 
618 6 1,413 

20 
( 1 2,8 1 0) (1  2,8 IO) 

(63.3 54) (63,354) 

26,388 2 64 76.421 (1 72,777) (1,233) (97,325) 
2 2 

507 5 996 1,001 
(1.213) 1,233 20 

(52 1) (52 1) 

14,834 148 (16,835) (168) 

(292) (292) 

(13,596) (13,596) 

2,320 2,320 
(45 892) (45,892) 

Balance. December 3 1 I 2002 

~~ ~~ ~ ~~ 

- $ 78,526 $ (232,786) $ - $ (153,991) 26,895 $ 269 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

40 



US LEC Corp. and Subsidiaries 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the years ended December 31,2002,2001, and 2000 
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data) 

1. ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of US LEC Corp. and its ten wholly 
owned subsidiaries (the “Company”). All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been 
eliminated in consolidation. The Company was incorporated in 1996 and in 1998 completed an initial 
pubIic offering of its common stock. 

The Company, through its subsidiaries, provides switched local and long distance voice services, 
toll free services, frame relay, high speed internet, Asynchronous Transfer Mode (“ATM”), web hosting 
and other services primarily to medium to large businesses and other organizations in selected markets in 
the southeastern and mid-Atlantic United States. 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Revenue Recognition - The Company recognizes revenue on telecommunications services in the 
period that the service is provided. Revenue is recognized when earned based upon the following specific 
criteria: (1) persuasive evidence of arrangement exists (2) services have been rendered (3) seller’s price to 
the buyer is fixed or determinable and (4) collectibility is reasonably assured. US LEC’s revenue is 
comprised of two primary components: (1) fees paid by end customers for local, long distance, data and 
Internet services, and (2) carrier charges primarily including access and reciprocal compensation. End 
customer revenue includes local, long distance, data and Internet services and is comprised of monthly 
recurring charges, usage charges, and initial non-recurring charges. Monthly recurring charges include the 
fees paid by customers for facilities m service and additional features on those facilities. Usage charges 
consist of usage-sensitive fees paid for calls made. Initial non-recurring charges consist primariIy of 
installation charges. Access charges are comprised of charges paid primarily by inter-exchange carriers 
(‘ IXCs”) for the origination and termination of inter-exchange toll and toll-free calls and reciprocal 
compensation. The Company does not resell any incumbent local exchange carrier (“ILEC”) dial tone. 
Reciprocal compensation arises when a locaI exchange carrier completes a call that originated on another 
Iocal exchange carrier’s network. Reciprocal compensation that is earned as revenue from other local 
exchange carriers represents compensation for local telecommunications traffic terminated on our network 
that originates on another carrier’s network. 

If a significant disputed revenue situation exists, revenue is recorded at amounts at which 
management believes collectibility is reasonably assured. 

Revenues are recorded net of amounts that are due to a customer or outside sales agent pursuant to 
each respective telecommunications service contract. For the years ended December 3 1, 2002, 200 1 and 
2000 amounts incurred under these contracts of $26,208, $22,812 and $18,784, respectively, are netted 
with gross carrier revenues in the acconipanying consolidated financial statements. Early termination fees 
are recognized when paid and revenue reIated to billings in advance of providing services is deferred and 
recognized when eamed. 

The Company defers installation revenue from contracts with end customers and with other 
carriers net of certain incentives. The Company is amortizing this revenue over the period of expected 
benefit, which is the average initial temi of the related contracts. As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, the 
Company had $2,042 and $1,440, respectively, recorded in Deferred Revenue as a current liability on the 
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. In addition, the Company had $3,191 and $2,428 as of 
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December 3 1, 2002 and 200 1, respectively, recorded in Other Liabilities for the non-current portion of the 
Deferred Revenue. 

Network Expenses - The Company’s network expenses are comprised primarily of two types of 
charges: leased transport charges which comprise approximately 80% of the Company’s network expenses 
and usage sensitive charges which comprise approximately 20% of the Company’s network expenses. The 
Company’s leased transport charges are the lease payments incurred by US LEC for the transmission 
facilities used to connect the Company’s customers to the Company owned switch that services that 
customer and to connect to the ILEC and other carrier networks. US LEC, as part of its “smart-build’’ 
strategy, does not currently own any fiber or copper transport facilities. These facilities are leased from 
various providers including, in many cases, the ILEC. Usage sensitive charges are primarily comprised of 
usage charges associated with the Cornpaiiy ’s long distance, access charges and reciprocal compensation 
owed to other carriers. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with original 
maturities of three months or less at the time of purchase. 

Restricted Cash - The restricted cash balance as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 serves as 
collateral for letters of credit related to certain office leases. These letters of credit renew annually. 
Restricted cash is utilized to secure the Company’s performance of obligations such as letters of credit to 
support leases or deposits in restricted use accounts. 

Accozcnts Receivable -The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated 
losses resulting from customers’ or carriers’ failure to make payments on amounts due to the Company. 
These estimates are based on a number of factors including 1) historical experience, 2) aging of trade 
accounts receivable, and 3) specific information obtained by the Company on the financial condition and 
current credit worthiness of customers or carriers. 

Deferred Installation Costs - The Company defers installation charges from ILECs related to new 
customers contracts associated with network and end customer facilities. These costs are comprised of 
payments for equipment and services provided by external parties in connecting the telecommunication 
systems of new custoniers to ow telecommunication platform. The Company is amortizing these costs 
over the average initial term of the related contracts which is 30 months. During the years ended December 
31, 2002 and 2001, the Company amortized $4,453 and $2,059, respectively, of deferred installation 
charges into Network Expenses. As of December 3 1,2002 and 2001, the Company had $4,119 and $3,5 10, 
respectively, recorded in Other Current Assets and $4,128 and $2,999, respectively, recorded in Other 
Assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets relating to unamortized deferred installation 
charges. 

Property and Equiprizeizt - Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. 
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful Iives of the assets, except 
for leasehold improvements as noted below. 

The estimated useful lives of the Company’s principal classes of property and equipment are as follows: 

Telecommunications switching and other equipment 
Office equipment, furniture and other 
Leasehold improvements 

5 - 9 years 
5 years 
The lesser of the estimated 
useful lives or the lease term 

The Company capitalized $1,478 and $1,638 in payroll related costs during the years ended 
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, in accordance with the AICPA Statement of Position (“SOP”) 
98-1, “Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use.” These 
assets are amortized over five years. 
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Long-Lived Assets - The Company reviews the carrying value of its long-lived assets for 
impainnent whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of these assets 
may not be recoverable. Determination of impairment results from a comparison of estimated undiscounted 
future operating cash flows anticipated to be generated during the remaining Iife of the assets with their net 
c a v i n g  value. An impairment loss would be recognized as the amount by which the carrying value of the 
assets exceeds their fair value. 

Accrued Network Costs - Accrued network costs inchde management’s estimate of charges for 
direct access lines, facility charges, outgoing and incoming minutes, reciprocal compensation and other 
costs of revenue for a given period for which bills have not yet been received by the Company. 
Management’s estimate is developed from the number of Iines and facilities in service, minutes of use and 
contractual rates charged by each respective service provider. Subsequent adjustments to this estimate may 
result when actual costs are billed by the service provider to the Company. However, management does not 
believe such adjustments will be material to the Company’s financial statements. 

Debt Issuaizce Cost I The Company capitalizes costs associated with securing long-term debt and 
amortizes such costs over the term of the debt agreement. The Company had deferred debt issuance costs 
(net of accumulated amortization of $2,619 and $1,765) of $4,290 and $3,922 as of December 31, 2002 and 
2001, respectively, recorded in other assets on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets that are being 
amortized over the life of the related debt agreement. (See Note 4) 

Fair Value of Financial Insti-uments - Management believes the fair values of the Company’s 
financial instruments, including cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivables, accounts payable, 
accrued network costs and subordinated notes approximate their carrying value. In addition, because the 
majority of long-term debt consists of variable rate instruments, management believes their carrying values 
approximate fair values. 

Income Taxes - Income taxes are provided for temporary differences between the tax and financial 
accounting basis of assets and liabilities using the liability method. The tax effects of such differences, as 
reflected in the balance sheet, are at the enacted tax rates expected to be in effect when the differences 
reverse. Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount 
expected to be realized and are reversed at such time that realization is believed to be more likely than not. 

Concentration of Risk - The Company is exposed to concentration of credit risk principally from 
hade accounts receivable due from end customers and carriers. The Company’s end customers are located 
in the southeastern and mid-Atlantic United States. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of 
its end customers but does not require collateral deposits from a majority of its end customers. The 
Company is exposed to additional credit risk due to the fact that the Company’s most significant trade 
receivables are from a few large telecommunications carriers. 

The Company is dependent upon certain suppliers for the provision of telecommunications 
services to its customers. The Company has executed interconnection agreements for all states in whch it 
operates. 

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conforniity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets 
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
Significant estimates relate to revenue recognition, the allowance for doubtful accounts receivable, 
estimated end customer contract life, accrual of network costs payable to other telecommunications entities, 
income tax valuation allowance, and conclusions regarding the impairment of and the estimated useful lives 
of fixed assets. Any difference between the amounts recorded and amounts ultimately realized or paid will 
be adjusted prospectively as new facts become known. 

Advertising - The Company expenses advertising costs in the period incurred. Advertising expense 
amounted to $1,287, $1,473 and $1,190 for 2002,2001 and 2000, respectively. 
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SigizzJicarzt Customer - In 2002, 2001 and 2000 BellSouth, operating in the majority of the 
Company’s markets, accounted for approximately 5%, 10% and 15%, respectively, of the Company’s net 
revenue. The majority of this revenue was generated from reciprocal compensation. Although reciprocal 
compensation owed to the Company by BellSouth is not customer revenue in the traditional sense, 
BellSouth is disclosed here due to their significance. At December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, BellSouth 
accounted for 5%, 16% and 70%, of the Company’s total accounts receivable before allowance, 
respectively. The majority of such receivables and revenues in 1999, resulted from traffic associated with 
Metacomm, LLC (“Metacomnl”), a customer of the Company and BellSouth, which became a related party 
to the Company during 1998. During 2000, Metaco” ceased to be a customer of BellSouth and the 
Company and no revenue was recorded in 2000 related to Metacomm traffic. As a result of the March 31, 
2000 order issued by the North Carolina Utilities Commission (“NCUC’’) denying reciprocal compensation 
to the Company from traffic associated with the Metacomm network, the Company recorded a pre-tax, non- 
recurring, non-cash charge of approximately $55,000. During 2007, the Company and BellSouth entered 
into a settlement agreement (the “Settlement Agreement”) by which they resolved outstanding reciprocal 
compensation disputes in the various states in which both operate and other past payments (see Note 6 to 
the Company’s consolidated financial statements). 

Stock Based Compensation - The Company measures the compensation cost of its stock option 
plan under the provisions of Accountmg Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock 
Issued to Employees”, as pemitted under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123, 
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”. Under the provisions of APB No. 25, compensation cost is 
measured based on the intrinsic value of the equity instrument awarded. Under the provisions of SFAS No, 
123, compensation cost is measured based on the fair value of the equity instrument awarded. 

Had compensation cost for the employee warrants and stock options been determined consistent with 
SFAS No. 123, the Company’s net loss and net loss per share would approximate the foIlowing proforma 
amounts: 

2002 2001 2000 

Net loss, as reported 
Preferred dividends 
Accretion of preferred stock issuance fees 

Net loss attributable to comniaron stockholders, as reported 

Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in 
reported net income, net of related tax effects 

Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense 
determined under fair value based method for all awards, net of 
related tax effects 

$ (45,892) $ (63,354) $ (1 17,392) 
(1 3,596) (12,8 10) (8,758) 

(52 I )  (49 1) (336) 
~ ~ __ ~ 

$ (60,009) $ (76,655) $ (126,486) 

21 446 150 

(4,1 OG) (7,546) (4,194) 

Pro forma net loss $ (64,094) $ (83,755) $ (130,530) 

Weighted average shares outstanding 

Loss per share: 
Basic and diluted, as reported 

Basic and diluted, pro forma 

26,546 27,108 27,G 18 

$ (2.26) $ (2.83) $ (4.58) 

$ (2.41) $ (3.09) $ (4.73) 
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The Company estimated the fair value for both the stock options and the warrants using the Black- 
Scholes model assuming no dividend yield m 2002, 2001 and 2000; volatility of SO%, 80%, and 80%, for 
2002,2001, and 2000, respectively, an average risk-free interest rate of 3.0%, 6.0%, and 6.5%, for 2002, 
2001, and 2000, respectively, an expected life of 12 months for the warrants issued prior to 2002 and 4.7, 
4.9 and 5.0 years for the stock options in 2002,2001, and 2000 respectively. The weighted average 
remaining contractual life of warrants and stock options outstanding at December 3 1, 2002 was 9.6 years 
and 7.3 years, respectively. 

The Company estimated the fair value of the Employee Stock Purchase Plan shares based upon the 
stock price at December 3 1, 200 1 (the “issue date”). Compensation cost was estimated based upon the 
intrinsic value of the award at the issue date. 

RecEnssificafions - Certain reclassifications have been made to 2000 and 2001 amounts to 
conform to the 2002 presentation. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements - Effective January 1, 200 1, the Company adopted Statement of 
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 133, ltAccounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging 
Activities”, as amended by SFAS No. 138, “Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Hedging 
Activities.” SFAS No. 133 establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments and 
hedging activities by requiring that entities recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities at fair 
market value on the balance sheet. The adoption of SFAS No. 133 did not have a material effect on its 
results of  operations as it does not currently hold any derivative instruments or engage in hedging activities. 

SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”, which 
supersedes SFAS 12 1 , “Accounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived 
Assets to be Disposed Of ’, but retains many of its fundamental provisions. SFAS 144 also supercedes the 
accounting and reporting provisions of APE Opinion 30, “Reporting the Results of Operations - Reporting 
the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring 
Events and Transactions.’’ This statement retains the requirement to report discontinued operations 
separately from continuing operations and expands the scope of transactions that qualify as discontinued 
operations. SFAS No. 144 was effective for the Company for financial statements issued for the fiscal 
year beginning January 1, 2002. The adoption of SFAS No. 144 did not have a materia1 effect on the 
Company’s results of operations.. 

In April 2002, SFAS No. 145 “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment of 
FASB No. 13, and Technical Corrections” was issued. SFAS No. 145, among other things, eliminates 
FASB Statement No. 4 “Reporting Gains and Losses from Extinguishment of Debt” which required gains 
and losses from debt extinguishments to be aggregated and, if material, classified as an extraordinary item 
net of associated income tax effects, and also eliminates the exception to applying Accounting Principles 
Board (APB) Opinion No. 30. As such, gains and losses from debt extinguishments should be classified as 
extraordinary items only if they meet certain criteria in APB Opinion No. 30. Such criteria distinguishes 
transactions that are part of an entity’s recurring operations from those that are unusual or mfrequent or that 
meet the criteria of APB Opinion No. 30 for classification as an extraordinary item. Te provision of SFAS 
No, 145 related to the rescission of SFAS No. 4 shall be applied in fiscal years beginning after May 15, 
2002. The application of such provisions of SFAS No. 145 is not expected to have a material effect on the 
Company’s results of operations. 

In June 2002, SFAS No. 146 “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities” 
was issued and is effective for such activities initiated after December 3 1, 2002. SFAS No. 146 specifies, 
among other things, the financial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal 
activities and nullifies Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 94-3 “Liability Recognition for 
Certain Employee Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity, including Certain Costs Incurred in a 
Restructuring.” The adoption of SFAS No. 146 is not expected to significantly impact the Company’s 
financial statements or hture results of operations. 
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In November 2002, FASB Interpretation No. 45 (“FIN 45”) “Guarantor’s Accounting and 
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others” was 
issued which, among other things, expands guarantor fmancial statement disclosures about its obligations 
under certain guarantees and requires the guarantor to recognize a liability for the fair value of an 
obligation assumed under a guarantee. FIN 45 clarifies the requirements of SFAS No. 5 “Accounting for 
Contingencies” relating to guarantees and its initial recognition and measurement provisions are applied on 
a prospective basis to guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. FIN 45 does not 
significantly impact the Company’s financial statements or disclosures, nor is it expected to significantly 
impact future results of operations or financial position. 

In December 2002, SFAS No. 148 “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-Transition and 
Disclosure-an amendment of FASB No. 123” was issued to provide alternative methods of transition for a 
voluntary change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee conipensation. In 
addition, SFAS No. 148 amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123 to require prominent 
disclosures in both annual and interim financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-based 
employee compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results. The transition guidance and 
annual discIosure provisions of SFAS No. 148 are effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 
2002. The interim disclosure provisions are effective for fmancial reports containing financial statements 
for interim periods beginning after December 15, 2002. The Company has applied the disclosure 
provisions of SFAS No. 148 in these consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. 

In January 2003, FASB Interpretation No. 46 (“FIN 46”), Consolidation of Variable Interest 
Entities” was issued which, among other things, provides guidance on identifying variable interest entities 
(bcVIE’’) and determining when assets, liabilities, non-controlling interests, and operating results of a VIE 
should be included in a company’s consolidated financial statements, and aIso requires additional 
disclosures by primary beneficiaries and other significant variable interest holders. Certain disclosure 
requirements of FIN 46, if applicable, are required for financial statements initially issued after Januaiy 3 1, 
2003. Companies with variable interest in variable interest entities created after January 3 I, 2003 shall 
apply the provisions of FIN 46 immediately. PubIic entities with a variable interest in a variable interest 
entity shall apply the provisions of FIN 46 no later than the first interim or annual reporting period 
beginning after June 15, 2003. FIN 46 is not expected to significantly impact the Company’s fmancial 
statements or future results of operations. 

3. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Property and equipment at December 3 1, is sunmiarized by major class as follows: 

Telecommunications switching and other equipment $185,195 $161,178 
Office equipment, hmiture and other 82,627 72,805 
Leasehold improvements 28,096 28,176 

295,9 1 8 262,159 
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (1 17,108) (73,723) 

-----------------I-________________ 

Total $178’8 10 $1 88,436 

4. LONG-TERM DEBT 

On December 3 1 , 2002, the Company amended its senior secured credit facility. As a condition to 
amending the senior secured credit facility, the Company’s senior lenders required an investment of $5,000 
in the Company. Therefore, concurrent with amending the senior secured credit facility, the Coinpany 
received gross proceeds of $5,000 through the issuance of 11% subordinated notes with a stated value of 
$5,000 (the “Subordinated Notes”) and warrants to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock (the 
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“2002 Warrants”). The $5,000 was invested by a group of private investors that included the Company’s 
founders, Richard T. Aab and Tansukh V. Ganatra. Mr. Aab currently serves as Chaiiman of the Company 
and Mr. Ganatra serves as a director. 

As amended, the senior secured credit facility is comprised of a $102,937 term loan and a $25,000 
revolving credit facility. The Company made an $8,000 principal payment on the term loan in connection 
with the amendment, reducing the outstanding balance from $1 10,937 to $102,937. The interest rate for 
the facility is a floating rate based, at the Company’s option, on a base rate (as defmed in the loan 
agreement) or the London Interbank Offered Rate, pIus a specified margin. Advances under the credit 
agreement as of December 3 1, 2002 bear interest at an average annual rate of approximatdy 5.75%. The 
facility is secured by a security interest in substantially all of the Company’s assets. 

In amending the senior secured credit facility, the Company deferred $30,000 of term loan 
principal payments from 2003 and 2004 to 2005 and 2006; deferred repayment of the $25,000 outstanding 
under the revolving facility from 2005 to 2006; agreed to pay additional interest on the deferred portion of 
the term loan amounts at an annual rate of lo%, payable upon the maturity of the loan in December 2006, 
and agreed to revised fmancial covenants. 

As amended, in addition to regular scheduled quarterly principal payments, the Company is 
required to make certain mandatory prepayments of principal equal to a portion of the interest paid to the 
Subordinated Note holders. These mandatory prepayments are scheduled to be $306, $335, $340 and $337 
in 2003, 2004, 2005 and 2006 respectively. There are no other regular scheduled principal payments due 
during 2003, $500 in principal payments are due in March and June 2004, $3,188 is due in September 
2004, $6,250 is due in December 2004, $11,446 is payable in each quarter of 2005 and the flrst three 
quarters of 2006, and a final principal payment of $1 1,064 is due when the term loan matures in December 
2006. 

The revised financial covenants were designed to conform to the business plan provided by the 
Company to its senior lenders in connection with the amendment. The covenants include: achievement of 
minimum levels of earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization and credit restructuring costs ; 
maintenance of a minimum specified gross margin percentage (as defined); limits on the amount of capital 
expenditures; maintenance of minimum levels of unrestricted cash; and beginning in March 2005, 
maintenance of specified total leverage, cash interest coverage and minimum fixed charge coverage ratios. 
Measurements of the revised covenants will commence in 2003. Management believes that the Company 
will be in compliance with all fmancial covenants for a period at least through December 2003 based on 
projected operating results. The operating results reflected in the business plan are dependent on the 
Company meeting targets for new customers, customer retention, customer usage, billing rates, gross 
margins and selling, general, and administrative costs and as a result involve some degree of uncertainty. 
Should any of these assumptions not be achieved for a particular period, it is possible that a financial 
covenant will not be met for the period through December 2003. Although there can be no assurances, 
management believes if this were to occur it would be able to obtain the necessary waivers or amendments 
from its lenders. Should such waivers or amendments not be obtained, the lenders would have the right 
under the credit agreement to certain remedies including acceleration of debt repayment. 

The $5,000 in gross proceeds received on December 31, 2002 was allocated, based on the 
approximate relative fair values, $2,680 to the Subordinated Notes and $2,320 to the 2002 Warrants. The 
Subordinated Notes are included in long-term debt and the 2002 Warrants are included in additional paid- 
in-capital in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 3 1, 2002. The Subordinated 
Notes bear interest at an annual rate of 11% payable monthly, have a five-year term and are subordinated to 
the senior credit facility. The discount on the Subordinated Notes will be amortized over the term of the 
notes. The Subordinated Note holders received warrants to purchase 1,737 and 895 shares of the 
Conipany’s common stock at an exercise price of $1.90 and $2.06 per share, respectively. The 2002 
Warrants are exercisable immediately aiid expire upon the earlier of 10 years or five years from the 
repayment in full of the Subordinated Notes. The Company granted the 2002 Warrant holders demand and 
piggyback registration rights with respect to the common stock underlying the 2002 Warrants, 
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Scheduled maturities of long-term debt are as follows: 
Senior Secured Subordinated 
Credit Facility Notes Total 

Year ending December 31: 
2003 306 306 
2004 10,772 10,772 
2005 46,122 46,122 
2006 70,737 70,737 
2007 2,680 2,680 

1 3 0,6 1 */ Total 1 2./, 93 -/ 2,680 

5. SERIES A MANDATORILY REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK 

On April 11, 2000, the Company issued $200,000 of its Series A Mandatorily Redeemable 
Convertible Preferred Stock (the "Series A Preferred Stock") to affiliates of Bain Capital, Inc. (Bain) and 
Thomas H. Lee Partners, L.P. (THL). The Series A Preferred Stock earns dividends on a cumulative basis 
at an annual rate of 6%, payable quarterly in shares of Series A Preferred Stock for three years, and at US 
LEC's option, in cash or shares of Series A Preferred Stock over the next seven years. In addition, the 
Series A Preferred Stock participates on a pro rata basis in the dividends payable to common shareholders. 
As of December 3 1,2002, the Company issued $35,164 in Series A Preferred Stock Dividends. In the event 
of any liquidation, dissolution or other winding up of the affairs of the Company, the holders of Series A 
Preferred Stock are entitled to be paid in preference to any distribution to holders of junior securities, an 
amount in cash, equal to $1,000 per share plus a11 accrued and unpaid dividends on such shares. On or after 
April 11, 2001, the holders of the shares of Series A Preferred Stock may convert all or a portion of their 
shares into shares of Class A Common Stock at a set conversion price. The initial conversion price of 
$35.00 has been adjusted to approximately $30.70 as of December 31, 2002 pursuant to the anti-dilution 
provisions of the Series A Preferred Stock. The conversion price was further adjusted on January 15, 2003 
to approximately $30.06 primarily as a resuIt of the warrants issued in the transaction acquiring certain 
assets of Eagle Communications, Inc. (see Note 13) and pursuant to the anti-dilution provisions of the 
Series A Preferred Stock. The holders of the Series A Preferred Stock may also convert all or a portion of 
their shares into Class A Common Stock at a set conversion price prior to April 11, 2010 in the event of a 
change in control or an acquisition event. Each holder of the Series A Preferred Stock may redeem all or a 
portion of their Series A Preferred Stock at a price equal to 101% of $1,000 per share plus all accrued 
dividends on such shares after the occurrence of a change in control and for a period of 60 days following 
such event. At any time on or after April 11, 2003, the Company may redeem all of the outstanding shares 
of Series A Preferred Stock, at a price equal to $1,000 per share plus all accrued and unpaid dividends on 
such shares, only if the market price of a share of common stock for 30 consecutive trading days during the 
90 day period immediately preceding the date of the notice of redemption is at least 150% of the then 
effective conversion price and the market price of a share of common stock on the redemption date is also 
at least 150% of the then effective conversion price. All outstanding shares of the Series A Preferred Stock 
are subject to mandatory redemption on April 11, 2010. Proceeds to the Company, net of commissions and 
other transaction costs, were approximately $194,000. 

The Company incurred $6,240 in expenses related to the issuance of the Series A Preferred Stock. 
The cost will be accreted against Retained Earnings (Deficit) over the life of the agreement. For the years 
ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company accreted $521 and $491 of these costs, respectively. As 
of December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company had $4,892 and $5,413 in Series A Preferred Stock issuance 
costs, respectively, netted with Series A Mandatorily Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock on its 
Consolidated Ralance Sheet. 
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6. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

The deregulation of the telecommunications industry, the implementation of the Telecom Act 
enacted on February 8, 1996 and the distress of many carriers in the wake of the downturn in the 
telecommunications industry have involved numerous industry participants, including the Company, in 
lawsuits, proceedings and arbitrations before state and federal regulatory commissions, private arbitration 
organizations such as the American Arbitration Association, and courts over many issues important to the 
financial and operational success of the Company. These issues include the interpretation and enforcement 
of interconnection agreements, the terms of interconnection agreements the Company may adopt, operating 
performance obligations, reciprocal compensation, access rates, access rates applicable to different 
categories of traffic such as traffic originating from or terminating to cellular or wireless users and the 
jurisdiction of traffic for compensation purposes. The Company anticipates that it will continue to be 
involved in various lawsuits, arbitrations and proceedings over these and other material issues. The 
Company anticipates also that further legislative and regulatory rulemaking will occur-on the federal and 
state level-as the industry deregulates and as the Company enters new markets or offers new products. 
Rulings adverse to the Company, adverse legislation, or changes in governmental policy on issues material 
to the Company could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition or results of its 
operations. Revenue recognized and amounts recorded as allowances for doubtful accounts in the 
accompanying fmancial statements have been determined considering the impact, if any, of the items 
described below. Except as noted below, items described hereln did not impact the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements. 

Reciprocal Coinpensation - On April 27, 2001, the Federal Comiunications Commission (“FCC”) 
released an Order on Remand and Report and Order (the “Remand Order”) addressing inter-carrier 
compensation for traffic terminated to Internet service providers (“ISPs”). The interpretation and 
enforcement of the Remand Order will likely be the most important factor in the Company’s efforts to 
colIect reciprocal compensation for ISP-bound traffic in the future. In the Remand Order, the FCC 
addressed a number of important issues, including the rules under which carriers are to compensate each 
other for traffic terminated to ISPs and the rates applicable for ISP-bound traffic as we11 as traffic bound to 
other customers. 

While the Remand Order provides greater certainty about the Company’s right to bill for traffic 
terminated to ISPs, the effect of the Remand Order on the Company will depend on how it is interpreted 
and enforced. In particular, there are uncertainties as to whether the Remand Order has any effect on the 
Company’s pending arbitral, state regulatory commission and judicial proceedings seeking to collect 
compensation for traffic previously termmated to ISPs; whether certain provisions of the Remand Order 
will be applied state-by-state, market-by-market andor carrier-by-carrier; whether the limitations on 
growth of ISP traffic in the Remand Order will survive legal challenge; and whether the incumbent carrier 
will efficiently trigger the rate reductions and other limitations set forth in the Remand Order. 

On May 3, 2002, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia (the “D.C. Circuit”) rejected 
the FCC’s legal analysis in the Remand Order and again remanded the order to the FCC for hrther review 
(the “Second Remand”), but the D.C. Circuit did not vacate the Remand Order. As such, the ISP 
compensation structure established by the FCC in the Remand Order remains in effect. It is unclear at this 
time whether, how or when the FCC will respond to the Second Remand, how the Second Remand affects 
pending disputes over reciprocal compensation for ISP traffic, how the Remand Order will be interpreted or 
whether affected parties will undertake new challenges to the ISP compensation structure established by the 
Remand Order. 

If the Remand Order or the Second Remand were to be interpreted in a manner adverse to the 
Company on all or any of the issues, or if the Remand Order is modified as a result of the Second Remand 
or other pending or new legal challenges, it could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s future 
operations. 

On October 3, 2001 the Company and BellSouth entered into a settlement agreement (the 
“Settlement Agreement”) by which the Company and BellSouth resolved outstanding reciprocal 
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compensation receivables in the various states in which both of us operate and other past payments. 
BellSouth agreed to pay US LEC approximately $3 1,000, in addition to approximately $10,000 it paid in 
August 2001, to resolve those issues for periods prior to the effective date of the Remand Order. The 
Settlement Agreement imposed on the parties certain obligations regarding the payment of reciprocal 
compensation in the hture. The settlement Agreement also provides that the payments made for periods 
prior to the effective date of the Remand Order are not subject to adjustment as a result of subsequent 
changes in the Remand Order (see Allowance for Doubtful Accounts below). 

In September 2001, the Company filed a proceeding with the Virginia State Corporation 
Commissioii (“VSCC”) and the FCC seeking to collect reciprocal compensation from Verizon payable for 
traffic bound for ISPs as well as other customers. The VSCC decIined jurisdiction over the dispute. In 
January 2002, the FCC accepted jurisdiction over the dispute. Prior to the Company’s filing a complaint 
against Verizon at the FCC, and in a separate, but related, case, the FCC held that the contract with Verizon 
(that the Company had adopted) did not obligate the parties to pay reciprocal compensation for traffic 
bound for ISPs. That decision is on appeal. In June 2002, Verizon filed a complaint against the Company in 
the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia seeking a declaratory ruling that 
Verizon is not obligated to pay the Company reciprocal compensation for traffic bound for ISPs under the 
agreement adopted by the Company. The Company moved to dismiss Verizon’s complaint based on a 
number of factors; tlie Court took the Company’s motion under advisement and directed the Company to 
initiate a proceeding against Verizon at the FCC. On September 5 ,  2002, the Company filed a Formal 
Complaint with the FCC’s Enforcement Bureau seeking to collect reciprocal compensation from Verizon 
for traffic bound for ISPs. Verizon answered, denying liability. Pending the outcome of the appeal in the 
related case, the FCC converted the Company’s case against Verizon into an informal complaint and has 
placed it on an administrative hold.. In light of these developments, as well as the Second Remand, the 
Company cannot predict when this dispute will be resolved or whether the Company will ultimately be 
successful. 

Disputed Access Revenues - A number of IXCs have rehsed to pay access charges to competitive 
local exchange carriers (“CLECs”), including the Company, alleging that the access charges exceed the 
rates charged by the ILECs, as well as disputing the rates applicable to different categories of traffic and the 
jurisdiction of traffic for compensation purposes. Currently there are a number of court cases, regulatory 
proceedings at the FCC and legislative efforts involving such challenges. The Company cannot predict the 
outcome of these cases, regulatoiy proceedings and legislative efforts or their impact on access rates. 

On April 27,200 1, the FCC released its Seventh Report and Order and Further Notice of Proposed 
Rulemaking (the “Access Order”) in which it established a benchmark rate at which a CLEC’s interstate 
access charges will be presumed to be reasonable and which CLECs may impose on IXCs by tariff. The 
Access Order addresses a number of issues important to how CLECs charge IXCs for originating and 
terminating interstate toll and to11 free traffic. 

The Access Order should provide certainty as to the Company’s right to bill IXCs for interstate 
access at rates at or below the FCC benchmark even though above those tariffed by the ILECs. 
Notwithstanding the apparent certainty created by the Access Order, its effect on tlie Company will depend 
on how the Access Order is interpreted and enforced and the outcome of appeals cuireiitly pending. If the 
Access Order is interpreted or enforced in a manner adverse to the Company as it relates to periods prior to 
the effective date, such result could have a material adverse effect on the Company. 

On May 30, 2001, the FCC issued a decision in AT&T Corp. v. Business Telecom Inc. (the “BTI 
Decision”), in which the FCC determined that the interstate access rates charged by Business Telecom, Inc. 
(“BTI”) were not just and reasonable. The FCC determined that just and reasonable rates for BTI were 
properly based upon the lowest band of rates charged by the National Exchange Carriers Association 
(“NECA”). The FCC based this holding on the limited evidence before it, tending to show that BTI’s 
operations were similar to tliose uf small, urban ILECs, many of whom charge the lowest band NECA 
rates. Appeals of the BTI Decision were subsequently withdrawn. As with the Access Order described 
above, the BTI Decision’s effect on the Company will depend on how the order is interpreted. If the BTI 
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Decision is interpreted in a manner adverse to the Company, such result could have a material adverse 
effect on the Company. 

By settlement dated October 5 ,  2001, Sprint and the Company resolved their litigated dispute over 
access charges. Sprint paid the Company approximately $8,000, in addition to approximately $1,500 it 
paid in the four months preceding the settlement, in payment of past due invoices for periods through July 
2001 (see Allowance for Doubtful Accounts below). 

Due to the federal bankruptcy filing by WorldCom, during the quarter ended June 30, 2002, the Company 
established an additional provision of $9,500 for doubtful accounts for the remaining outstanding 
receivables owed to the Company by WorldCom. The Company is pursuing its claim for the payment of 
all outstanding charges in the WorldCom bankruptcy proceeding, but is fully reserved for the amount due 
from WorldCom for all pre-petition amounts. 

On September 18, 2002, US LEC filed a Petition for Declaratory Ruling with the FCC requesting 
that the FCC reaffirm its prior positions that access charges can be collected by local exchange carriers in 
connection with calls originating or terminating on the networks of wireless carriers. A number of different 
carriers have filed comments in support of, and in opposition to, US LEC's petition. In addition 
1TC"DeItaCom Communications, Inc. (''ITC") has filed a lawsuit against the Company alleging that in an 
effort to collect access charges from ITC for originating wireless traffic destined for ITCs toll-free 
customer, US LEC blocked certain signaling data for calls originated on the networks of US LEC's wireless 
carrier customers that would allow the call to be identified as a wireless call. ITC's lawsuit alleges claims 
based on a number of different legal theories. US LEC, through counsel, has investigated ITC's allegations, 
and has discovered no evidence to support ITC's claims. US LEC has denied ITC's allegation and asserted a 
counterclaim against ITC to recover outstanding access charges owed by ITC. The Company anticipates 
dispositive motions will be filed shortly as the Company seeks early resolution of the case. In addition to 
the lawsuit filed in federal court, ITC also filed an Informal Complaint at the FCC challenging US LEC's 
right to recover access charges on calls originating from wireless carriers. The informal complaint was 
closed without the FCC taking any action. The Company also received a separate request for information 
from the Enforcement Bureau of the FCC concerning the Company's billing for wireless traffic and its 
methods of billing. The Company intends to respond to the FCC's requests. Further, the Company will 
discuss with the FCC its belief that no additional proceedings are warranted by the agency beyond those 
already pending on the issue of terminating calls originating on the networks of wireless carriers, including 
the proceeding commenced by US LEC requesting guidance to the mdustry on the issue. If the FCC does 
not r e a f f m  its prior guidance, the inability of US LEC to recover access charges from IXCs for traffic 
originating on the networks of wireless carrier customers could have a material negative impact on US 
LEC's results of operations. 

In light of the general conditions prevailing in the teleconlmunications industry, there is a risk of 
further delinquencies, nonpayment or bankruptcies by other telecommunications carriers that owe 
outstanding amounts derived from access and facility revenues billed by the Company. Such events, in the 
aggregate, could have an adverse effect on the Company's performance in future periods. The Company is 
unable to predict such events at this tune. 

Legislation - Periodically, legislation has been introduced in the U.S. House of Representatives or 
the U.S. Senate to alter or amend the Telecom Act. It is the TeIecom Act which opened the local telephone 
markets for competition and outlines many of the ground rules pursuant to which the ILECs and the CLECs 
operate with respect to each other. The Company anticipates that additional efforts will be made to alter or 
amend the Telecom Act. The Company cannot predict whether any particular piece of legislation will 
become law and how the Telecom Act might be modified. The passage of legislation amending the 
Telecom Act could have a material adverse effect on the Company and its future financial results. 

Infc7-connectiort Agreenzerzts with ILECs - The Company has agreements for the interconnection of 
its networks with the networks of the TLECs covering each inarket in which US LEC has installed a 
switching platform. US LEC may be required to negotiate new interconnection agreements as it enters new 
markets in the future. In addition, as its existing interconnection agreements expire, it will be required to 
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negotiate extension or replacement agreements. The Company recently concluded interconnection 
arbitrations with Verizon in order to obtain new interconnection agreements on teims acceptable to the 
Company and is awaiting results from those arbitrations from several PUCs. There can be no assurance 
that the Company will successfully negotiate, successfully arbitrate or otherwise obtain such additional 
agreements for interconnection with the ILECs or renewaIs of existing interconnection agreements on terms 
and conditions acceptable to the Company. 

htercorznection with Other Cm-riera - The Company anticipates that as its interconnections with 
various carriers increase, the issue of seeking compensation for the termination or origination of traffic 
whether by reciprocal arrangements, access charges or other charges will become increasingly complex. 
The Company does not anticipate that it will be cost effective to negotiate agreements with every carrier 
with which the Company exchanges originating andor terminating traffic. The Company wilI make a case- 
by-case analysis of the cost effectiveness of committing resources to these interconnection agreements or 
otherwise billing and paying such carriers. 

AlEowance for Doubtftrl Accounts - The Company recorded a significant charge relating to disputed 
receivables in the fourth quarter of 2000. The $52,000 provision is netted on the Company’s consolidated 
statement of operations against a $12,000 reduction in commissions payable on those receivables, resulting 
in the $40,000 provision on the Company’s consolidated statement of operations. Management beIieved 
that this charge was necessary due to the uncertainty related to current regulatory proceedings related to 
reciprocal compensation and other access charges and the continued refusal by ILECs, principally 
BellSouth, to pay amounts believed by the Company to be owed to it under applicable interconnection 
agreements and due to Sprint’s failure to pay US LEC’s access charges. The Company resolved its disputes 
with both BellSouth and Sprint during 200 1. Included in the 2001 consolidated statements of operations is 
an amount approximating $7,042, representing a net recovery of amounts previously recorded as reserves 
for disputed receivables and certain other related accruals. Additionally, charges to bad debt expense for 
the years ending December 3 1, 2002, 2001 and 2000 were $4,970, $6,586 and $988, respectively. 

Leases - The Company leases all of its administrative and switch sites under operating lease 
arrangements. Total rent expense on these leases amounted to $8,140, $7,951 and $5,734 in 2002, 2001 and 
2000, respectively. The Company’s restricted cash balance as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 serves as 
collateral for letters of credit for some of these office leases, 

Future minimum rental payments under operating leases having initial or remaining non- 
cancelable lease terms in excess of one year are as follows: 

2003 $ 7,415 
2004 7,219 
2005 6,507 
2006 5,824 
2007 5,744 
Beyond 17,208 

$ 49,917 
_--I___ 
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7. INCOME TAXES 

The provision for income taxes consists of the following components: 

Deferred 
Federal 
State 

TotaI provision for income taxes 

The reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate to the Company's federal and state overall 
effective income tax rate is as folfows: 

2002 200 1 2000 
_____r______________-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------~~~* 

Statutory federal rate (35.00)% (35.00)% (35.00)% 
State income taxes -- -- (2.06) 
Change in valuation allowance 33.21 33.59 20.05 
Miscellaneous 1.79 1.41 .20 

Effective tax rate 

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of the temporary differences between the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes. Significant 
components of the Company's deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2002,2001and 2000 
are as follows: 

2002 200 1 2000 
--r*__"___________l__r_______________l__------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Deferred tax assets: 
Net operating loss canyfonvard $101,415 $82,322 $57,568 
Defeixed state taxes and other 
Accrued expenses 10,759 5,908 1,293 

120 

Deferred tax assets 
Less: Valuation Allowance 

Total deferred tax assets 

Deferred tax liabilities: 
Net deferred revenues 
Depreciation and amortization 
Capitalized Salaries and Interest 
Accrued Interest 

Total deferred tax liabilities 

Net Deferred Taxes 
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For the years ended December 3 1 , 2002 and 200 1, a valuation allowance has been provided against 
the net deferred tax assets since management cannot predict, based on the weight of available evidence, that 
it is more Iikely than not that such assets will be ultimately realized. 

At December 3 1, 2002, the Company has net operating loss carryfonvards for federal and state tax 
purposes of approximately $239,061. Such losses begin to expire for federal and state purposes in 2017 
and 2012, respectively. 

8. RELATED PARTIES 

During 1998, the Company's majority stockholder acquired an indirect controlling interest in 
Metacomm. Metacomm was engaged in the business of developing and operating a high-speed data 
network in North Carolina, and was a customer of the Company and BellSouth during 1999 and 1998. On 
March 3 1,2000 the NCUC issued an order that relieved BellSouth from paying reciprocal compensation to 
the Company for any minutes of use attributable to Metacomm. The Company recorded no revenue 
associated with the Metacomm network in 2002, 2001 or 2000. As a result of the order, the Company 
subsequently recorded a pre-tax, non-recurring, non-cash charge of approximately $55,000 in the first 
quarter of 2000. The charge was composed of the write-off o f  approximately $153,000 in receivables 
related to reciprocal compensation revenue offset by previously estabIished reserves of $39,000 and a 
reduction of $59,000 in commissions payable to Metacomm. 

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN 

The Company has a 40 1 (k) savings plan under which employees can contribute up to 15 % of their 
annual salary. For 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively, the Company made matching contributions to the 
plan totaling $1,018, $1,006 and $757 based on 50% of the first 6% of an employee's contribution to the 
plan. 

10. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Cornmon Stock - In 2001, prior to the completion of the recapitalization transaction described 
below, the Company had previously authorized and issued two classes of common stock, Class A and Class 
B. As a result of the aforementioned recapitalization, 2,000 shares of Class 13 Common stock were 
cancelled and the remaining 14,000 shares of Class B were converted into the same number of Class A 
Common Shares. The rights of holders of the Class A Common Stock are entitled to one vote per share in 
the election of the members of the Board of Directors. 

Employee Stock Purchase PZm - In May 2000, the Company's shareholders approved and the 
Company adopted the Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the "Stock Purchase Plan"). Under the terms of the 
Stock Purchase Plan, as of September 1, 2000 ("the effective date"), the Board of Directors reserved 1,000 
shares of common stock for the plan. The Stock Purchase Plan provides for specified offering periods 
(initiaIly the period from the effective date to December 31, 2000 and thereafter, the six month periods 
between January and June and July and December of each respective year) during which an eligibIe 
employee is permitted to accumulate payroll deductions in a plan account for the purchase of shares of 
Class A Conlmon Stock. SubstantiaIly all employees may elect to participate in the Stock Purchase Plan by 
authorizing payroll deductions in an amount not exceeding ten percent (10%) of their compensation 
payabIe during the offering period, and not more than $25 annually. The purchase price per share will be 
the lower of 85% of the market value of a share as of the first day of each offering periad or 85% of the 
market value of a share as of the last day of each offering period. The Company is presently authorized to 
issue 2,000 shares of common stock under the Stock Purchase Plan. The Company issued share amounts of 
197, 310 and 323 shares at a purchase price of $1.91, $1'99 and $2.30 per share, respectively, which 

54 



represents a 15% discount to the dosing price on December 31, 2002, June 30, 2002 and December 31, 
200 1, respectively. 

Stock Option Plan - In Januaiy 1998, the Company adopted the US LEC Corp. 1998 Omnibus 
Stock Plan (the “Plan”). In August 1998, the Company filed a registration statement to register (i) 1,300 
shares of Class A Common Stock reserved for issuance under the Plan and (ii) 180 shares of Class A 
Common Stock reserved for issuance upon the exercise of nontransferable warrants granted by the 
Company to employees. In April 1999, the Company’s stockholders voted to amend the Plan to increase 
the number of Class A Common Stock reserved for issuance under the Plan from 7,300 shares to 2,000 
shares and in May 1999, the Company filed a registration statement to register these additional 700 shares. 
In May 2000, the Company’s stockholders voted to amend the Plan to increase the number of Class A 
Common Stock reserved for issuance under the Plan from 2,000 shares to 3,500 shares and in August 2000, 
the Company filed a registration statement to register these additional 1,500 shares. In May 2001, the 
Company’s stockholders voted to amend the Plan to increase the number of Class A Common Stock 
reserved for issuance under the Plan from 3,500 shares to 5,000 shares and in 2001, the Company filed a 
registration statement to register these additional 1,500 shares. Under the amended Plan, 5,000 shares of 
Class A Common Stock have been reserved for issuance for stock options, stock appreciation rights, 
restricted stock, performance awards or other stock-based awards. Options granted under the Plan are at 
exercise prices determined by the Board of Directors or its Compensation Committee. For incentive stock 
options, the option price may not be less than the market value of the Class A Common Stock on the date 
of grant (1 10% of market value for greater than 10% stockholders). 

In January 1998, the Company granted incentive stock options to substantially all employees to 
purchase an aggregate of I83 shares of Class A Common Stock at $10 per share (fair market value on date 
of grant was $13 per share). These options began vesting annually in four equal installments beginning in 
January 1999. The Company recorded deferred compensation of $548 in 1998 associated with these 
options, which was amortized to compensation expense over the four-year vesting period. The Company 
amortized $5,  $73 and $60 for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, to compensation expense relating to 
these options, after consideration of forfeitures. 

Also, during 1998, the Company granted to an employee an option to purchase 360 shares of Class 
A Conmion Stock at $13 per share (fair market value on the date of grant was $14 per share). The 
Company recorded deferred compensation of $360 associated with these options and did amortize this 
amount to compensation expense over the four year vesting period. The Company amortized $30 in 2002 
and $90 in each of 2001 and 2000 to compensation expense relating to these options. 

In December 2001, the Company granted to an employee an option to purchase 550 shares of 
Class A Conmon Stock at $2.91 per share (fair market value on the date of grant was $5.60 per share). In 
connection with the resignation of this employee in October 2002, this option was reduced to 100 shares, 
which were previously vested. The Company amoitized $283 and ($14) for 2001 and 2002, respectively, 
to compensation expense relating to these options. 

In December 2002 the Company announced a voluntary stock option exchange offer for the 
holders of stock options with an exercise price of $4.00 or more. Approximately 3,231 options were 
eligible for exchange in the offer. Immediately following the expiration of the offer on January 29, 2003, 
the Company accepted for exchange eligible options tendered to it for 2,857 shares of US LEC common 
stock and canceled all of these eligible options. The Company expects to grant the new options in early 
August 2003. The exercise price of the new options received in the exchange will be fair value on the date 
the new options are granted. 

55 



A summary of the option and warrant activity is as follows: 

O p t  ions warrants 
........................................................ 

We rght ed 
Average Average Average 

Number Exercise Fair Value Number Exercise 
O f  Price at Date of Of Price 

Shares Per Share Grant Warrants Per Warrant 

weighted Weighted 

............................................................................................................... 

Balance at December 31, 1 9 9 9  

G r a n t e d  at fair market value 
Exerc I sed 
Forfeited or cancelled 

Balance at December 31. 2000 

Granted at fair market value 
Granted at less than fair 

~xercised 
Forfeited or cancelled 

market v a l u e  

Balance at December 31, 2001 

Granted at fair market value 
Exercised 
Forfeited or cancelled 

Balance at December 31. 2002 

0 51 

2 96 

4.41 

2 80 

$ 3 4 6  
........... 

.. 

2 06 

A SUrI”dry of the range of cxercisc prices and weighted dverdge remaining lives for optrom and w u ”  outstandmg md cxcrcisablc at December 3 I ,  2002 IS as lollows 

O p t i o n s  granted at 
fair market value 

Opcions granted at less than 
fair market value 

Total options outstanding at 
December 31, 2002 

Options Outstanding 
............................................................................. 

Weighted 
Average Weighted Weighted 

Range of Number of Remaining Average 
Exercise OptiOnS Contractual Exercise 
Price Outstanding Life Price 

......................................................... 

$1 74 - $3.30 
3 41 

3.50 - 4.11 
4.41 - 5.03 
5 81 - 6.88 
7.31 - 9 50 

-- - 

- -  - 11 
12 38 - 26 

27 69 - 37.13 

1 74 - 37 13 

145 8 9 years $ 2 91 
4 16 0 4 years 3 41 
4 19 8 2 years 3 96 
4 6 0  9 0 years 4 92 
593 7 9 years 6 00 
8 2 0  5 0 years 7 3 4  

7.6 years 
6 9 years 

44 208 
13 784 

72 7.0 years 30 60 
......... ....... 

3,917 7.5 years 9 22 

.. 

Number of Average 
Options Exercise 
Exercisable Price 
_~_______________. 

26 $ 3 
104 
132 
72 

230 
8 06 
11 44 

20  60  
39 

2 , 0 6 7  

_ _ _ _ _ _  

13 
3 41 
3.89 
5 01 
6.02 
7 33 

104 
555 20 5 0  
30 46 

10 81 
....... 

1 0 4  3 16 
............. 

Warrants Out standing 
............................................................. 

Number of Weighted 
Warrants Average Weighted 

Fange of Out standing Femai n 1 nq Average 
Exercise and Contractual Exercise 

P r i c e  Exercisable Life PTlCe 
................................................................................................................... 

Warrants granted a t  fair market value 

Warrants granted at less then fair market value 

Total warrants at December 3 1 ,  2002 

11.44 

$ 2  8 6  143 3 years $ 2 86 
2 06 895 10 years 2 06 

..... ...... 

$ 2  06- 2 86 1.068 9 years 2 17 
$1 90 1,737 10 years 1 90 

$1.90 - 2 E6 2,775 9.6 years $ 2 00  _ _ _ _ _ _  .._._ 

T h e  Company estimated the fair value of the Employce Stock Purchase PIaii shares based upon the 
stock price at December 31, 2001 (the “issue date”). Compensation cost was estimated based upon the 
intrmsic value of the award at the issue date. 
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In 2000, additional paid-in-capital was reduced by approximately $3 6,000 representing amounts 
due from Metacomm, which is indirectly controlled by hchard T. Aab, the Company's Chairman and 
largest stockholder. Due to Mr. Aab's controlling position in both Metacomm and the Company, this 
amount was treated for fiiancial reporting purposes as a deemed distribution to the stockholder. 

On March 31, 2001, the Company, hchard T. Aab, the Company's Chairman, controlling 
shareholder at that time and the indirect controlling owner of Metacomm, and Tansukh V. Ganatra, the 
Company's former Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, reached an agreement in principle to effect 
a recapitalization of the Company and to resolve Mr. Aab's commitment that Metacomm would fully 
satisfy its obligations to the Company for facilities, advances and interest. This transaction was closed on 
August 6, 2001. Under the agreement, the following events occurred: (1) Mr. Aab made a contribution to 
the capital of the Company by delivering to the Company for cancellation 2,000 shares of Class B Common 
Stock, (2) Mr. Aab and Mr. Ganatra converted all of the then remaining and outstanding shares of Class B 
Common Stock - a total of approximately 14,000 such shares were outstanding after the 2,000 shares were 
cancelled - into the same number of shares of Class A Common Stock. As set out in the articles of 
incorporation, Class B Shares that have been converted to Class A can not be reissued (3) the Company 
agreed to indemnify Mr. Aab for certain adverse tax effects, if any, relating to the Company's treatment in 
its baIance sheet of the amount of the Metacomm obligation as a distribution to shareholder and (4) the 
Company agreed to indemnify Mr. Ganatra for certain adverse tax effects, if any, from the conversion of 
his Class B shares to Class A shares. The Company has not recorded a liability associated with these 
indemnifications as management has concluded that as of Deceniber 31, 2002, it is not probable that any 
amounts would be payable. Based on a three-year statute of limitations, these indemnifications would 
expire in 2005. The Company is unable to estimate the maximum potential amount of future payments that 
may be due under these indemnifications due to a number of factors including the lack of information 
available regarding the individual tax affairs of Mr. Aab and Mr. Ganatra. 

As required by the agreement, the Company obtained a valuation by a qualified valuation firm 
approved by the Company's audit cormnittee that the delivery of the 2,000 shares of Class B Common 
Stock and the conversion of the approximately 14,000 shares of Class B Common Stock into the same 
number of shares of Class A Common Stock would result in the realization by the Company and its Class A 
shareholders of value approximately equal to the outstanding Metacomm obligation, received a favorable 
tax opinion, and received certain consents. 

As a result of this transaction, the number of issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock 
(Class A and Class B together) decreased by 2,000 and, as a result of the elimination of the 10-vote-per- 
share Class B Common Stock, Mr. Aab no longer holds shares representing a majority of the voting power 
of the Company's outstanding Common Stock, although he reinains its largest single shareholder. 

In December 2002, additional paid-in-capital was increased by $2,320 representing the allocated 
portion of the $5,000 in gross proceeds received on December 3 1, 2002 which was allocated based on the 
approximate fair values of the Subordinated Notes and the 2002 Warrants. The Subordinated Notes are 
included in long-term debt and the 2002 Warrants are included in additional paid-in-capital in the 
accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 3 1, 2002 (see note 4).  

11. LOSS PER SHARE 

Loss per common and common equivalent share are based on net Ioss, after consideration of 
preferred stock dividends, and accretion divided by the weighted average number of common shares 
outstanding during the period. For all periods presented all common stock equivalents comprised of options 
and warrants disclosed in Note 10 above, are considered anti-dilutive and are therefore excluded from the 
calculation of the diluted loss per share. 
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12. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED) 

The following table summarizes the Company's results of operations as presented in the 
consolidated statements of operations by quarter for 2002 and 2001. 

Revenue, Net 
Network Expenses 
Selling, General and Administrative 
Provision for Doubtful Accounts related to 
WorldCom 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Loss from Operations 
Interest Income (Expense), Net 
Net Loss 
Preferred Stock Dividends 
Accretion of Preferred Stock Issuance Cost 
Net Loss Attributable to Common Stockholders 
Net Loss Attributable to Common Stockholders per 
Share: 

Weighted Average Share Outstanding: 
Basic and Diluted 

Basic and Diluted 

Quarter Ended 

2002 2002 2002 2002 
March 3 I ,  June JU, September N, December 3 1, 

$ 53,938 $ 58,801 $ 63,892 $ 73,732 * 
27,283 28,851 30,404 34,589 

293 16 25,928 27,896 29,538 

$ (0 .58)  $ (0.91) $ (0.48) $ (0.30) 

26,388 26,392 26,698 26,700 

* Includes the impact of $3,582 increase in revenue as described in Note 13. 

Quarter Ended 

200 1 2001 200 I 200 1 
March 3 I ,  June JU, September JU, December 3 I ,  

Revenue, Net S 38,055 $ 43,051 $ 45,982 $ 51,514 
23,276 25,940 Network Ex pen ses 19,171 21,911 

Selling, General and Administrative 24,228 26,O 17 38,087 26,566 

Depreciation and Amortization 7,775 7,992 8,752 10,584 
Loss from Operations ( ' 3 3 1  19) (12,869) ( 1 7 w  T ( 1  1 J / 6 )  

Net Loss ( 1 w w  ( 1 U 5 F i  (19,422) ( 13, / ' / 5 )  
Preferred Stock Dividends 3,131 3,178 3,226 3,275 
Accretion of Preferred Stock Issuance Cost I20 122 124 125 

Net Loss Attributable to Common Stockholders per 
Share: 

Weighted Average Share Outstanding: 

Recovery for Disputed Receivables (7,0421 

Interest Income (Expense), Net (1,980) (2,189) (2733 1) (2,1991 

Net Loss Attributable to Common Stockholders % ( I W 5 0 )  5 I l W 5 8 )  !f L-, ? ' / ' /Z) ( 1 , 1 '1 3 )  

Basic and Diluted $ (0.66) $ (0.66) $ (0.85) $ (0.66) 

Basic and Diluted 27,768 27,77 1 26,846 26,067 
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13. SUBSEQUENT EVENT 

On January 15,2003, the Company acquired certain assets including the Internet Service Provider 
(“ISP”) customers of Eagle Communications, Inc. (“Eagle”) in North Carolina, Georgia, Florida and 
Tennessee, and assumed certain operating Iiabilities in a transaction that will be accounted for as a 
purchase. The purchase price of this acquisition was $3.0 million consisting of $1.25 million paid in cash, 
and $1.75 million of subordinated notes with warrants to purchase 92 1 shares of the Company’s common 
stock at an exercise price of $1.90 per share. 

On March 12, 2003, the Company finalized the terms of a contract with an inter-exchange carrier 
(“IXC”) for switched access services that had expired on March 13, 2002. The new contract covers 
switched access retroactive to March 14,2002 through March 1 1,2006. The Company had originally 
recorded an estimate of revenue eamed for these services through December 3 1,2002. The accompanying 
consolidated financial statements for fiscal 2002 reflect the increase in this estimate of $3,582 based on the 
retroactive terms of the new contract. 

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING 
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 

None. 
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PART111 

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT 

The information required in response to Item 10 related to directors is incorporated by reference from the 
sections of the Proxy Statement that appear under the heading "Election of Directors". The infomation 
required in response to Item 10 related to Executive Officers is provided in Part I of this report under the 
heading 4 4 E x e c ~ f i ~ e  Officers of the Registrant". 

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

The information required to be furnished in response to Xtem 11 is incorporated by reference from 
the sections of the Proxy Statement that appear under the headings "Compensation of Directors'' and 
"Compensation of Executive Officers". 

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND 
MANAGEMENT 

The information required to be furnished in response to Item 12 is incorporated by reference from 
the section of the Proxy Statement that appear under the heading "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial 
Owners and Management". 

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS 

The information required to be furnished in response to Item 13 is incorporated by reference from 
the section of the Proxy Statement that appear under the heading 'Certain Relationships and Related 
Transactions". 

ITEM 14. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

The Company's management, under the supervision and with the participation of our pnncipal 
executive officer and pnncipal financial officer, evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our 
disclosure controls and procedures within 90 days of the filing date of the annual report on Fonn 10-K. Based on 
this evaluation, our principal executive officer and princrpal financial officer have concluded that the design and 
operation of our disclosure controls and procedures are effective. There were no significant changes in our 
intemal coiitrols or in other factors that could significantly affect these controls subsequent to the date the 
evaluation was completed. 
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PART IV 

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K 

No. 
3.1 
3.2 
3.3 
3.4 
4.1 
4.2 
4.4 
4.5 
4.6 

4.7 

4.8 
4.9 
4.10 
4.11 
4.12 
10.1 

10.2 

(a) Financial Statements, Financial Statement Schedule and Exhibits - The following documeiits 
are filed as part of this Fonn 10-K. 

(1) Financial statements: 

A. Coiisolidated Balance Sheets as of December 3 1 , 2002 and 2001 

B. Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001, and 
2000 

C. Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity (Deficiency) for the years elided December 
3 1,2002,2001 and 2000 

D. Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001, 
and 2000 

E. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001, 
and 2000 

F. Independent Auditors' Report 

(2) Schedule I1 Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 

(3) List of Exhibits: 

Exhibit 
Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company (1) 
Second Restated Bylaws of the Company 
Certificate of Designation Related to Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (2) 
Amendment to Certificate of Designation Related to Series A Convertible Prefe'erred Stock (3) 
Form of CIass A Common Stock Certificate (1) 
Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement, dated April 1 1 , 2000 (2) 
Corporate Govemance Agreement, dated April 1 1 , 2000 (2) 
Registration kghts  Agreement, dated April 1 1, 2000 (2) 
Voting and Tag Along Agreement dated as of April 11,2000 by and among certain Investors, 
hchard T. Aab, Melrich Associates, L.P., Tansukh V. Ganatra and Super STAR Associates Limited 
Partnership (3) 
Amendment to Voting and Tag Along Agreement dated as of August 6,2001 by and among kchard 
T. Aab, Melrich Associates, L.P., Super STAR Associates Limited Partnership, Bain Capital CLEC 
Investors, L.L.C., Thomas H. Lee Equity Fund IV, L.P., Thomas H. Lee Foreign Fund IV-B, L.P. 
and Thomas H. Lee Foreign Fund IV, L.P. (3) 
Note Purchase Agreement, dated December 3 1? 2002 (4) 
Form of Subordinated Note (4) 
Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant (4) 
Registration Rights Agreement, dated December 3 I ,  2002 (4) 
Intercreditor and Subordination Agreement, dated Decemher 3 I ,  2002 (4) 
Plan of Recapitalization dated August 6, 2001 by among the Company, Metacomm, LLC, Richard 
T. Aab, Melrich Associates, L.P., Tansukh V. Ganatra and Super STAR Associates Limited 
Partnership (3) 
Indemnity Agreement dated as of August 6,2001 by and among the Company, Metacomm, LLC, 
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RTA Associates, LLC, Richard T. Aab and Joyce M. Aab (3) 
Indemnity Agreement dated as of August 6,2001 by and among the Company, Tansukh V. Ganatra, 
Sarlaben T. Ganatra, Rajesh T. Ganatra and Super STAR Associates Limited Partnership (3) 
Consulting Agreement dated as of February 7,2002 by and between the Company and Tansukh V. 
Ganatra (3) (5) 
Separation Agreement and Release, dated October 17,2002, by and between the Company and 
Francis J. Jules ( 5 )  
Third Amended Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of December 3 I ,  2002 (4) 
First Amendment to the Third Amended Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of January 6,2003 

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP 

10.3 

10.4 

10.5 

10.6 
10.7 
21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant 
23 

Incorporated by reference to Regrstration Statement from Form S-1 (File No. 333-46341) filed 
February 13,1998. 
Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 12,2000. 
Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for its year ended 
December 31,2001. 
Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 17,2003. 
Management or compensatory plan or arrangement. 
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SCHEDULE IT 

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS 

US LEC Corp, (IN THOUSANDS) 

Additions 
Balance at 1 arg o 

Beginning of Costs and Other Balance at End 
Description Period Expenses Accounts Deductions of Period 

Allowance against accounts receivable 
Year ended December 3 1, 2002 $ 12,263 $ 14,470 * $ $ 3,553 $ 23,180 
Year ended December 3 1, 200 1 $ 53,523 $ 6,586 ** $ 3,318 $ 51,164 $ 12,263 

Allowance against deferred tax assets 
Year ended December 3 1,2002 $ 61,045 $ 18,644 $ $ $ 79,689 
Year ended December 31,2001 $ 35,669 $ 25,376 $ $ - $ 61,045 

* 
**  Represents the provision for doubtful reserves recorded during the year ended December 3 1, 200 1 of $13,428 included in seIling, 
general and administrative expenses in the accompanyng consohdated statements of operations, net of the recovery of amounts 
previonsly reserved for disputed receivalbes of $7,042. 

Includes $9,500 prowsion for doubtful accounts related to WorldCom. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the 
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

Date: March 31, 2003 By: /s/ Richard T. Aab 

Richard T. Aab 
Chairman of the Board 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this report has 
been signed below by the following persons on behalf of Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates 
indicated. 

S imature Title Date 

ls/ Richard T. Aab Chairman and Director March 3 1,2003 

Richard T. Aab 

/s/ Aaron D. Cowell. Jr. 

Aaron D. Cowell, Jr. 

Chief Executive Officer and Director 
(Principal Executive Officer) 

March 3 1, 2003 

/s/ Michael K. Robinson 

Michael K. Robinson 

Executive Vice President and 

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) 

March 3 1,2003 
Chief Financial Officer 

/s/ Tansukh V. Ganatra Director March 3 1,2003 

Taiisukh V. Ganatra 

/s/ David M. Flaum Director 

David M. Flaum 

/s/ Steven L. Schoonover Director 

Steven L. Schoonover 

/s/ Anthony J. DiNovi 

Anthony J. DiNovi 

/s/ Michael A. Krupka 

Director 

Direct or 

March 3 1, 2003 

March 3 1,2003 

March 3 1, 2003 

March 31, 2003 

Michael A. Krupka 
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CERTIFICATION 

I, Aaron D. Cowell, Jr., certify that: 

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of US LEC Corp.; 

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a 
material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the 
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered 
by this annual report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information 
included in this annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of 
operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report; 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and 
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 14 and 15d- 14) for 
the registrant and have: 

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material 
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is 
made known to us by others within those entities, particularIy during the period 
in which this annual report is being prepared; 

(b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures 
as of a date within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the 
“Evaluation Date”); and 

(c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the 
disclosure controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation 
Date; 

5 .  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent 
evaluation, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons 
performing the equivaIent functions): 

(a) All significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which 
could adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and 
report fmancial data and have identified for the registrant’s auditors any material 
weaknesses in internal controls, and 

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other 
employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and 

6 .  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have indicated in this annual report whether 
there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal 
controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard 
to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses. 

March 3 1, 2003 

By: /s/ Aaron D. Cowell, Jr. 
Chief Executive Officer 
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CERTIFICATION 

Iy Michael K. Robinson, certify that: 

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of US LEC Gorp.; 

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a 
material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the 
circumstances under which such statements were made, not mideading with respect to the period covered 
by this annual report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information 
included in this annual report, fairly present in all material respects the fmancial condition, results of 
operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report; 

4. The registrant’s other certifymg officer and I are responsible for establishing and 
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 14 and 15d- 14) for 
the registrant and have: 

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material 
infomation relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is 
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period 
in which this annual report is being prepared; 

(b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures 
as of a date within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the 
“Evaluation Date”); and 

(c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the 
disclosure controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation 
Date; 

5 .  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent 
evaluation, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons 
performing the equivalent functions): 

(a) All significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which 
could adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and 
report fmancial data and have identified for the registrant’s auditors any material 
weaknesses in internal controls, and 

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other 
employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s intemal controls; and 

6. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have indicated in this annual report whether 
there were significant changes in internal controls or 111 other factors that could significantly affect internal 
controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard 
to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses. 

March 3 1 2003 

By: /s/ Michael K. Robinson 
Executive Vice Piesidcnt and Chief Financial Officer 
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EXHIBIT 21 

SUBSIDIARIES OF REGISTRANT 

US LEC of North Carolina Inc. (North Carolina Corporation) 

US LEC of Georgia Inc. (Delaware Corporation) 

US LEC of Tennessee Inc. (Delaware Corporation) 

US LEC of Florida Inc. (North Carolina Corporation) 

US LEC of South Carolina Inc. (Delaware Corporation) 

US LEC of Alabama Inc. (North Carolina Corporation) 

US LEC of Maryland Inc. (North Carolina Corporation) 

US LEC of Pennsylvania Inc. (North Carolina Corporation) 

US LEC Communications Inc. (North Carolina Corporation) 

US LEC of Virginia L.L.C. (Delaware Limited Liability Company) 

US LEC Acquisition Co. (North Carolina Corporation) 
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EXHIBIT 23 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' CONSENT 

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos. 333-78075, 333-61617, 333- 
42890 and 333-42976 of US LEC Corp. on Form S-8 of our report dated February 24,2003 (March 20, 
2003 as to second paragraph in Note 13), appearing in the Annual Report on Form 10-K of US LEC Corp. 
for the year ended December 3 1,2002. 

/ s /  DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP 
Charlotte, North Carolina 
March 3 1,2003 
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EXHIBIT 99.1 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, 

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

In connection with the Annual Report of US LEC Corp. (the "Company") on Form IO-K for the period 
ended December 3 1,2002 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the 
"Report"), I, Aaron D. Cowell, Jr., Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 
5 1350, as adopted pursuant to 5 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that: 

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934; and 

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the fmancial 
condition and result of operations of the Company. 

/ S I  Aaron D. Cowell, Jr. 

Aaron D. Cowell, Jr. 
Chief Executive Officer 
March 3 1,2003 

EXHIBIT 99.2 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, 

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 
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1 
1 

In connection with the Annual Report of US LEC COT. (the "Company") on Form 10-K for the period 
ended December 3 1 , 2002 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the 
"Report"), I, Michael K. Robinson, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 
5 1350, as adopted pursuant to 5 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that: 

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934; and 

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial 
condition and result of operations of the Company. 

/ s i  Michael K. Robinson 

Michael K. Robinson 
Chief Financial Officer 
March 3 1 , 2003 
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US LEC of Florida Inc. Florida Price List No. 1 
First Revised Sheet 51 

Cancels Original Sheet 51 

SECTION 3 - BASIC SERVICE DESCRIPTION AND RATES 

3.7 Basic Line Service 

Basic Line Service provides a Customer with a single, voice-grade telephonic 
communications channel that can be used to place or receive one call at a tinie. 
Basic Lines are provided for connection of Customer-provided single station sets, 
Customer-provided key systems or facsimile machines to the public switched 
telecommunicatioiis network. Each Basic Line is provided with touch tone 
signaling and hunting. 

Monthly recurring rates per Basic Line apply as follows: 

Schedule 1: 

Basic Line 

Schedule 2: 

Basic Line 

Schedule 3: 

Basic Line 

1 Year 2 Year 
$35.50 $35.50 

1 Year 2 Year 
$40.00 $40.00 

1 Year 2 Year 
$45.00 $45 .OO 

Non-Recumng Charees 
Access Line Connection 

Per Line or Trunk $20.00 

3 Year 
$35.50 

3 Year 
$40.00 

3 Year 
$45.00 

Issued: April 14, 1998 Effective: April 16, 1998 

R 

R 

R 

Issued By: Gary D. Grefrath 
Executive Vice President Regulatory & Administration 
212 South Tryon Street, Suite 1540 
Charlotte, North Carolina 2828 1 



US LEC of Florida Inc. Florida Price List No. 1 
Second Revised Sheet 52 

Cancels First Revised Sheet 52 

SECTION 3 - BASIC SERVICE DESCRIPTION AND RATES 

3.8 Basic Trunk Service 

Basic Trunk Service provides a Customer with a single, voice-grade telephonic 
communications channel that can be used to place or receive one call at a time. 
Basic Trunks are provided for connection of Customer-provided private branch 
exchanges (PBX) to the public switched telecommunications network. Each 
Basic Trunk is provided with touch tone signaling and hunting. 

Basic Trunks may be equipped with Analog Direct Inward Dial (DID) capability 
and DID number blocks for additional charges, as set forth in Sections 3.9 and 
4.2. 

Monthly recurring rates per Basic Tmizk apply as follows: 

Schedule 1: 

PBX Trunk 

Schedule 2: 

PBX Truiik 

Schedule 3: 

PBX Trunk 

1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 
$57.50 $57.50 $57.50 

1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 
$40.00 $60.00 $60.00 

1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 
$65 .oo(r) $G.OO(I) $65 .OO(I) 

Non-Recurring Charges 
Access Line Connection 

Per Line or Tmnk $20.00 

.. ~ 

Issued: January 3,  2003 Effective: January 6,2003 

Issued By: Wanda Montan0 
Vice President, Regulatory and Industry Affairs 
6801 Morrison Blvd. 
Charlotte, Noi-th Carolina 282 1 I 



US LEC of Florida Inc. Florida Price List No. 1 
Second Revised Sheet 53 

Cancels First Revised Sheet 53 

SECTION 3 - BASIC SERVICE DESCRIPTION AND RATES 

3.9 DID Trunk Service 

DID Trunk Service provides a Customer with a single, voice-grade telephonic 
comiunicatioiis channeI which can be used to receive incoming calls one call at a 
time. DID Trunk Service transmits the dialed digits for all incoming calls 
allowing the customer's PBX to route incoming calls directly to individual 
stations corresponding to each individual DID number. Charges for DID number 
blocks apply in addition to the DID Trunk charges listed below. 

Monthly recumng rates per DID Trunk apply as follows: 

Schedule I :  

DID Trunk 

Schedule 2: 

DID Trunk 

Schedule 3 : 

DID Trunk 

Non-Recmrinp Charses 
Access Line Connection 

Per Line or Truiik 

1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 
$80.00 $80.00 $80.00 

1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 
$80.00 $80.00 $80.00 

1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 
9 5. oo( I) $95.00( I) $9 5.00( I) 

$20.00 

issued: January 3,2003 Effective: January 6,2003 

Issued By: Wanda Montan0 
Vice President, Regulatory and Industry Affairs 
6801 Morrison Blvd. 
Charlotte, North Carolina 2821 1 



US LEC of Florida Inc. Florida Price List No. 1 
Original Sheet 54 

SECTION 3 - BASIC SERVICE DESCRIPTION AND RATES 

3.10 Dizital Trunk Service 

Digital Trunk Service provides a Customer with a digitaI connection operating at 
1.544 Mbps which is time division multiplexed into 24 individual voice-grade 
telephonic communications channels, each of which can be used to place or 
receive one call at a time. Digital Trunks are provided for connection of 
compatible Customer-provided private branch exchanges (PBX) to the public 
switched telecommunications network. Each Digital Truilk is provided with dual 
tone multi-frequency (DTMF) or multi-frequency (MF) signaling, as specified by 
the Customer. Digital Trunks may be configured into hunt groups with other 
Company-provided Digital Trunks. The terminal interface for each Digital Trunk 
Service is a DSX-1 panel. 

Issued: March 24, 1998 Effective: March 24, 1998 

Issued By: Gary D. Grefiath 
Executive Vice President Regulatory & Administration 
212 South Tryon Street, Suite 1540 
Charlotte, North Carolina 28281 



US LEC of Florida Inc. Florida Price List No. 1 
Third Revised Sheet 55 

Cancels Second Revised Sheet 55 

SECTION 3 - BASIC SERVICE DESCRIPTION AND RATES 

3.10 Digital Trunk Service ([cont’d) 

T-1 Access - Schedule 1: 
MonthIy Recurring Charges: 

1 Year 2 Year 
T-1 Access Facility $800.00 $750.00 
ISDN PRI Digital Facility $800.00 $75 0 .OO 

Note: The Above charges Include 15 Trunks or Lines 
Digital ‘Termination - Additional Trunks or Lines 

Business Trunks (2 way or DOD) $55.00 $55.00 
DID $40.00 $40.00 

DOD TSDN PRI - B Chamel $25.00 $55.00 
DID ISDN PRI - B Channel $50.00 $50.00 
Two-way ISDN PFU - B Channel $25.00 $25 .OO 

ANI Delivery $150.00 $125.00 

Loops tart $5.00 $5 .OO 
Groundstart $35.00 $35.00 
DID $40.00 $40.00 

*DID Tmnk Termination $15.00 $15.00 
Group of 20 DID Numbers $9.00 $8.80 

ISDN PRI Digital Trunks 

ISDN PRI - D Channel $00.00 $00.00 

Analog Termination - Additional Trunks or Lines 

DID Trunk Termination - From Trunk 1 

*DID Trunk Termination Waived if Customer Uses US LEC Numbers. 

Equipment Charges 
Channel Bank 

Non-Recurring Charges: 
T l  Installation 

Per T-1 
Channel Bank Installation 

Per Channel Bank 

3 Year 
$700.00 
$700.00 

$55.00 1 
$40.00 

$25.00 T 
$50.00 T 
$25.00 R 
$00.00 
$100.00 N 

$5.00 
$35.00 
$40.00 

$15.00 
$8.50 

$150.00 $lOO.OO(R) $75.00(R) 

$1,000.00 

$250.00 

Issued: January 3,2003 Effective: January 6,2003 

R 

Issued By: Wanda Montan0 
Vice President, Regulatoiy and Industry Affairs 
6801 Morrison Blvd. 
Charlotte, North Carolina 282 1 1 



US LEC of Florida Inc. Florida Price List No. 1 
Third Revised Sheet 56 

Cancels Second Revised Sheet 56 

SECTION 3 - BASIC SERVICE DESCNPTION AND RATES 

3.10 Digital Trunk Service (cont’d) 

T-1 Access - Schedule 2: 
Monthly Recurring Charges: 

1Year 2 Year 
T-1 Access Facility $900.00 $850.00 
ISDN PRI Digital Facility $900.00 $850.00 

Note: The Above charges Include 15 Trunks or Lines 
Digitai Termination - Additional Trunks or Lines 

Business Trunks (2 way or DOD) $50.00 $50.00 
DID $50.00 $50.00 

DOD ISDN PRI - B Channel $37.50 $37.50 
DID ISDN PRI - B Channel $50.00 $50.00 
Two-way ISDN PRI - B Channel $37.50 $37.50 

ANI Delivery $150.00 $125 .OO 

Loopstart $5.00 $5.00 
Groundstart $35.00 $35.00 
DID $50.00 $50.00 

*DID Trunk Termination $15.00 $15.00 
Group of 20 DID Numbers $9.00 $8.80 

ISDN PRI Digital Trunks 

ISDN PRI - D Channel $00.00 $00.00 

Analog Termination - Additional Trunks or Lines 

DID Trunk Termination - From Trunk 1 

*DID Trunk Termination Waived if Customer Uses US LEC Numbers. 

Equipment Charges 
Channel Bank 

Non-Recurring Charges: 
T1 Installation 

Channel Bank Installation 
Per T-1 

Per Channel Bank 

$1 50.00 $1 OO.OO(R) 

$1,000.00 

$250.00 

3 Year 
$800.00 
$800.00 

$50.00 
$50.00 

$37.50 T 
$50.00 T 
$37.50 R 
$00.00 
$100.00 N 

$5.00 
$35.00 
$50.00 

$15.00 
$8.50 

$75.00(R) 

R 

Issued: January 3,2003 Effective: Januai-y 6 ,  2003 

Issued By: Wanda Montan0 
Vice President, Regulatory and Industry Affairs 
6801 Morrison Blvd. 
Charlotte, North Carolina 282 11 



US LEC of Florida Inc. Florida Price List No. 1 
Third Revised Sheet 57 

CanceIs Second Revised Sheet 57 

SECTION 3 - BASIC SERVICE DESCRTPTION AND RATES 

3.10 Digital Trunk Service (cont’d) 

T-1 Access - ScheduIe 3: 
Monthly Recurring Charses: 

1 Year 2 Year 
T-1 Access Facility $1000.00 $9 5 0.00 
ISDN PRI Digital Facility $1000.00 $950.00 

Note: The Above charges Include 15 Trunks or Lines 
Digital Termination - Additional Trunks or Lines 

Business Trunks (2 way or DOD) $55.00 $55.00 
DID $5 5 -00 $5 5 .OO 

DID ISDN PRI - B Channel $55.00 $55.00 
DOD ISDN PRI - B Channel $45.00 $45 .OO 
Two-way ISDN PRI - B Channel $45.00 $45 .OO 
ISDN PRI - D Channel $00.00 $00.00 
ANI Delivery $150.00 $125.00 

ISDN PFU Digital Trunks 

3 Year 
$900.00 
$900.00 

$55.00 I 
$55.00 

$55.00 I 
$45 .OO R 
$45 .OO R 

$100.00 N 
$00.00 

Analog Termination - Additional Trunks or Lines 
Lo op Start $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 
Grounds tart $35.00 $3 5 .OQ $35.00 
DID $5 5 -00 $55.00 $55.00 

$15.00 $15.00 *DID Trunk Termination $15.00 
Group of 20 DID Numbers $9.00 $8.80 $8.50 

DID Trunk Termination - From Trunk 1 

*DID Trunk Termination Waived if Customer Uses US LEC Numbers 

Equipment Charges 
Channel Bank 

Non-Recurrim Charges: 
Tl  Installation 

Per T-1 

$150.00 $lOO.OO(R) $75.00(R) 

$1,000.00 

R 

Issued: January 3,2003 Effective: January 6, 2003 

Issued By: Wanda Montan0 
Vice President, Regulatory and Industry Affairs 
6801 Morrison Blvd. 
Charlotte, North Carolina 282 1 1 



US LEC of Florida Inc. Florida Price List No. 1 
Third Revised Sheet 58 

Cancels Second Revised Sheet 58 

Channel Bank Installation 
Per ChanneI Bank $250.00 

Issued: Jaiiuaiy 3,2003 Effective: January 6, 2003 

Issued By: Wanda Montano 
Vice President, Regulatory and Industry Affairs 
6801 Morrison Blvd. 
Charlotte, North Carolina 282 1 1 



US LEG of Florida Inc. Florida Price List No. 1 
Original Sheet 57.1 

SECTION 3 - BASIC SERVICE DESCRIPTION AND RATES 

3.1 1 Digital Data Service 

Digital Data Service provides a dedicated point to point digital circuit, with 
bandwidth ranging fi-om 54Kbs to 1.544 Mbs, that does not provide dial tone 
service. DigitaI Service T-1 required for circuits of 512K or less. Data Only T-1 
required for circuits greater than 5 12K or an endpoint with multiple circuits whose 
total bandwidth sum to greater than 512K. The circuit is used to enable 
communications transport between two or more points. Digital Data Service is 
available to Customers in US LEC served LATA. 

~ 

Issued: July 1, 1999 Effective: August 1, 1999 

N 

N 

Issued By: Gary D. Grefrath 
Executive Vice President Regulatory & Administration 
21 2 South Tryon Street, Suite 1540 
Charlotte, North Carolina 28281 



US LEC of Florida Inc. Florida Price List No. 1 
First Revised Sheet 57.2 

Cancels Original Sheet 57.2 

SECTION 3 - BASIC SERVICE DESCNPTION AND RATES 

3.1 1 Digital Data Service (cont’d) 

Monthly Recurrine Charges: 

Data Port - requires one per endpoint of 512K or less 
1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 

Data Port 56K $40.00 $30.00 $25 .OO 
Data Port 128K $80.00 $40.00 $50.00 
Data Port 256K $160.00 $120.00 $100.00 
Data Port 384K $240.00 $180.00 $150.00 
Data Port 5 12K $320.00 $240.00 $200.00 

T-1 Data Port - required for circuits greater than 512K 
Schedule 1 - 1.544rvIb $500.00 $350.00 $300.00 
Schedule 2 - 1.544 Mb $600.00 $450.00 $400.00 
Schedule 3 - 1.544 Mb $700.00 $550.00 $500.00 

Cross Connect - requires one per circuit endpoint 
Cross Connect per circuit endpoint $100.00 $75.00 $50.00 

Interoffice Channel - connectivity between US 
LEC POP’S and Network Access Point $125.00 $100.00 $150.00 

Mileage - mileage between endpoints on a data circuit 
Fractional DS 1 Mileage - per mile $1 -00 $1 .oo $1 .oo 
DS 1 Mileage - per mile $2.00 $2.00 $2.00 

Non-Rec urring Char ees : 

Per Data Only T-1 Facility Installation $1000.00 

Issued: January 25,2002 Effective: January 28, 2002 

R 

Issued By: Jeremiah Needham, Regulatory Manager 
Monocroft I11 
4801 Moi-rison Boulevard 
Charlotte, North Carolina 282 1 1 



US LEC of Florida Inc. Florida Price List No. 1 
Original Sheet 57.3 

SECTION 3 - BASIC SERVICE DESCRIPTION AND RATES 

3.12 Franie Relay Service 

Frame Relay Service (FRS) is a data communications service that provides for 
data connectivity betweedamong widely distributed locations. FRS routes Frame 
Relay Data Units between a customer’s premises, within a LATA, using assigned 
Permanent Virtual Circuits (PVCs) provided via a dedicated Frame Relay 
Subscriber Network Access Line and a switch dedicated to FRS and other high- 
speed data services. 

A Frame Relay Subscriber Network Access Line (NAL) is a dedicated digital line, 
utilizing the Frame Relay User to Network Interface standards. A Frame Relay 
Subscriber NAL provides connectivity from the customer’s premises to the 
telephone company hub or serving wire center. The effective data rate of the Tine 
is 56/64 kbps for narrowband connectivity and 1.536 Mbps for wideband 
connectivity. 

Each Frame Relay Data Unit is routed through the Frame Relay Network with an 
address that specifies the PVC connection. A PVC connection is a virtual 
connection between two Frame Relay Subscriber NALs, e.g. customer’s premises. 

Each Frame Relay Subscriber NAL is assigned at least one PVC. However, a 
customer may elect to subscribe to multiple PVCs. Additional PVCs are 
provisioned over the Frame Relay Subscriber NAL via address mapping, which 
enable the customer to route Frame Relay Data Units via virtual connections to 
multiple locatioiis. 

Frame Relay Service is available only where technically feasible and where US 
LEC has adequate facilities in place to provision it. 

Issued: September 10, 1999 Effective: October 1, 1999 
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SECTION 3 - BASIC SERVICE DESCNPTION AND RATES 

3. I2  Frame Relay Service (cont’d) 

T-1 Access DiEital Facility 
(Data Only) 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 
Schedule 1 $500.00 $350.00 $300.00 
Schedule 2 $600.00 $450.00 $400.00 
Schedule 3 $700.00 $550.00 $500.00 
Remote $700.00 $550.00 $500.00 

Monthly Recurring Charges 

DS-0 Access Diyital Facility 
(Data Only) lYear 2 Year 3 Year 

Monthly Recurring Charges 

Schedule 1 $120.00 $ 1  10.00 $100.00 
Schedule 2 $130.00 $120.00 $1 10.00 
Schedule 3 $150.00 $130.00 $120.00 
Remote $175.00 $160.00 $150.00 

Non-Recu rrinp Ch awes: 
Per Access Facility Installation $1000.00 R 

Issued: January 25,2002 Effective: January 28, 2002 
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SECTION 3 - BASIC SERVICE DESCRIPTION AND RATES 

3.12 Frame Relay Service (cont’d) 

25Oh CIR Data Ports 

56/64K FRS Port 
112/128K FRS Port 
224/256K FRS Port 
336/384K FRS Port 
448/5 12K FRS Port 

26-50% CIR Data Ports 

56/64K FRS Port 
112/128K FRS Port 
224/256K FRS Port 
336/384K FRS Port 
448/5 12K FRS Port 

51-75% CIR Data Ports 

56/64K FRS Port 
1 12/128K FRS Port 
224/256K FRS Port 
336/384K FRS Port 
448/5 12K FRS Port 

76-100% CIR Data Ports 

56/64K FRS Port 
112/128K FRS Port 
224/256K FRS Port 
3 36/3 84K FRS Port 
448/5 12K FRS Port 

1 year 
$225.00 
$ 350.00 
$475.00 
$600.00 
$725.00 

1 year 
$ 250.00 
$ 375.00 
$ 500.00 
$625.00 
$ 750.00 

1 year 
$ 300.00 
$425.00 
$550.00 
$675.00 
$ 800.00 

1 year 
$325.00 
$550.00 
$675.00 
$ 800.00 
$ 925.00 

2 vear 
$215.00 
$ 340.00 
$465.00 
$ 590.00 
$ 715.00 

2 year 
$235.00 
$ 360.00 
$485.00 
$ 610.00 
$ 735.00 

2 year 
$285.00 
$410.00 
$535.00 
$ 660.00 
$ 785.00 

2 year 
$ 315.00 
$ 440.00 
$ 565.00 
$ 690.00 
$ 815.00 

Material previously appearing 011 this page now appears on Page 57.7 

3 Year 
$ 200.00 
$ 325.00 
$450.00 
$ 575.00 
$ 700.00 

3 Year 
$225.00 
$ 350.00 
$ 475.00 
$ 600.00 
$ 725.00 

3 Year 
$ 275.00 
$400.00 
$ 525.00 
$ 650.00 
$ 775.00 

3 Year 
$ 300.00 
$ 425.00 
$ 550.00 
$ 675.00 
$ 800.00 

Issued: March 27, 2000 Effective: ApriI 1, 2000 
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SECTION 3 - BASIC SERVICE DESCRIPTION AND RATES 

3.12 Frame Relay Service (coiit’d) 

IntraLATA Data Ports 

56/64K FRS Port 
112/128K FRS Port 
224/256K FRS Port 
336/3 84K FRS Port 
448/5 12K FRS Port 

3 Year 
$ 150.00 $ 135.00 $ 125.00 
$225.00 $ 200.00 $ 160.00 
$ 525.00 $450.00 $ 350.00 
$ 550.00 $475.00 $400.00 
$675.00 $ 550.00 $475.00 

2 year 1 year 

Issued: March 27, 2000 Effective: April 1 ,  2000 

Issued By: Wanda Montan0 
Vice President, Regulatory and Industry Affairs 
Transamerica Square 
401 North Tryon Street, Suite 1000 
Charlotte, North Carolina 28202 



US LEC of Florida Inc. Florida Price List No. 1 
Original Sheet 57.7 

SECTION 3 - BASIC SERVICE DESCRIPTION AND RATES 

3.13 Diqital Subscriber Line (DSL) 

Digital Subscriber Line Service (DSL) is a data communications service that 
provides for high-speed connectivity using Symmetric Digital Subscriber Line 
(SDSL) and ISDN Digital Subscriber Line (IDSL) technology. SDSL provides the 
customer the ability to transmit data to (upstream rate) and receive data from 
(downstream rate) a DSL Access Service Connection Point at the same speed 
using existing copper facilities. A DSL Access Service Connection Point is an 
interconnection point designated by the company that aggregates data traffic from 
and to Company SDSL-equipped serving wire centers. SDSL service may be used 
for siinultaneous voice and data communications. 

Six types of DSL service are available based on the synchronous speeds chosen 
by the customer. Peak speeds are not guaranteed by the Company due to factors 
that may effect the actual speeds delivered, including the SDSL Access Service 
customer’s distance from the company’s serving wire center, condition of the 
existing copper facilities, and the limitations in the telecommunications service 
provider’s network design. 

DSL Service will be provided over existing local exchange service facilities. 
When the customer orders DSL Service, the rates and charges are in addition to 
any rates and regulations that apply for the associated local service line provided 
under the terms and conditions of this tariff. 

Synchronous Speed 
1.5 Mbps SDSL 
1.04 to 1.1 Mbps SDSL 
768 to 784 Kbps SDSL 
384 to 416 Kbps SDSL 
192 to 200 Kbps SDSL 
144 to 166 Kbps SDSL 

D S L Circuit Instal 1 ation 

Monthly Recurring Charses 
$799.00 
$ 5  99.00 
$499.00 
$199.00 
$179.00 
$149.00 

Non-Recuming Charges 
$250.00 

Issued: August 15, 2000 Effective: August 16, 2000 
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SECTION 3 - BASIC SERVICE DESCRIPTION AND RATES 

3.14 Advantage T- 1 

The Advantage T- 1 provides customers with flexible, high capacity bandwidth for 
a flat monthly rate. The customer has the flexibility of choosing any combination 
of voice or data products, by channel, not exceeding either 960 Kbps or 1.54 
Mbps. Each 1.54 Mbps T-1 has the capacity for 24 channels with each channel 
having a capacity of 64 Kbps of bandwidth. Each 960 Kbps fractional T-1 has the 
capacity for 15 channels with each channel having a capacity of 64 Kbps of 
bandwidth. The T-1 can be analog, digital or PRI. Advantage T-1 is only available 
with a 3 year term. 

T-1 Access at 1.54 Mbps 

Monthly Recurring Charges: 3Year 
Schedule 1 $1000.00 
Schedule 2 $1200.00 

T-1 Access at 960 Kbps 

Monthly Recurring Charges: 3Year 
Schedule 1 $800.00 
Schedule 2 $1000.00 

Non-Recuning Charges : 
T-1 Installation 
Analog Gateway 
Premise Visit 

$1,000.00 
$25 0.00 

$13.00 

Effective June 1, 2003, Advantage T-1 Service will no longer be available to new Customers. T 

Issued: May 1,2003 Effective: June 1, 2003 
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SECTION 3 - BASIC SERVICE DESCRIPTION AND RATES 

3.14 Advaiitase Local Calling Plans 

The Advantage Local Calling Plans allow customers in select markets to enjoy 
augmented free local calling areas, as we11 as a reduced rate of $0.05/minute to all 
other locations within the customer’s LATA. This plan carries a monthly 
recurring charge of $20.00, and the customer must meet the monthly billing 
minimum of $1,000 to qualify for this plan. Customer must also have US LEC 
selected as intraLATA Primary Interexchange Carrier (2-PIC) in order for US 
LEC to be able to properly rate the calls. 

This plan is offered in the following rate centers: 

LATA 952 
Tampa-North 
Tamp a- Eas t 
Tamp a- South 
Tamp a-C en tr a1 
Tamp a- W es t 
C 1 earw at er 
St. Petersburg 
Lakeland 
Winter Haven 
Sarasota 
Brad en t on 
Palmetto 

N 

N 
LATA 460 
Miami 
Hollywood 
West Palm 
Delray Beach 
Ft. Lauderdale 
North Dade 
Boca Raton 

Issued: January 8, 2002 Effective: January 9,2002 
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SECTION 3 - BASIC SERVICE DESCHPTION AND RATES 

3.14 Advantase Local Calling Plans (cont’d) 

LATA 460 
Boyiiton Beach 
Deerfield Beach 
Jupiter 
Perrine 
Pompano Beach 
Stuart 

LATA 456 
Daytona Beach 

LATA 458 
Kissimmee 
Orlando 
Reedy Creek 
Sanford 
West Kissimmee 
Winter Park 

LATA 452 
Jacksonville 
Jacksonville Beach 

LATA 939 
Bonita Springs 
Cape Coral 
Fort Myers 
Fort Myers Beach 
Naples 
North Cape Coral 
North Fort Myers 
North Naples 

Issued: January 8,2002 Effective: January 9,2002 
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SECTION 3 - BASIC SERVICE DESCRIPTION AND RATES 

3.14 Advantaee Local Calling Plans (continued) 

Rate centers which will be accessible free of additional usage charge to 
subscribers of the plan are as follows: 

Tampa Central: Clearwater, Mulberry, Plant City, St. Petersburg, Tampa (all rate 
centers), Tarpon Springs, Zephyrhills, Dade City, San Antonio. 

Tampa North: Clearwater, Mulbeny, New Port Richey, Plant City, St. 
Petersburg, Tampa (all rate centers), Tarpon Springs, Zephyrhills, Dade City, San 
Antonio . 

Tampa East: Clearwater, Mulberry, Plant City, St. Petersburg, Tampa (all rate 
centers) , Tarp on Springs , 2 ep h yrhill s . 

Tampa South: Cleanvater, Mulberry, Palnietto, Plant City, St. Petersburg, Tampa 
(all rate centers), Tarpon Springs, Zephyrhills. 

Tampa West: Clearwater, Mulberry, New Port Richey, Plant City, St. Petersburg, 
Tampa (all rate centers), Tarpon Springs, Zephyrhills. 

Cleanvater: Clearwater, New Port Richey, St. Petersburg, Tampa (all rate centers), 
Tarpon Springs. 

St. Petersburg: Cleanvater, St. Petersburg, Tampa (all rate centers), Tarpon 
Springs. 

Lakeland: Bartow, Haines City, Haines City (Poinciana), Lakeland, Mulberry, 
Plant City, Polk City, Winter Haven, Ft. Meade. 

Winter Haven: : Bartow, Haines City, Lakeland, Lake Wales, Polk City, Winter 
Haven. 

Sarasota: Bradenton, Englewood, Myakka, North Port, Palmetto, Sarasota, 
Venice. 

Issued: January 29,2001 Effective: February I ,  2001 
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SECTION 3 - BASIC SERVICE DESCRIPTION AND RATES. 

3.14 Advantage Local Calling Plans (continued) 

Miami: Big Pine, Coral Springs, Deerfield Beach, Ft. Lauderdale, Hollywood, 
Homestead, Islamorada, Key Largo, Key West, Marathon, Miami, North Key 
Largo, North Dade, Perrine, Pompano Beach, Sugarloaf Key, Boca Raton. 

North Dade: Big Pine, Coral Springs, Deerfield Beach, Ft. LauderdaIe, 
Hollywood, Homestead, Islamorada, Key Largo, Key West, Marathon, Miami, 
North Key Largo, North Dade, Pemne, Pompano Beach, Sugarloaf Key, Boca 
Raton. 

Ft. Lauderdale: Big Pine, Coral Springs, Deerfield Beach, Ft. Lauderdale, 
Hollywood, Homestead, Islamorada, Key Largo, Key West, Marathon, Miami, 
North Key Largo, North Dade, Perrine, Pompano Beach, Sugarloaf Key, Boca 
Raton, Boynton Beach, Delray Beach. 

Hollywood: Big Pine, Coral Springs, Deerfield Beach, Ft. Lauderdale, 
Hollywood, Homestead, Islamorada, Key Largo, Key West, Marathon, Miami, 
North Key Largo, North Dade, Perrine, Pompano Beach, Sugarloaf Key, Boynton 
Beach, Delray Beach. 

Boca Raton: Belle Glade, Boca Raton, Boynton Beach, Delray Beach, Ft. Pierce, 
Hobe Sound, Indiantown, Jensen Beach, Jupiter, Pahokee, Port St. Lucie, 
Sebastian, Stuart, Vero Beach, West Palm Beach, Coral Springs, Deefrield Beach, 
Ft. Lauderdale, Hollywood, North Dade, Pompano Beach. 

West Palm Beach: Belle Glade, Boca Raton, Boynton Beach, Delray Beach, Ft. 
Pierce, Hobe Sound, Indiantown, Jensen Beach, Jupiter, Pahokee, Port St. Lucie, 
Sebastian, Stuart, Vero Beach, West Palm Beach. 

Delray Beach: Belle Glade, Boca Raton, Boynton Beach, Delray Beach, Ft. 
Pierce, Hobe Sound, Indiantown, Jensen Beach, Jupiter, Pahokee, Port St. Lucie, 
Sebastian, Stuart, Vero Beach, West Palm Beach, Coral Springs, Deefrield Beach, 
Ft. Lauderdale, Hollywood, Pompano Beach. 

Issued: January 29,2001 Effective: February 1,  2001 

Issued By: Wanda Montan0 
Vice President, Regulatory and Industry Affairs 
Transameric a S quare 
401 North Tryon Street, Suite 1000 
Charlotte, North Carolina 28202 



US LEC of Florida Inc. Florida Price List No. 1 
Original Sheet 57.12 

SECTION 3 - BASIC SERVICE DESCRIPTION AND RATES 

3.14 Advantage Local Callins Plans (continued) 

Boynton Beach: Belle Glade, Boca Raton, Boynton Beach, Delray Beach, Fort 
Pierce, Hobe Sound, Indiantown, Jensen Beach, Jupiter, Pahokee, Port St. Lucie, 
Sebastian, Stuart, Vero Beach, West Palm Beach, Coral Springs, Deerfield Beach, 
Fort Lauderdale, Hollywood, Pompano Beach. 

Pompano Beach: Big Pine, Coral Springs, Deerfield Beach, Ft. Lauderdale, 
Hollywood, Homestead, Islamorada, Key Largo, Key West, Marathon, Miami, 
North Key Largo, North Dade, Perrine, Pompano Beach, Sugarloaf Key, Boca 
Raton, Boynton Beach, Delray Beach. 

Jupiter: Belle Glade, Boca Raton, Boynton Beach, Delray Beach, Foi-t Pierce, 
Hobe Sound, Indiantown, Jensen Beach, Jupiter, Pahokee, Port St. Lucie, 
Sebastian, Stuart, Vero Beach, West Palm Beach. 

Stuart: Belle Glade, Boca Raton, Boynton Beach, Delray Beach, Fort Pierce, 
Hobe Sound, Indiantown, Jeiisen Beach, Jupiter, Pahokee, Port St. Lucie, 
Sebastian, Stuart, Vero Beach, West Palm Beach. 

Daytona Beach: Bumell, DeLand, DeLeon Springs, FlagIer Beach, New Sinyma 
Beach, Oak Hill, Palm Coast, Pierson. 

Kissimmee: Apopka, Celebration, East Orange, Geneva, Kenansville, Lake Buena 
Vista, Montverde, Orlando, Oviedo, Reedy Creek, Sanford, Windermere, Winter 
Garden, Winter Park, West Kissiminee 

Orlando: Apopka, Celebration, Debary, East Orange, Geneva, Kissimmee, Lake 
Buena Vista, Montverde, Orange City, Oviedo, Reedy Creek, Sanford, 
Windemere, Winter Garden, Winter Park, West Kissimmee. 

Sanford: Apopka, Celebration, Debary, East Orange, Geneva, Gssimmee, Lake 
Buena Vista, Montverde, Orange City, Oviedo, Reedy Creek, Orlando, Titusville, 
Windennere, Winter Garden, Winter Park, West Kissinimee. 

N 

N 
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SECTION 3 - BASIC SERVICE DESCRIPTION AND RATES 

3.14 Advantage Local Calling Plans ([continued) 

West Kissimmee: Apopka, Celebration, Debary, East Orange, Geneva, 
Kissimmee, Lake Buena Vista, Montverde, Orlando, Oviedo, Reedy Creek, 
Sanford, Windemere, Winter Garden, Winter Park. 

Winter Park: Apopka, Celebration, Debary, East Orange, Geneva, Klssimmee, 
Lake Buena Vista, Montverde, Orange City, Oviedo, Reedy Creek, Sanford, 
Titusville, Windermere, Winter Garden, Winter Park, West Kissimmee, Orlando. 

Jacksonville: Baldwin, Femandina Beach, Green Cove Springs, Jacksonville 
Beach, Julington, Maxville, Middleburg, Orange Park, Ponte Vedra Beach, St. 
Johns, St. Augustine, Yulee. 

Jacksonville Beach: Baldwin, Femandina Beach, Green Cove Springs, 
Jacksonville, Julington, Maxville, Middleburg, Orange Park, Ponte Vedra Beach, 
St. Johns, St. Augustine, Yulee. 

Bonita Sprines: Cape Coral, Fort Myers, Fort Myers Beach, Immokalee, la Bells, 
Lehigh Acres, Marco Island, Naples, North Cape Coral, North Naples, North Fort 
Myers, Pine Island, Sanibel-Captiva Islands. 

Cape Coral: Boca Grande, Bonita Springs, Cape Haze, Fort Myers, Fort Myers 
Beach, Immokalee, La Belle, Lehigh Acres, Naples, North Cape Coral, North 
Naples, North Fort Myers, Pine Island, port Charlotte, Punta Gorda, Sanibel- 
Captive IsIands. 

Foi-t Myers: Boca Grande, Bonita Springs, Cape Haze, Fort Myers, Fort Myers 
Beach, Immokalee, La Belle, Lehigh Acres, Naples, North Cape Coral, North 
Naples, North Fort Myers, Pine Island, port Charlotte, Punta Gorda, Sanibel- 
Captive Islands. 

N 

N 
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SECTION 3 - BASIC SERVICE DESCRIPTION AND RATES 

3. Z 4 Advantage Local Calling Plans (continued) 

Bonita Springs: Cape Coral, Fort Myers, Fort Myers Beach, ImmokaIee, la Bells, 
Lehigh Acres, Marco Island, Naples, North Cape Coral, North Naples, North Fort 
Myers, Pine IsIand, Sanibel-Captiva Islands. 

Cape Coral: Boca Grande, Bonita Springs, Cape Haze, Fort Myers, Fort Myers 
Beach, Immokalee, La Belle, Lehigh Acres, Naples, North Cape Coral, North 
Naples, North Fort Myers, Pine Island, Port Charlotte, Punta Gorda, Sanibel- 
Captive Islands. 

Fort Myers: Arcadia, Boca Grande, Bonita Springs, Cape Coral, Cape Haze, Fort 
Myers Beach, Immokalee, La Belle, Lehigh Acres, Naples, North Cape Coral, 
North Naples, North Fort Myers, Pine Island, Port Charlotte, Punta Gorda, 
Sanibel-Captive Islands. 

Fort Myers Beach: Boca Grande, Bonita Springs, Cape Coral, Cape Haze, Fort 
Myers, Immokalee, La Belle, Lehigh Acres, Marco Island, Naples, North Cape 
Coral, North Naples, North Fort Myers, Pine Island, Port Charlotte, Punta Gorda, 
S ani b e 1 -Captive Islands . 

Naples: Bonita Springs, Cape Coral, Everglades, Fort Myers, Fort Myers Beach, 
Immokalee, Lehigh Acres, Marco Island, North Cape Coral, North Naples, North 
Fort Myers, Pine Island, Saiiibel-Captive Islands. 

North Cape Coral: Boca Grande, Bonita Springs, Cape Coral, Cape Haze, Fort 
Myers, Fort Myers Beach, Immokalee, La Belle, Lehigh Acres, Naples, North 
Naples, North Fort Myers, Pine Island, Port Charlotte, Punta Gorda, Sanibel- 
Captive Islands. 

N 

N 
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SECTION 3 - BASIC SERVICE DESCRIPTION AND RATES 

3.14 Advantage Local Callins Plans (continued]) 

North Fort Myers: Arcadia, Boca Grande, Bonita Springs, Cape Coral, Cape 
Haze, Fort Myers, Fort Myers Beach, Immokalee, La Belle, Lehigh Acres, 
Naples, North Cape Coral, North Naples, Pine Island, Port Charlotte, Punta 
Gorda, Sanibel-Captive Islands. 

North Nades: Bonita Springs, Cape Coral, Everglades, Fort Myers, Fort Myers 
Beach, Immokalee, Lehigh Acres, Marco Island, Naples, North Cape Coral, North 
Fort Myers, Pine Island, Sanibel-Captive Islands. 

N 
Deerfield Beach: Big Pine, Coral Springs, Deerfield Beach, Ft. Lauderdale, 
Hollywood, Homestead, Islamorada, Key Largo, Key West, Marathon, Miami, 
North Key Largo, North Dade, Pemne, Pompano Beach, Sugarloaf Key, Boca 
Raton. 

Perrine: Big Pine, Coral Springs, Deerfield Beach, Ft. Lauderdale, Hollywood, 
Homestead, Islamorada, Key Largo, Key West, Marathon, Miami, North Key 
Largo, North Dade, Perrine, Pompano Beach, Sugarloaf Key, Boca Raton. 

Reedy Creek Apopka, Clermont, East Orange, Lake Buena Vista, Montverde 
Cocoa, Cocoa Beach, Debary, Eau Orlando, West Kissimmee, Windermere, 
Winter Garden, Winter ,Gallie, Geneva, Kenansville, Melbourne, Park, 
Celebration, Kissimmee, Haines City, Oviedo, Sanford, Orange City, Titusville, 
St. Cloud 

Bradenton: Clearwater, Englewood, Myakka, North Port, Bartow, Frostproof, 
Haines City, Palmetto, Sarasota, St. Petersburg, Tampa-East, Hudson, Indian 
Lake, Lake Wales, Tampa-Central, Tampa-South, Venice, Lakeland, Mulberry, 
New Port Richey, Plant City, Polk City Tampa-West, Tampa-North, 
Tarpon Springs, Winter Haven, Zephyrhills 

Palnietto: Clearwater, Myakka, North Port, Bartow, Frostproof, Haines 
City,Bradenton, Sarasota, St. Petersburg, Tampa-East, Hudson, Indian Lake, Lake 
Wales,Tampa-Central, Tampa-South, Venice, Lakeland, Mulberry, New Port 
Richey, Plant City, Polk City, Tampa-West, Tampa-North, Tarpon Springs, 
Winter Haven, Zephyrhills, Englewood. 

N 
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SECTION 4 - MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES 

6.1 Directory Listings 
T 

6.1.1 

6.1.2 

6.1.3 

6.1.4 

Additional Listing 

For each Customer of Company-provided Exchange Access Service( s), the Company 
shall arrange for the listing of the Customer’s main billing telephone number in the 
directory(ies) published by the dominant Local Exchange Carrier in the area at no 
additional charge. At a Customer’s option, the Company will arrange for additional 
listings at the following rates: 

Each Additional Listing $2.50 
Monthly Recurring 

Non-Published Listing 

A non-published listing is not listed in either the alphabetical section of the dominant 
Local Exchange Company’s directory or Company directory assistance records and will 
not be fumished upon request of a calling party. The Company will complete an 
incoming call to a Customer with a non-published listing only when the calling party 
places the call by number. 

Monthlv Recurrinq 
Each Non-Published Listing $2.50 

Non-Listed Listing 

A non-listed listing is not listed in the alphabetical section of the dominant Local 
Exchange Company’s directory, but is maintained on Company directory assistance 
records and will be furnished upon request of a calling party. In the absence of gross 
negligence or willful misconduct, no liability for damages arising from publishing a non- 
listed telephone number in the directory shall attach to the Company. 

Each Non-Listed Listing 

Foreign Listing 

Monthly Recurring 
$1.50 

A listing in the alphabetical section of the dominant Local Exchange Company’s 
directories outside the Customer’s local exchange may be furnished. The listing is subject 
to the rates and regulations applicable to the published directory in which the listing is to 
appear. 

Each Foreign Listing 
Monthly Recurrinq 
$2.50 
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SECTION 4 - MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES 

4.2 Direct Inward Dial (DID) Service 

DID service is an optional feature which can be purchased in conjunction with 
Company-provided Basic Trunks or Digital Trunks. DID service transmits the 
dialed digits for all incoining calls allowing the Customer's PBX to route 
incoming calls directly to individual stations corresponding to each individual 
DID number. Charges for DID capability and DID number blocks apply in 
addition to charges specified for Basic Trunks or Digital Trunks in Sections 3.9, 
and 3.10, respectively. 

One DID Additive charge applies for each DID-equipped Basic Trunk or DID- 
equipped channel on a Digital Trunk. Customer is required to purchase at least 
one DID number block for each DID-equipped trunk or trunk group, or DID- 
equipped channel or channel group. 

Monthly recurring charges apply as follows: 

Schedule 1: 
1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 

Group of 20 DID Numbers $9.00 $8.80 $8.50 

Schedule 2: 
1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 

Group of 20 DID Numbers $9.00 $8.80 $8.50 

Schedule 3 : 
1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 

Group of 20 DID Numbers $9.00 $8.80 $8.50 

Issued: April 14, 1998 Effective: April 16, 1998 
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SECTION 4 - MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES 

4.3 Accounting Codes 

Accounting Codes provide customers with a means of restricting calls or 
itemizing calls, according to specific digits that must be dialed at the end of a long 
distance telephone number. The length of Accounting Codes may vary from 2 to 
6 digits, however, the length must be consistent for each customer location. 

Offered are packages of codes that are verified against a specific list of valid 
numbers, for call restriction, or offers unverified packages of 2-6 digits in length 
for cataloging by code, the calls made. 

Charge Per 
Customer Location Non-Recumng Monthly Recurring 

Verified Packages $30.00 
Unverified Packages $30.00 

$10.00 
$5.00 

Issued: March 24, 1998 Effective: March 24, 1998 
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SECTION 4 - MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES 

4.4 Custom Calling Features 

4.41 Description 

These features will iiiclude Custom Calling and CLASS features such as 
Call Forwarding, Call Waiting, Caller ID, etc. 

4.42 Rates Per Service Order Per Feature 
Non-Recurring; Monthly Recurring 

Custom Calling Feature 

(with the exception of Caller ID) 
per feature $25.00 $2.75 

Caller ID $25 .OO $7.50 
Caller ID Blocking No charge No charge 

~ ~ _ _ _ _  _ _ _ _ ~  

Issued: March 24, 1998 Effective: March 24, 1998 
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SECTION 4 - MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES 

4.5 Foreign Exchange (FX) Service 

4.5 1 Description 

FX Service enables a Customer to receive a Company-provided Exchange 
Access Service at a point outside the Exchange Access Service Area 
corresponding to the NPA-NXX designation (as set forth in Section 4.1) of 
such Exchange Access Service. 

The Local Calling Area and all Usage Service rates which apply to an FX 
Exchange Access Service are the same as those which regularly apply to 
other Company-provided Exchange Access Services bearing the same 
NPA-NXX designation. 

4.52 Rates 

Non-Recumng Monthly Recurring 

Foreign Exchange Service $500.00 $1000.00 

4.6 Hospitality Rates 

4.6 1 Description 

Hospitality rates will have no local usage charges associated with them. 
Hotels and motels that supply guest rooms and route local and long 
distance guest traffic over Company digital facilities will qualify for 
Hospitality Rates. 

Issued: March 24, 1998 Effective: March 24, 1998 
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SECTION 4 - MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES 

4.7 Local Exchange Service: 

The Company’s Local Telephone Service provides a Customer with the ability to 
connect to the company’s switching network which enables the Customer to: 

place or receive calls to any calling Station in the local calling area, as 
defined herein; 

- access basic 9 1 1 Emergency Service; 
access the interexchange cairier selected by the Customer for interLATA, - 
intraLATA, interstate or intemational calling; 

- access Operator Services ; 
- access Directory Assistance; 

- access Telephone Relay Service. 
- place or receive calls to 800 telephone numbers; 

The Company’s service cannot be used to originate calls to other telephone 
companies caller-paid information services (e.g., 900, 976). Calls to those 
numbers and other numbers used for caller-paid information services will be 
blocked by the Company’s switch. 

The following usage charges apply for customer dialed and operator handled 
calls: 

Per Conversion Minute or 
Mileage Band Setup Per Call Fraction Thereof 

0-10 Miles $ .037 5 
I 1  -22 Miles $.0375 
23-40 Miles $.(I375 
4 1-55 Miles $.0375 

$.03 
$.05 
$.06 
$.08 

Issued: March 24, 1998 Effective: March 24, 1998 
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SECTION 4 - MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES 

4.8 Operator Services 

4.8.1 Description 

Operator Handled Calling Services are provided to Customers and 
Users of Company-provided Altemative Local Exchange Services, and 
to Customers and Users of exchange access lines which the Customer 
has pre-subscribed to the Company's Pre-Subscribed MTS. 

4.8.2 Definitions 

Person-to-Person: Calls completed with the assistance of a Company 
operator to a particular person, station, department, or PBX extension 
specified by the calling party. Charges may be billed to the Customer's 
commercial credit card and/or LEC calling card, calling station, called 
station, or a designated third-party station. Calls may be dialed with or 
without the assistance of a Company operator. 

Collect Call: Calls completed with the assistance of a Company 
Operator for which charges are billed -- not to the originating 
telephone number, but to the destination or terminating number. 

Operator Dialed Charge: The end user places the call without dialing 
the destination number, although the capability to do it himself exists. 
The end user will dial "0" for local calls and "00" for long distance 
calls and then requests the operator to dial the called station. 

Billed to Non-Proprietary Calling Card: Refers to calls that are dialed 
by the customer in accordance with standard dialing instructions and 
billed to a non-proprietary calling card issued by another carrier. 

Issued: March 24, 1998 Effective: March 24, 1998 
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SECTION 4 - MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES 

4.8 Ouerator Services (Cont’d) 

4.8.3 Rates 

Local exchange, IntraLATA, ant Long Distance calls may be placed 
on an Operator Assisted basis. For Operator Assisted calls to Busy 
Line Verification and Interrupt, or Directory Assistance, the surcharges 
specified in Section 4.9.3 and Section 4.10.2 will apply in addition to 
any applicable Operator charges. 

In addition to the usage charges identified above, the following 
operator-assisted charges will apply: 

Per Call Charges 
Person-to-Person $2.98 
Collect Calling $1.10 
Third Number Billing $1.10 
Station to Station-Operator 
Assisted $1.10 

Issued: March 24, 1998 Effective: March 24, 1998 
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SECTION 4 - MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES 

4.9 Busy Line Verify and Line Interrupt Service 

4.9.1 Description 

Upon request of a calling party the Company will verify a busy 
condition on a called line. 

A) The operator will determine if the line is clear or in use and 
report to the calling party. 

B) The operator will interrupt the call on the called line only if the 
calling party indicates an emergency and requests interruption. 

4.9.2 Regulations 

A) A charge will apply when: 

1) The operator verifies that the line is busy with a call in 
progress . 

2) The operator verifies that the line is available for incoming 
calls. 

3) The operator verifies that the called number is busy with a 
call in progress and the customer requests interruption. The 
operator will then interrupt the call, advising the called 
party the name of the calling party. One charge will apply 
for both verification and intemption. 
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SECTION 4 - MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES 

4.9 Busy Line Verify and Line Interrupt Service (cont'd.) 

4.9.2 Regulations (cont'd.) 

B) No charge will apply: 

I )  When the calling party advises that the call is to or fiom an 
official public emergency agency. 

2) Under conditions other than those specified in 4.9.2(a) 
preceding . 

C) Busy Verification and Intempt Service is fuinislied where and to 
the extent that facilities permit. 

D) The Customer shall identify and save the Company harmless 
against all claims that may arise from either party to the 
interrupted call or any person. 

4.9.3 Rates 

Busy Line Verify Service 
(each request) 

Busy Line Verify and Busy Line 
Intempt Service (each request) 

$2.25 

$2.25 

Issued: March 24, 1998 Effective: March 24, 1998 
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SECTION 4 - MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES 

4.10 Directory Assistance 

4.10. I Description 

Customers and Users of the Company’s caIIing services (excluding 
800 services), may obtain directory assistance in determining 
telephone numbers within Flc 
operator. 

4.10.2 Rates 

A) Directory Assistance ch 

rida by c 

rges appl 
Company’s facilities are used. 

lling the Directory Assistance 

T for all requests for which the 
Each number requested is 

charged for as shown below. Requests for information other than 
telephone numbers will be charged the same rate as shown for 
the applicable request for telephone numbers. 

Per Number 
Requested $1.10 

A credit will be given for calls to Directory Assistance when: 

- the Customer experiences poor transmission or is cut-off 
during the call, 
the Customer is given an incorrect telephone number, or 
the Customer inadvertently inisdials an incorrect Directory 
Assistance NPA. 

- 
- 

To receive a credit, the customer must notify the Company 
operator or Business Office of the problem experienced. 

Issued: January 8,2002 Effective: January 9,2002 
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SECTION 4 - MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES 

4.1 1 Service Imrdenientation 

4.1 1.1 Description 

Absent a promotional offering, service implementation charges will 
apply to new service orders or to orders to change existing service. 

4.11.2 Rates 
Non-Recurring 

Per Service Order $25.00 

4.12 Restoration of Service 

4.12.1 Description 

A restoral charge applies to the re-establishment of service and facilities 
suspended because of nonpayment of bills and is payable at the time that 
the re-establishment of the service and facilities suspended is arranged for. 

4.12.2 Rates 
Non-Recurring 

P er Occasion $25 .OO 

Issued: March 24, 1998 Effective: March 24, 1998 
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SECTION 4 - MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES 

4.13 Premise Visit: 

4.13.1 Description 

A premise visit charge applies if a premises visit is required to complete 
any requested work on the subscriber’s premises. 

4.13.2 Rates 
No n- Rec urring 

Per Visit $13.00 

Issued: March 24, 1998 Effective: March 24, 1998 
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SECTION 4 - MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES 

4.14 Special Rates for the Handicapped: 

4.14. I Directory Assistance 

There shall be no charge for up to fifty calls per billing cycle from lines or 
trunks serving individuals with disabilities. The Company shall charge the 
prevailing tariff rates for every call in excess of 50 within a billing cycle. 

4.14.2 Hearing and Speech Impaired Persons 

Intrastate toll message rates for TDD users shall be evening rates for 
daytime calls and night rates for evening and night calls. 

4.14.3 Telecomniunications Relay Service 

For intrastate toll calls received from the relay service, call charges shall 
be discounted by 50% from the otherwise applicable usage rate for a now 
relay call, except that where the calling or called party indicates that either 
party is both hearing and visually impaired, the call shall be discounted 60 
percent. The above discounts appIy only to time-sensitive elements of a 
charge for the call and shall not apply to per call charges such as a credit 
call surcharge. 

Issued: March 24, 1998 Effective: March 24, 1 9 s  
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SECTION 4 - MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES 

4.15 Remote Call Forwarding On-Net N 

4.1 5.1 Description 

Remote Call Forwarding On-Net is a service that utilizes a US LEC switch 
to automatically forward all incoming calls dialed to the remote call 
forwarding on-net number to another US LEC service number. 

4.15.2 Rates 

Non-Recurring Monthly Recurring 

Remote Call Forwarding On-Net 
per number $100.00 $25.00 

N 
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SECTION 4 - MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES 

4.16 Emergency Services ([Enhanced 9 1 1): 

Allows Customers to reach appropriate emergency services including police, fire 
and hospital medical services. Enhanced 91 1 has the ability to selectively route 
an emergency call to the primary 91 1 provider so that it reaches the correct 
emergency service located closest to the caller. In addition, the Customer’s 
address and telephone information will be displayed to the person handling the 
91 1 call. 

4.17 Presubscription Changes: 

Customer may change the choice of Primary Iiiterexchange Carrier (PIC) at any 
time. The custoiner’s original PIC choices are activated at no charge upon 
inception of local service. Subsequent changes are subject to the following 
charges. 

InterLATA PIC Change 
IntraLATA PIC Change (When available) 
Both PIC selections changed simultaneously 

Per Line/Trunk 
Per Occurrence 

$5.00 
$5.00 
$5.00 

Issued: September 10, 1999 Effective: October 1 , 1999 

Issued By: Aaron D. Cowell, Jr. 
Executive Vice President and General Counsel 
Transamenca Square 
401 North Tryon Street, Suite 1000 
Charlotte, North Carolina 28202 



US LEC of Florida Inc. Florida Price List No. 1 
Original Sheet 7 1.3 

SECTION 4 - MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES 

4.1 8 US LEC Local Toll Free 

4.18.1 Description 

Local Toll Free service allows customers who have no presence outside a 
LATA to appear to have a local presence. This product is also a toll-free 
solution without the 8XX number. US LEC will establish a local number 
in a region where US LEC has a switch. When a caller dials into the Local 
Toll Free number, US LEC’s local switch will remote call forward the call 
to a number terminating at the US LEC customer’s location. The call will 
be remote call forwarded on the US LEC interLATA network. US LEC 
Local Toll Free is an optional service available only to US LEC Local 
customers. Charges for US LEC Local Toll Free are in addition to charges 
for Local Exchange Service found in Section 3 of this tariff. Both the local 
toll-free and the terminating number must be within the US LEC network. 
Per minute usage is billed at 18-second minimum increments and 
continues with 6-second increments. 

4.18.2 Rates 
Monthly 
$2.00 Monthly Rate per Local Toll Free Number 

Local Toll Free Usage Rate 

Installation per Local Toll Free Number 

Per Minute 
$0.025 

Non-recurring 
$100.00 

Issued: August 26,2002 Effective: August 27, 2002 
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SECTION 4 - MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES 

4.19 Siiisle Line Foreign Exchanze (FX) Service 

4.19.1 Description 

Single Line Foreign Exchange (FX) Service is exchange service furnished 
to a customer from an exchange other than the one from which the 
customer would normally be served, allowing customers to have a local 
presence and one-way communications in an exchange different from their 
own. The service provides a single channel of IntraLATA inbound only 
communication service to the customer premises. Each Single Line FX 
Service requires a usable line or trunk dedicated to it. The service must be 
used in conjunction with Local Exchange Access Service. Single Line FX 
Service rates are in addition to Local Exchange Access Service rates 
described in Section 3 of this tariff. 

4.19.2 Rates 

Single Line FX Service per line 

Foreign Directory Listing 

Non- Monthly 
Recurring Recurring 

$70.00 $50.00 

$2.50 

D 
D 
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SECTION 4 - MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES 

4.20 Telecommunications Service Priority (TSP) System 

4.20. I Description 

The Telecommunications Service Priority (TSP) System is a structured 
coding scheme that prescribes the order in which National Security 
Emergency Preparedness (NSEP) telecommunications services are 
installed or restored. The TSP System was developed to support the 
requirements of the U.S. Government and applies only to NSEP 
telecommunications services to which the Company is able to apply 
priority treatment. It requires and authorizes priority action by the 
Company. 

Conditions of emergency or crises that cause invocation of NSEP 
treatment can only be declared by authorized officials of the Federal 
Government or other officials (Federal or non-Federal) specified by the 
Manager-National Communications System (NCS) on behalf of the 
Executive Office of the President of the United States. 

Priority installation andor restoration of NSEP telecomnunications 
services shall be provided in accordance with Part 64.401, Appendix A, of 
the Federal Communications Conmission’s Rules and Regulations. 

In addition, TSP System service shall be provided in accordance with the 
guidelines set forth in “Telecommunications Service Priority (TSP) 
System for National Security Emergency Preparedness (NSEP) Service 
User Manual” (NCS manual 3-1-1 dated July 9, 1990) and 
“Telecommunications Service Priority (TSP) System for National Security 
Emergency Preparedness (NESP) Service Vendor Handbook” (NCS 
manual 3-1-2 dated July 9, 1990). 

Issued: August 26,2002 Effective: August 27,2002 
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SECTION 4 - MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES 

4.20 Telecommunications Service Priority CTSP) System 

4.20.1 Description 
The Company will arrange for the installation and/or restoration service 
upon receipt of the proper certification as specified preceding. 

4.20.2 Rates 

Priority Installation Service 
Priority Restoration Service 

Maintenance per line or trunk 

Non-Recumng 

$65.00 
$65.00 

Monthly 
Recurring 

$4.25 

N 

N 
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SECTION 4 - BUNDLED SERVICES 

7.1 ADVANTAGE Power T 

The ADVANTAGE Power T service provides customers with up to 24 channels of 
highly flexible, high capacity bandwidth. The Customer has the flexibility of bundling 
local exchange service and data services including Frame Relay Service and Internet 
access*. These voice and/or data services are provisioned on individual 64 Kbps 
channels which can total up to, but not exceed, 1.54 Mbps. Miscellaneous service rates 
contained in Sections 4 of this price list are not included in ADVANTAGE Power T 
monthly recurring rates. Frame Relay channels are provided with a committed 
information rate of 0%. Comniitted information rates higher than 0% will be provided in 
I6 Kbps increments and will be subject to standard Frame Relay Service pricing. Digital 
Data Service is available in 64 Kbps increments, and all mileage charges will apply in 
addition to the channel rate. A minimum monthly charge of $500 applies to each 
ADVANTAGE Power T configuration. Additionally, all ADVANTAGE Power T 
configurations are subject to a minimuin 1-year term commitment. An analog gateway is 
required for analog line terminations. Optional bundles of regulated and non-regulated 
services described in 7. I .  1, 7.1.2 and 7.1.3 are available in addition to the basic Power T 
configuration. 

ADVANTAGE Power T Monthly Recurring Charges 

Per 64 Kbps channel 

Analog Gateway 

Internet Gateway* 

Data Gateway 

All schedules 

All Schedules 

All Schedules 

Non-Recurring Charges: 
T- 1 Installation 
Analog Gateway 

* Non-regulated service 

Schedule I Schedule 2 Schedule 3 
$50.00 $60.00 $70.00 

1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 
$1 50.00 $100.00 $75.00 

$100.00 $75 .OO $50.00 

$25.00 $25 .OO $25 .OO 

$1,000.00 
$25 0.00 

Issued: May 1,2003 Effective: June 1, 2003 
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SECTION 6 - BUNDLED SERVICES 

7.1 ADVANTAGE Power T (cont'd) 

7.1.1 Power Pak Optional Service Package 

In addition to standard ADVANTAGE Power T service configurations, the 
Customer may purchase the Power Pak bundle of services listed below. 
The Power Pak rates below apply to each ADVANTAGE Power T 
configuration and include the following services. 

Non-Recurring T- 1 Installation 
Bronze Web Hosting* 
1.0 E-Mail Boxes* 
4000 minutes of inbound and outbound long-distance usage** 
Extended Local Calling (where applicable) 
50% off standard US LEC Conferencing service rates*** 

Power Pak Service Rates 
i lYear 2 Year 3 Year 

Schedules 1 ,2  & 3 $125.00 $75.00 $50.00 

Monthly Recurring Charges 

7.1.2 Power Pak Plus Optional Service Package 

In addition to standard ADVANTAGE Power T service configurations, the 
Customer may purchase the Power Pak Plus bundle of services listed 
below. The Power Pak rates below apply to each ADVANTAGE Power T 
configuration and include the following services. 

Non-Recurring T- 1 Installation 
Bronze Web Hosting" 
10 E-Mail Boxes* 
4000 minutes of inbound and outbound long-distance usage* * 
Extended Local Calling (where applicable) 
50% off standard US LEC Conferencing service rates*** 
Analog Gateway 
Intemet router, including installation and maintenance* 

* Non-regulated service 
** Additional intrastate usage will be billed on a per-minute basis as described in 

US LEC of Florida Inc. Tariff No. 1 Section 4.9.7 and 4.10.7 

Issued: May 1, 2003 Effective: June 1, 2003 

Issued By: Wanda Moiitano 
Vice President, Regulatory and Industry Affairs 
6801 Momson Blvd. 
Charlotte, North Carolina 282 1 1 

N 

N 



US LEC of Florida Iiic. Florida Price List No. 1 
Original Sheet 77 

*** Rates, terms and conditions in US LEC’s Interstate Rate Guide apply 
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SECTION 6 - BUND LED SERVICES 

7.1 ADVANTAGE Power T (cont’d) 

7.1.2 Power Pak Plus Optional Service Package fcont’d) 

Power Pak Plus Service Rates Monthly Recurring Charges 

lYear 2 Year 3 Year 
Schedules 1 ,2  & 3 $325.00 $200.00 $125 .OO 

Power Pak Secu ri-T Ootional Service Package 

In addition to standard ADVANTAGE Power T service configurations, the 
Customer may purchase the Power Pak Plus bundle of services listed 
below. The Power Pak rates below apply to each Power T configuration 
and include the following services. 

7.1.3 

Non-Recurring T- 1 Installation 
Bronze Web Hosting* 
10 E-Mail Boxes* 
4000 minutes of inbound and outbound long-distance usage** 
Extended Local Calling (where applicable) 
50% off standard US LEC Conferencing service rates*** 
Analog Gateway 
Intemet router, including installation and maintenance* 
Firewall Service* 
Secure Internet* 
Firewall Installation* 

Power Pak Securi-T Service Rates Monthly Recurring Charges 

lYear 2 Year 3 Year 
Schedules 1 ,2  & 3 $750.00 $560.00 $450.00 

* Non-regulated service 
** Additional intrastate usage will be billed on a per-minute basis as described in 

US LEC of Florida Inc. Tariff No. 1 Section 4.9.7 and 4.10.7 
*** Rates, terms and conditions in US LEC’s Interstate rate Guide apply 
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SECTION 6 - BLINDLED SERVICES 

7.1 ADVANTAGE Power T (cont'd) 

7.1.4 Web Hosting" Upgrades 

For all Power Pak Optional service packages described in 7.1.1, 7. I .2 and 
7.1.3 the following web hosting service options may be substituted for 
Bronze service at the rates described below. 

Service 
Monthly Recurring Charge 

1-year term 2-year term 3-year term 

Silver Web Hosting $15.00 $15.00 $15.00 
Gold Web Hosting $40.00 $40.00 $40.00 
Platinum Web Hosting $85.00 $85.00 $85.00 
Platinum Plus Web Hosting $225.00 $225.00 $225.00 

7.1.5 Volume Discount Schedule 

The following service term cominitment and volume discounts will be 
applied to ADVANTAGE Power T and all optional Power Pak service 
packages. All services purchased in conjunction with ADVANTAGE 
Power T service will contribute to the discount schedule. However, the 
discounts will only apply to ADVANTAGE Power T and optional Power 
Pak monthly recurring rates. 

Volume 1-year term 2-year term 3-year term 

$500 
$750 

$1,000 
$10,000 

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 
5.0% 10.0% 12.5% 
5.0% 12.5% 20.0% 
5.0% 15 .O% 25.0% 

* Non-regulated service 
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